| |
1
4 ' _I i
[ = i
| Y |
] ‘I" |'l E

| i L] l 1

oL

[

|| |

|

i |

| - o

| |
i | 8

| g

.l= i,
il k
L2

B S 11 |
Y LR o
: b, { !‘1 | ! “

Virginia Tobacco Region
Revitalization Commission

Fall 2023
Committee & Commission Meetings

- October 11-12, 2023

The Inn at Blackstone
Magnolia Ballroom
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA



ITINERARY

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Fall 2023 Tobacco Commission Two-Day Meetings
The Inn at Blackstone
The Magnolia Ballroom, Blackstone, VA
October 11-12, 2023

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2023

MEETING SITE: THE INN AT BLACKSTONE (THE MAGNOLIA BALLROOM)

1:30 - 2:30 P.M. SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE MEETING
2:45 - 4:45 P.M. EDUCATION COMMITTEE MEETING
4:00 P.M. CHECK- IN TIME
THE INN AT BLACKSTONE
6:30 - 9:00 P.M. RECEPTION @ THE INN AT BLACKSTONE
: The Courtyard

707 Fourth Street, Blackstone, VA

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2023

MEETING SITE: THE INN AT BLACKSTONE (THE MAGNOLIA BALLROOM)

7:30 - 8:30 A.M. COMPLIMENTARY FULL BREAKFAST OFFERED AT THE
HOTEL

CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST AVAILABLE AT THE MEETING
(Coffee, assorted teas, juice, water, breakfast bars and

Fresh fruit)
9:00- 9:30 AM. . INCENTIVES AND LOANS COMMITTEE MEETING
9:30-10:30 AM SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE MEETING
10:30- 11:30 AM STRATElGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING
11:00 A.M ' CHECK- OUT TIME

THE INN AT BLACKSTONE
11:30 AM. ~~~ BOX LUNCHES SERVED ~~~

11:30 A.M. - 12:30 P.M. FULL COMMISSION MEETING

Saife Travel




DIRECTIONS
THE INN AT BLACKSTONE
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA 23824

Take 1-95 South and US-460 West to State Route 606/Cottage
Road in Nottoway County.

Take the VA-606 exit from US-460 West

Take N West Ave and Nottoway Ave to your destination in B[ackstone.
Turn left onto State Route 606/Cottage Road

Continue onto N West Avenue

Turn right onto Nottoway Avenue

Turn left onto N Amelia Avenue

Turn right onto Fourth Street

Turn left. You are at your destination.



HOW OUR STORY BEGAN
THE INN AT BLACKSTONE

fi BLACKSTONE - COLLEGE FOR GIRLS

Over 126 years ago this grand building was a unique gesture to the
area and welcomed excitement among the locals. The property
initially was founded in 1894 as a female educational institute
welcomed 71 students in her first year as a finishing school for girls
attending 8th-12th grade studies. The campus started to grow and
offered both boarding and day students with studies focused on
teaching, academics, psychology, and philosophy. It officially
became known at the Blackstone College for Girls a century ago
upon reopening after a fire in 1922 in the current classical revival
brick building. This beautiful campus was a preferred choice for socialites from surrounding states. If
guests were flipping through a copy of the Acorn yearbook one will find alum such as Hollywood’s Bea
Arthur and a former president of Nicaragua, Violeta Chamorro.

FORT PICKETT

The U.S. Army opened the nearby Camp Pickett in Blackstone. WWII provided an influx of some
thousand soldiers in the area. During this wartime, the college suspended operations and the school
then provided housing to active-duty servicemen and their families. Two weeks after V-J Day, Blackstone
College reopened, and classes resumed for another five years, including young men in attendance. With
the reactivation of Fort Pickett and the impacts of the Korean War, Blackstorie soon found herself with
low attendance and closed it doors as an educational institute permanently. On June 5, 1950, the college
hosted her last commencement ceremony on the grounds, among the attendees was Mr. George
Adams.

VIRGINIA UNITED METHODIST ASSEMBLY CENTER

In 1955 the Inn opened her doors once again in the form of hospitality as she welcomed guest as the
Virginia United Methodist Retreat & Conference Center. The campus quickly became part of the local
community and continued to provide safe retreat and accommodations.

After 60 years of service a small fire destroyed a separate building on the property and the conference
center closed officially in May 2016. The building left unattended until 2022, waiting to be restored into
something new to enjoy.

Kalyan Hospitality started dreaming of this project from the inception. Our vision of opening the doors
again to those traveling, ignited passion and determlnatlon to convert the building to the unlque
experience waiting for you upon check in.

Join us for a historical tour of the area, stay while traveling on business or reporting for duty at Fort
Pickett. Allow us the privilege to welcome your out of town guests as they experience the charm of-a

histarical destination event & wedding venue.

We are here, ready to welcome you to all her glory.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Fall 2023 Committee & Commission Meetings
The Inn at Blackstone
The Magnolia Ballroom
Blackstone, Virginia

October 11-12, 2023

MEETING LOGISTICS
L 3= - o

DIrections £0 HOtel i iiiiiiiiriareriiesssnsrererasanercnesisersionsressassrersssaeses &

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE ... vvvviirrernerernsrrrnnisssssisnnisssssresnssssoes
FY2024 Southern Virginia Applications .....ccovviiiiiinienne, crersinvsaee
Extensions and ModifiCations ..viiiesieisiiinieneriainiieruseorsiosniacrensernns 2

EDUCATION .. covivvnrvnanranss eeraratesterrrrraraenns P 4. 1
Agenda ciiiiiiieriiiiiniiiniiiiieierrenes .1 .
FY2024 Competitive Education Applications.

INCENTIVES AND LOANS COMMITTEE .oovviiiniiiiiiniiinininiiniii.,. 44

ABENAA . et iiiiiiirriiiiiiieiisisiiiierisiesssitensreasrasrrssrrsssissrstsasieassnse 45

Extensions and Modifications,....covevriiissiiniinieisnnnsiorsirssessessansnses 46

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE........... U 1.
vereens et eeaerrateetreateenteeresecantentterneanreanntaterreaareaenn . 66
FY2024 Funding Applications - Meat Processing Projects
Extensions and Modifications.......... o,

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE uviuvinvuiiiresrsrvrieseeernrareranancnsrssrese 77
F iYL= T F- OO £ : |

Strategic Plan 2023-2025 ... . cvvvrernnerrecrnsrnrerrssrrsnsssrssrnsernssrnsersens 79
FULL COMMISSION.....oocvivnnenn vt erese

Foundation Proposal......oievieesiisisrnsiesierersisssasirsinrsesssassrnssrsess 100
Tobacco Region Agribusiness Project (TRAP} Fund......ovvviiiiiiiininn, . 103
Rural Energy Innovation Fund (REIF)....

TROF & CBL Loan Update.,,.....ooeeiiivvrsenes veneerernrerenesees 109
Financial SUMMAIY ....eiveissesreciririserssisisrsersrrssesersssrsrsossscsssrsere 115
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes .....cooviviniiiiinnnn. 116
Current Committee Membership




SOUTHERN VIRGINIA
- COMMITTEE



= [n-Person Meeting =

AGENDA

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

The Inn at Blackstone
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA
Wednesday, October 11, 2023
1:30 P.M.

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: 742 579 325#.

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order Mr. Walter “Buddy” Shelton, Chair
Call of the Roll The Hon. James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the 5/18/23 Minutes : (published on website)

Public Comment

FY2024 Southern Virginia applications Ms. Sarah Capps, Southern Regional Director
Extensions and Modifications Ms. Sarah Capps, Southern Regional Director
Active Grants by Investment Category M. lVicki Humphreys, Grants Director

Other Business M. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Adjournmeﬁt



FY24 Southern Virginia Program

Staff Summaries and Recommendations

October 11, 2023

The Commission received thirteen applications for the June 7, 2023, application deadline of the FY24
SouthernVirginia Program. The applications are grouped by investment categoty. The Southern Vitginia
Committee will act on these funding requests at its meeting October 11, 2023, at 1:30 pm.

—— _ . Requested Staff Rec.
Req# Organization Project Title Amount
Agribusiness
Expanded Southern Virginia Precision 309.000
dhtl | Campball Conntg Agriculture and Farm Efficiency $ 364,000 | § ’
; i Connecting Southern Virginia Producers
gy | RubasTor Advanced with Markets Through Value Chain $  104452|$ 104452
Learning and Research e o ,
Coordination
Institute for Advanced Supporting Controlled Environment \ 145.841
ke Learning and Research Agriculture Industry Growth in Virginia $ 145,841 | 8 ’
Southside Virginia Fruit and L .
) ) Envisioning a Local Food Purchasing
4162 Vegetz.lbl.e Producers System for Southside TRRC $ 1,210,000 Table
Association
Business Development
. _ Business Development and Talent
4163 Instltu.te o Advancfad Attraction for Investment in Southern $ 325,563 $ 325,563
Learning and Research .o
3 A Virginia
1162, | Vingininlsrovih Kllianoes | Soirestiestmts Fogused Business $ 57673 |$ 51,950
Development
Sites and Infrastructure
Hise | Bemswic Gonmnty Sto:llewall Industrial Site Development $ 2234460 | $ 1,117,230
Project
4155 | Campbell County Seneca Commerce Park Grading Project | $ 600,000 $ 404918
Tourism
National Advertising Campaign to
4157 | American Civil War Museum | Encourage Tourism to Southern and $ 41,031 | $ -
Central Virginia
4160 | Town of Brodnax Brodnax Depot Renovation Project $ 183,507 |$ 183,507
4165 | Town of Blackstone Making Ends Meet $ 247217 Table
4158 | Town of Lawrenceville Tobacco Heritage Trail Trailhead Ramp | $§ 232,288 $ -
4156 ‘\Ntest.Pwdmont. Pllannmg Regional Outdoor Recreation Economy $ 118,000 |$ 118,000
District Commission Program
TOTAL (13 requests) / Staff Recommendation
$2,760,461
$ 5,804,032
TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summm;ies & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 1

o




Agribusiness

Campbell County
Expanded Southern Vitginia Precision Agticulture and Farm Efficiency (#4167)
$364,000 Requested '

Executive Summary: After the great success of the Southetn Virginia Precision Agriculture & Farm
Efficiency Grant (Project # 3891), Campbell County and Vitginia Cooperative Extension are requesting
additional funds for the localities with a larger agricultural presence to afford more farms the benefits of
the Precision Agriculture program. Tobacco Commission funds ate requested to provide additional cost
share opportunities for producers in the 20 counties in the Southern Virginia Tobacco Region service
area. We are requesting a maximum of $5,000 (33%) reimbutsement per producer. We are requesting an
amount of $4,000 in administrative reimbursement for the grant.

Slots in this program will be awarded to each locality in a demand ratio of number of farms in each
locality relative to the slots filled in the first round of the program. This will enable the localities to serve
interested producets who were not funded in the first round of the program.

The application funding structure is as follows: 1) $360,000 is the maximum match needed from the
Tobacco Commission for 72 slots at a maximum of $5,000 awards each. 2) $4,000 is for administration
supportt for supplies and time from the locality to run the program for 20 counties.

Matching Funds (based on Waitlist):
e $768,137 private match from agriculture producers participating in the program.

Project Outputs (based on Waitlist):
The otiginal request estitnated benefiting 72 agriculture producers. A total of 68 producers are on a
waitlist from the first round of Agribusiness cost-share funding administered under grant #3891. The
project leaders have agreed to a reduced awatd amount limited to supporting producers on the waitlist.
Projected Agribusiness deliverables related to best management practices for this waitlist include:

e Livestock Handling Equipment, 23 producers ($101,529 cost-shate requested)

e DPrecision and Improvement Agriculture Technology, 15 producers ($64,294.37 cost-share

requested)
e Hay Storage, 24 producers ($111,485 cost share requested)
e Produce Equipment / Cold Storage = 6 producers ($27,310 cost-shate requested)

If all 68 producers putchase and install best management practices the total capital outlay is estimated at
$1,072,756. Of this total $304,618 (28%) would be TRRC funding and $768,137 private Match.

Staff Comments: In January 2022, the Commission apptoved a $505,000 grant (#3891) for the Southern
Virginia Precision Agrienlture @ Farm Effficiency Program benefiting all 20 counties in the Southern area of the
Tobacco Region. Campbell County is the grantee and leads the primaty project team which includes
three Virginia Cooperative Extension (VCE) agents. A second group of VCE agents join the others to
setve on a latger Disbursement Oversight Committee. The original request to the Commission in 2022
was for $800,000 and it was reduced to $505,000 when awarded. This funding request is for an additional
$364,000 for the program based on agriculture producer interests. From the six payments issued under
grant #3891 to date, a total of $§243,382 has been reimbursed for the following cost-share practices
implemented and installed: '

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 2

-8



e Livestock Handling Equipment, 29 producers (§102,279 total cost-share) -

¢ Precision Improvements & Agriculture Technology, 18 producers (§69,148 total cost-share)
o Hay Storage, 14 producers ($66,543 total cost-share)

e Cold Storage, 1 producer ($3,018 total cost-share)

A balance of §256,617 remains on grant #3891. This is expected to support ~ $103,513 for 22 additional
approved cost-share applications from Round One to be submitted for reimbursement. Once those
payments are processed, it is estimated that the amount remaining in the Transfer Payments budget
category would be at least $148,204. If a new grant is approved to suppott the Waitlist, then the applicant
agrees with the proposed condition that the remaining amount will then be deobligated.

The project objective from the original approved application is “to encourage producers to incorporate
new practices that enhance their operation’s inputs and cost savings.” The program is targeted to four
categories: (1) Precision and Improved Agriculture Technology; (2) Produce Equipment & Cold Storage;
(3) Produce Handling & Hay Storage Facilities; and (4) Livestock Handling Equipment. Producers will be
required to spend at least $3,000 on capital costs for equipment ot consttuction to be eligible. A detailed
list of eligible items under each category was provided with cost estimates. The justification contents
suppott return on investment for producets. Sevetal items/practices have been previously suppotted by
the Commission, in some cases by hundreds of patticipants: Hay Storage/Hay Barns (445), Livestock
Handing Equipment (415), Cold Storage (6), and Produce Production and Handling Equipment (4). To
address the previous cost-share investments by the Commission and interest in new practices, the
program approval includes a limitation for only first-time recipients for previously funded practices.

Interest in the program has varied significantly across the 20 counties. Some had a lot of interest, but
others did not use their total allocations from the original grant. The second round of grant funding from
the Commission would be used for applicants on the waitlist, supporting the program where there is
documented interest and an expressed need. The original grant award limited participant numbers by
county based on an equal allocation of funding for the 20 patticipating counties. However, the number
of farm opetations, and number of cattle or vegetable producers varies significantly by county. This
funding will support the waitlist to balance funding where there is documented demand.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability ctitetia for this project indicates that it is highly achievable. The applicant has
an excellent track record operating this program from previous funding, and has demonstrated a waitlist
of farmers who wish to patticipate in the program. From this data, staff was able to right-size the project
budget. These farmers are leveraging their own funds against this cost-share ploglam at a rate higher
than 50%. This project pLovides excellent benefit for the cost.

Staff Recommendation: Staff rtecommends a $309,000 grant award to support $305,000 (rounded
up from $304,618) estimated cost-share for applicants on the waitlist and $4,000 for direct costs
related to administering the grant. This approval is made on the condition of the following: 1)
cost-share funding will be limited to only first-time recipients for practices previously funded by
TRRC; and 2) conditioned on unobligated funds under #3891, being deobhgated after final
reimbutrsements are processed.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 3

-9



Institute for Advanced Learning and Research

Connecting Southern Vitginia Producers with Markets Through Value Chain
Coordination (#4161); $104,452 Requested

Executive Summary: Consumer demand for local food is on the rise and is projected to grow in the
decades to come, presenting an opportunity for increased farm revenue for new and existing farmets.
However, many farmers lack the time and resoutces to promote theit goods to potential customers.
Simultaneously, many large institutional buyers would like to offer local produce, meat, and daity to theit
employees and visitors, but they would prefer not to interact with each farmer individually. These
conditions-establish a need for an advocate to facilitate the interaction and drive the creation of a robust
local food system where farmers’ price points ate met while local consumets gain greater access to theit
products. This proposed three-year project seeks matching funding for a value chain coordinator
position to connect institutional buyers, food hubs, and other purchasers with farmers to inctease net
farm output and income, and diversify agribusiness in the region.

Matching Funds:

e $100,000 Danville Regional Foundation (anonymous donation sevetal yeats ago to Friends of the
Southern Piedmont to support agribusiness value chain coordination).

o §$7,500 IALR toward travel expenses and laptop for new cootdinator position

Project Outputs:

e Creation/provision of a tegional interactive website to setve as a tesoutce for promoting'
agricultural products to purchasers in and outside of the region

e New staff position to facilitate and support connecting produce purchasers and buyers.

e [Estimates benefiting 10 new farmers annually with at least $10,000 average annual increase to net
farm income, for at least $100,000 aggregate increase in annual produce sales.

Staff Comments: Grant funds are for 50% of value chain coordinator over the two-year stattup petiod,
a software solution for connecting producers with buyets, website development, matketing and travel
costs. Match will be used toward ditect costs for the new position, laptop, travel, and supplies. The
Commission previously provided funding for this initiative with a $§117,017 grant in May 2020; howevet,
following hiring challenges and delays during the pandemic, the grant was closed with no funds spent. -
The cutrent funding request includes $20,000 for marketing, which TALR clarified will be used towatd a
software package titled “Local Food Connect” providing a marketing and technology solution for
producers. This software, designed for food hubs and networks, will be used to connect buyets with
sellers and facilitate sales transactions. The software allows for tecovety of administrative costs. TRRC’s
encourages IALR to evaluate a fee-based structure and/or overhead revenues to sustain the initiative to
suppott the coordinator position. ITALR also plans to coordinate with West Piedmont PDC on common
interests associated with the Agritourism & Agribusiness Regional Economic Impact Study and
Marketing Strategy for their service area. Agribusiness outcome projections appeat reasonable and will be
directly measured with the software technology solution.

Financial Viability Assessment: 7

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a clear model and timeline for implementation -
by an applicant with a strong track record of project implementation. The project’s budget is detailed,
reasonable, appropriately scaled to the project, and provides for sufficient capacity to implement this
demonstration program. In addition, the project has at least 50% match committed at the time of
application. The outcomes represent a good financial investment in terms of projected cost benefit.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 4

-10-



Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends apptoval of a $104,452 grant award.
Institute for Advanced Learning and Research

Supporting Controlled Environment Agriculture Industry in Southern Vitginia
(#4166); $145,841 Requested

Executive Summaty: Controlled environment agticulture (CEA) is a multidisciplinary and technology-
based approach to producing agricultural products under targeted environmental conditions. The CEA
industry is growing around the world, and Virginia has become a center for this industry. The CEA
industry includes producers, suppliers, and peripheral industries looking to implement theit products in
CEA. Two key needs identified to continue to assist in expanding CEA in the region and beyond include
a third-party product/method evaluation setvice and research-based educational materials. This project
addresses these needs by: 1) establishing a testing setvice for the CEA industry by hiring a research
technician, and 2) expanding outreach efforts by providing educational matetials to growers based on
data generated from studies conducted to address common issues faced by CEA producers. This project
will provide services and information that will benefit small, medium, and latge CEA producers and
suppliets. '

Matching Funds:
e $88,881 Virginia Tech for a new Postdoctoral research position at TALR
e $48,000 TALR: §30,000 for materials and $18,000 in-kind for office and greenhouse bench space

Project Outputs:

e Dstablish low-cost testing and suppott setrvice for the CEA industry and producets
e Educational materials for producers interested in CEA

¢ Projected to benefit 40 CEAs (baseline is 5). Based on 35 CEAs increasing sales tevenue by
$10,000, the estimated aggregate revenue increase is at least $350,000 during the grant petiod.

Staff Comments: .

Grant funds are requested to support salary and fringe for a technician position for start-up testing
services to suppott growth of the CEA industry. This project builds on work funded in the $309K grant
award (#3590) to IALR in January 2020, which suppozrted establishing the Controlled Envitonmental
Agriculture Innovation Center at IALR in partnership with Virginia Tech. The focus of testing
capabilities for this project is on evaluating product/method/idea in greenhouse or indoor vertical farm,
collecting data and reporting back to agribusiness companies. A broad list of testing services was
identified by IALR including evaluating technology including new commercial microbial products,
production systems, plant cultivars, sanitation products, watet testing for precision nutrient analysis and
disease monitoring and control. During the application review, staff requested a list of the existing CEA
businesses in the Tobacco Region footprint to understand the project’s target market mote cleatly. An
industry analysis of CEAs in the Tobacco Region footprint, as well a list of 30 CEAs in the region for
targeting was provided by IALR. This project is viewed as start-up suppott for proof-of-concept phase
for building testing services that will help drive CEA agribusiness expansion in the region.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a positive cost benefit supporting a high priotity
agribusiness segment. The project’s budget is detailed, reasonable, appropriately scaled to the project, and
provides for sufficient capacity to implement this demonstration program. The applicant provides
evidence of a 50% match commitment. This model is poised for sustainability beyond the
demonstration petiod by adopting a service fee structute.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 5

_.11_



Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $145,841 grant award, contingent on a
report of best practices being provided prior to close-out of the grant.

Southside Virginia Fruit and Vegetable Producers Association
Envisioning a Local Food Purchasing System for Southside TRRC (#4162)
$1,210,000 Requested '

Executive Summary: The purpose of this project is to provide much needed administrative staff (for
leadership and implementation), infrastructure (storage and packaging materials and equipment) and
technical assistance (a comprehensive online sales system) for the Local Food Purchasing Assistance
Cooperative Agreement Program (LFPA). The LFPA was established by USDA, AMS in 2022 and
awatded to the Vitginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services in 2023. This unique program
has funded over $6 million to seven sub-recipients in Virginia to soutce local food to individuals in need
in 2023-24 and has the potential to double these funds for additional food costs in 2024-25 through the
LFPA Plus. The LEPA Plus will only provide funding for food costs and will requite sub-tecipients to
seek additional funding for suppott for administrative, infrastructure and technical assistance. MWH
Solutions, LLC is one of the seven sub-recipients of the LFPA funds in Vitginia. A large pottion of the
funds for food costs from the LFPA and the LFPA Plus will go to local Southside Vitginia farms,
including farms of the Southside Virginia Vegetable and Fruit Growers Association, and will result in a
quantifiable increase in net farm income.

Matcbing Funds:

e $1,210,000 USDA.funding managed by VDACS fot the Local Food Putchase Assistance
program. This includes a part of a 2022 contract under the LFPA program that includes a portion
of Southern Virginia, and anticipated 2023 contract from the LFPA-Plus program.

Project Outputs:

® Reporting on sales transactions and inventory data.

Staff Comments:
The need to support expanded sales opportunities for the producet’s association is recognized; however,
this request is extremely large and exceeds the amount and scope typically suppotted for an Agribusiness
- project. The budget includes $800K for TRRC funding and $800K match a total of $1.6 million for what
is desctibed as technical edits to a proprietary software used for local food sales tracking. (Staff suggests a
more affordable alternative would be to evaluate existing softwate solutions that also offer the benefit of
being available to be used immediately.) $250,000 is requested with an equal amount of Match for fout
administrative staff positions- grant administrator, finance administratot, project coordinator and hub
and market managers associations. The USDA LFPA Plus funding will be for purchasing agriculture
products. Agribusiness outcomes projections for the project still need to be provided. The applicant is
agreement with a staff recommendation to Table this request to allow for a new application to be
submitted with a revised scope and budget to be considered in January 2024.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project reveals that as proposed, the budget is heavily slanted
toward covering administrative costs and short-lived supplies, which ate not allowable under curtent
funding policy. Enhancements to software make up two-thirds of the requested funding. Outcomes for
agricultural producers were not clear, nor was a sustainability plan provided. As presented, it is staff’s
opinion that this project is not currently financially viable.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 6

-12-



Staff Recommendation: Staff recommendation is to Table and allow a new application to be
submitted with revised scope and budget to be considered in January 2024,

‘Business Development

Institute for Advanced Learning and Research

Business Development & Talent Attraction for Investment in Southern Virginia
(#4163)

$325,563 Requested

Executive Summary: The Southern Virginia Regional Alliance (SVRA) seeks suppott from the Virginia
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (TRRC) to expand business attraction and retention efforts
with talent attraction and retention resoutces to meet demand and ensure high return on investment
from existing and incoming businesses. The request is to add a Talent Attraction and Retention Director
and marketing resources to sustain this steady pipeline of investment opportunities and can be converted
from prospects to companies in the region. Adding talent attraction services ensures that SVRA is
addressing the number one concern of existing and prospective companies — an available skilled
workforce. While the region has 2% of the Commonwealth’s industry within the SVRA footprint, leads
over the past two years have averaged well above 25% of the state’s incoming leads due to the prepared
sites and buildings in the region. A talent attraction and retention manager will be added to work directly
with the Executive Director and Business Investment Manager to assist localities in the attraction of
companies in targeted sectors with potential for jobs with higher wages. This will be coupled with the
aggressive marketing plan that TRRC has supported for the region in the past.

Matching Funds: :
o $87,781 JALR funding for Business Investment Manager position (20% budgeted to project)
e §175,563 Danville Regional Foundation for 50% of Talent Attraction & Retention Director
e $66,000 private contributions

Project Outputs:

® Increase staff capacity for rf:cmiting'prospects by hiring Talent Attraction and Retention
Manager, and support for increased SVRA patticipation in business investment trips.

e Support increased marketing efforts through utilization of lead generation professional, and
creation of matketing and social media materials and enhancements.

e SVRA aims to attract new businesses for the creation of at least 500 new jobs and a minimum of
$5 million capital investment annually.

Staff Comments: .

This project expands the capacity of SVRA, the regional economic development marketing alliances for
the City of Danville, and Patrick, Pittsylvania, and Halifax Counties. Grant funds are requested at
$175,563 to support 50% of the new Talent Attraction and Retention position over a three-year period;
as well as $150,000 for lead generation and marketing support over the three-year period. A portion of
the matching funds supports a Business Investment Manager, also 2 new position added to SVRA staff in
June 2023. Additional match will support marketing efforts. The requested marketing suppott is
consistent with funding Commission has previously provided for the regional alliances. Cote sectors
targeted by the SVRA include high performance manufacturing, advanced materials, environmental and
life sciences, and information technology and professional services. '

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 7

_‘] 3_



The need for increased staff to address capacity limitations is supported by VEDP’s study published in
May 2023 on Southside-Southwest Barriers and Oppotrtunities which focuses on strategies for
accelerating regional growth in target industries. Under their current executive director and in close
partnership with the local economic development efforts, the SVRA reports over 28 new companies and
31 expansions in the region since 2017, with over 5341 jobs created and $1.55 billion private capital
investment. The application included data demonstrating the increased economic activity between 2022
and 2023, increasing from 133 to 229 prospect leads, and from 30 to 43 site visits, further supporting the
need for an increase in staff to support efforts to convert prospects to commitments. The Commission’s
funding policy limits operating support for new staff positions to a start-up period. SVRA is committing
to launching a 3-year capital campaign to seek funding from private and public sector partners to provide
sustainability beyond the three years of funded requested from the Commission. The Commission’s

policies also require advance apptoval of out-of-state or intetnational travel, and these details will need to
be provided and approved in advance.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a clear model and timeline for implementation
by an applicant with a strong track record of project implementation. The project’s budget is detailed,
reasonable, approptiately scaled to the project, and provides for sufficient capacity to implement
proposed endeavors. The project has at least 50% match identified, but only a portion committed at the
time of application; as such, a contingency is placed on generating a commitment for the funding of the
Talent Attraction and Retention Director. The outcomes represent a good financial investment in terms
of projected cost benefit in an area that is seeing a higher-than-average rate of interest from prospects.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of a $325,563 grant award, contingent on funding for the Talent
Attraction and Retention Director being limited to up to 50% of personnel costs, and contingent
on advance approval of event patticipation fees and out-of-state or international travel.

Virginia's Growth Alliance
Refresh/Restart+ Focused Business Development (#4164)
$57,673 Requested

Executive Summarty: The VGA's recently completed comprehensive Strategic Economic Development
Action Plan (SEDAP), the first of its kind for the organization, has identified strategies and specific goals
to increase business and economic development activities and success over the next 3-5 year period. A
key component in the SEDAP is the Target Sector Analysis, which identified four "Core" sectors and
two "Oppottunity" sectors on which VGA should focus resources (human and financial), and which
offer increased chances of success in attracting and growing employment and new economic
opportunities for citizens of the region and sutrounding areas. Business cases were also developed and
presented for VGA to make to each identified sector. This project will take the SEDAP objectives and
put them into action through a diverse business development program of direct and indirect methods
including website modifications/enhancements, new marketing matetials, working with Lead Generation
specialists, hosting FAM tours of the region, and participating in key lead generation events and
opportunities to network directly with prospects.

TRRC — FY?24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 8

=-14-—



Matching Funds:
e  §51,950 Virginia’s Growth Alliance — annual operating budget (tevised from original budget)

Project Outputs:

e Increase from zero to at least two FAM tours annually.

e Increase site visits by prospects from 8 to at least 10 annually.

e Make meaningful contact with 100 different interests with a goal to turn them into 20 prospects,
resulting in 4-5 announced projects. ‘

e Estimated economic development outcomes are for attracting four new businesses creating
aggregate of 300 jobs with average salary of $46,886 and $20 million private capital investment.

Staff Comments: Virginia’s Growth Alliance is a regional economic alliance of five counties, one city,
and ten towns in Southern Vitginia. Grant funds are requested to support direct costs for strategies
identified in VGA’s recently developed Action Plan. TRRC can suppott costs directly linked to increasing
prospect interest in the region; with a reliance on annual local contributions for critical operating support
including the executive director position, continuous charges, ot other on-going support. A revised
detailed project budget was provided by VGA consistent with this guidance, resulting in a reduced
budget for $51,950 of TRRC funding. A Target Sector Analysis refined the focus of the matketing efforts
for VGA to four core sectors: Manufacturing, Wood and Paper Products, Information Technology, and
Distribution and Logistics, and two additional opportunity sectors. Based on the targeted sectors and
consistent with recent TRRC grants for regional alliances, grant funds will be used toward contracts for
lead generation, FAM Touts, marketing, and patticipation at trade events. Where specific events are not
yet identified, the Commission’s funding policies require advance approval of out-of-state ot
international travel, and these details will need to be provided and approved in advance.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a well-designed action plan and timeline for
implementation by a known regional economic development otganization. The project’s budget is
detailed, reasonable, appropriately scaled to the project, and provides for sufficient capacity to implement
ptoposed endeavors. The project has at least 50% match identified and committed at the time of
application. The outcomes represent a good financial investment in terms of projected cost benefit in an
area that would benefit from a more amplified presence in web media and trade.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends a $51,950 grant award contingent on advance
approval of event participation fees and out-of-state ot international travel.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 9

_1 5_



‘Sites & Infrastructure

Brunswick County
Stonewall Industrial Site Development Project (#4159)
$2,234,460 Requested

Executive Summary: The Stonewall Site Development Project will provide a2 much-needed shovel
teady pad site for Brunswick County. The scope of work will include the final A&E design for the site,
cleating, grading, and all associated construction to make the site "shovel ready". A shovel teady site
offers industrial prospects the ablhty to begin construction as soon as their building plan is approved.
This significantly increases the site's marketability and potential for capital investment and job creation.
This project will position Brunswick County to bettet compete in the highly competitive industrial site
market and promote economic development.

Matching Funds:
° $2,955,000 FY24 Congressional Appropriation for Community Project Funding (requested) to
suppott costs for off-site infrastructure including water and sewet, natural gas and electtic.

Pro]ect Outputs:

e Graded pad site on 21 acte parcel, providing for Tier 5 site readiness chatacterization.

e TFconomic outcome projections for the fitst new business in the patk is 50 new jobs with average
wage of at least $19/hour and $10 million private capital investment.

Staff Comments: Virginia’s Growth Alliance identified the 398-acre Stonewall industrial patk propetty
as a development priotity foi the regional alliance in 2021. A cettification letter from Timmons Group
confirms the Tier 4 site certification for Stonewall. The Commission provided a §27,000 grant in May
2022, to support the due-diligence engineering for this certification. Brunswick County acquired the
property and has invested in engineering master planning and requited infrastructure studies. The
pending request is to support 100% of the 21-acre site development costs for final design costs and
completing grading of a pad-ready site. A $2,234,460 estimate was provided. Targeted sectors include
Advanced Manufacturing, Aviation, Distribution and Logistics, among othets. Staff inquired about how
VGA differentiates prospects targeted for the Stonewall site from the MAMAC mega-site in neighboring
Greensville County. VGA clarified that Stonewall and MAMAC rarely compete for the same projects.
The Stonewall site is targeted for more mid-sized companies with A&E schematics showing buildings
from 50K sq. ft., to mostly 150K to 250K sq. ft. range. In contrast, the Greensville mega-site, with 1600
acres and a 1000-acre contiguous parcel site, is targeted to prospects that will requite 500 ot more acres.
A schematic for a 250,000 square foot building on the proposed graded pad site at Stonewall was
provided.

Wheteas the federal appropriations request was originally for $2.955 million, Congtesswoman Jennifer
McClellan’s office confirmed this has been reduced to $500,000 earmarked for the project and still needs
to pass in the appropriations bill. The pad-ready site can be developed first and the Tier 4
characterization cextifies that all off-site infrastructure requirements can be delivered within 12 months.
Recognizing this and the value of vested interest by multiple fundets in development and marketing of
the site, staff is recommending approval of 50% of the requested $2,234,460 site development costs.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 10

-16-



Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project reveals an ambitious plan and timeline for developing an
additional site option in Southern Vitginia for mid-sized companies. The project’s budget is supported by
a cutrent cost estimate; however, matching funds are slated to be less than requested from a key soutrce.
Given these constraints, staff believes scaling down the project to delivering a pad-ready site presents a
more viable approach to achieving the general aims of the plO]ec:t

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $1, 117 ,230 for 50% of the A&E and

construction costs for development of the pad 1cady site, contingent on securing full matching -
funds for the project.

" Campbell County.

Seneca Commerce Park Grading Project (#4155)
$600,000 Requested

Executive Summary: Campbell County Economic Development plans to leverage awarded grant funds
against existing Campbell County capital improvement funds that are designated for Seneca Commetrce
Park. Without the funds, the budget is insufficient to complete this project. The intention of this project.
is to complete revisions to engineered designs and suppott costs for improvement of a 100,000-square-
foot pad-ready site in Seneca Commerce Park with Virginia Department of Transportation access.

Matching Funds (for revised cost estimate): ,
o - $404,919 Campbell County matching funds are committed

Project Outputs:

® Two sites will be combined and graded for a single patcel with an approximately 8-acre pad ready
site, allowing for a maximum of up to 100,000 squate foot building footprint on the site.
* With completion of site development work, VEDP’s site characterization for Lots J, K, and new L
will be raised from Tier 2, and propetly certified at Tiets 4 and 5.
® Economic development outcomes are projected based on one or two manufacturing companies
+ cteating a total of 80 jobs with $49,000 average salaly, and $3,000,000 ptivate capital investment.

Staff Comments: The Lynchburg Regional Alliance identified Seneca Commerce Park as a regional
prion'ty site for continued development in 2019. Campbell County and the Alliance worked to complete
engineeting due-diligence studies and reports for a Tier 4 site charactetization. The industrial park was
recommended for design and construction of a graded pad for advancement of the site for the region.
This funding request was submitted at the stage where 60% engineeting of was completed. The $1.2
"million was based on a $960,574 cost estimate from Perkins & Orrison (from fall 2022) and with the
county adding a 20% contingency allotment since they were still waiting on final design. A revised
construction cost estimate based on 100% of engineering design and sutveys being completed is
estimated at §809,836. Whereas the budget worksheet identifies TRRC funding for stormwater
management, sewer, and water aspects of site development, and match for clearing and grubbing; the
award recommendation is for up to 50% on all project expénses‘. Based on the revised estimate of
$809,836, staff recommendation is for a grant award of $404,918 for 50% of site development costs.

]

TRRC — FY?24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 11
-17—- .



Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a well-designed implementation plan and
timeline for implementation. The project’s budget is supported by a curtent estimate and is appropriately
scaled to the project. There is sufficient capacity to implement these improvements. The County has
committed 50% matching funds at time of application. It is staff’s assessment that the project is
financially viable and a sound investment for the Commission. :

Staff Recommendation: _
Staff recommends a $404,918 grant award for 50% of approved site development costs.

~ Tourism

- American Civil War Museum

National Advertising Campaign to Encourage Touﬂsm to Southern and Central
Vitginia (#4157); $41,031 Requested

Execuﬂve Summary: National adverttsmg of the tourist attraction that also setves as a Welcome Center
for the Town of Appomattox will bring awateness of toutism opportunities, lodging and hospitality
businesses, museums, and outdoor tecteation in Southern and Central Vitginia. The American
Automobile Association (AAA) advertising campaign provides an oppottunity for national audience
engagement and awareness through their reach to 2.5 million households and over 60 million digital
audience membets from actoss the United States and Canada. Advertising is proposed in both the
national AAA magazine, as well as banner advertisements on the AAA website.

Matching Funds:
$41,031 Match identified to come from individuals and cotporate contributions.

Project Outputs:

Six full page advertisements in bi- monthly national magazine, banner advertisements on AAA website
and two Facebook posts.

Staff Comments: , :

Grant funds are requested for museum personnel, $8,894 for a part-time visitot engagement associate;
and $32,138 for AAA advertising for the American Civil War Museum, with an equal amount of Match
for each from private donations. The applicant proposes that the AAA advertising will reach 2.5 million
households and 60 million digital audience, which appeats to be based on a media package provided by
AAA. The Matketing Plan for the museum that was submitted with the application lacks comprehenslve
research on target markets and diverse methods for reaching them; it only includes the AAA campaign. It
is unclear what is known about cutrent museum visitors, ot what supports this approach as the best
marketing strategy for the museum. Staff questions the viability of a national advertisement campaign
based primarily on full page advertisements for a single destination for having a significant impact on
increasing visitation to the region. The Museum setves as the host site for the Appomattox Town
Welcome Center and is a membet of the regional toutism otganization, Experience Appomattox. Where
the Museum emphasizes that they provide regional tourism promotion, handing out maps and brochures
for other destinations, staff notes that these activities are commonplace for local welcome centets and is
what strong tourism pattners do to support their sector. '

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 _ page 12

_18_.



Staff provided comments on a pre-application and met with Museum staff prior to the application
submission and advised that the project did not meet the eligibility requitements under the RFP for the
Southern Virginia Program. The RFP allows for comisideration of regional tourism marketing campaigns
with the ability to attract measurable visitor tevenues from outside the region. Support for matketing
focused on an individual site is not a funding priority for the Commission. Staff advised that a regional
marketing program with a specific target audience and a more ditect benefit to multiple sites in the region
would be more in line with what could be considered. In May 2023, the Govetnor announced over $3.2
million in matching grant and sponsorship funds awarded under several Vitginia Toutism Cotporation
grant programs, for which the Appomattox Civil War Museum did not submit an application. Both the
VTC VA250 Marketing Leverage Program and the VI'C Marketing Leverage grant programs would be a
more appropriate funding source for marketing funding for the Museum.

Whereas this application is not a funding priotity for the Commission, staff suggest the Museum work
with VT'C’s destination development staff for development of a more robust marketing plan and for
putsuing the VTC funding opportunities. Recognizing concerns for setting precedents for Commission
funds to be used by a tourism destination for operating suppott (staffing); and mote importantly the
precedent for funding an individual tourism destinations marketing budget, staff recommends no award.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability critetia for this project reveals that while the budget is clearly described and
sources for 50% match are identified, the implementation plan is solely reliant on one soutce for
advertising. The measurement of outcomes from the advertising campaign is not cleatly defined, nor
was a sustainability plan provided for ongoing support of this effort beyond the project period. It is
staff’s opinion that this project as proposed will not provide an adequate return on investment.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends no award.

Town of Brodnax
Brodnax Depot Renovation Project (#4160)
$183,507 Requested

Executive Summaty: The Town of Brodnax is requesting TRRC and VDOT funds to renovate the
vacant, historic Depot to setve as a trailhead facility for users of the Tobacco Heritage Ttail (THT).
Funds will be used to petform site worlk, building renovations, and purchase bike racks. This effort is
expected to result in increased visitor use of the THT and increased visitor spending and tax revenue for
the region.

Matching Funds:

o $787,628 federal VDOT —Transpottation Alternatives Program funding -- $314,047 (previous
award) and $473,581 (application intended).
~ e $13,400 from Town of Brodnax toward Southside PDC administrative fees and VDOT chatges

Project Outputs:

e Renovation of 1,754 sq. ft. of abandoned railroad depot in the Town of Brodnax to setve as a
trailhead facility and visitor center for users of the Tobacco Heritage Trail.

Staff Comments: The Commission approved a $121,030 grant (#2975) in January 2015, to suppott this
same project. Initial VDOT funding was split into two awards (a total of $314,047), with the second
grant approved in 2017, allowing A&E design to proceed. The project faced inevitable delays related to
the VDOT program’s process, and further delays due to the architect’s unfamiliarity with the VDOT

TRRC — FY?24 Southern Virginia Progeam — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 ) page 13

-19-



program requitements. The Commission approved a fourth and final extension in January 2022,
providing an extension to June 30, 2023, into a ninth yeat of the project, contingent on the grantee
identifying a soutce for any additional funding needed if the construction bids wete over budget. The
project was bid in December 2022 (no bids received): and re-advertised in March 2023 (one bid of
$830,536, substantially over budget for the available funding). A total of $22,296 in TRRC funds were
used for acquisition and A&E design services and the balance of $98,731 has been de-obligated.

Tlns project is focused on 1edevelopment of the 1860’s railroad depot in the Town of Brodnax, located
along US 58 on the western edge of Brunswick County. The depot is intended to serve as a trailhead
facility for users of the Tobacco Heritage T'rail. The existing THT includes a 3.26 mile paved segment
from Ia Crosse to Brodnax opened in 2005, and a 14-mile gravel segment from Brodnax to
Lawrenceville. As a heavily used section of the THT, thete are no bathroom facilities for 5+ miles in this
atea, which is a common complaint of trail users. The Southside PDC has installed trail counters and -
estimates 8,000 passes annually at Brodnax, with this numbet expected to increase with addition of the
trailhead facility. A THT economic impact study from 2006 is used to project visitor spending. Staff
récognizes the value that redevelopment of the depot will provide to this community and the ability of
the project to suppott increased visitors and visitor spending for Brunswick County.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A treview of key viability critetia for this project indicates a well-designed implementation plan and
timeline. for implementation for a key regional tourism asset. The project’s budget is suppotted by a
cutrrent estimate and is appropriately scaled to the project against VDO'T' match, the requitements for
which have increased the cost of the overall project. There is sufficient capacity to implement these
improvements. VDOT has committed mote than 50% matching funds from a previous award at time of
application, but the completion of this project will hinge on approval of the second VDOT application.
It is staff’s assessment that, should the additional funds be approved, the project is ﬁnancially viable and |
a sound investment for the Commission.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $181,507 grant for up to 20% of
approved project costs, contingent on approval of the $473,581 VDOT award within one year,
and contingent on grantee identifying other funding if construction bids are over budget.

Town of Blackstone

Making Ends Meet (#4165)
$247,217 Requested

Executive Summary: The overall project consists of rehab/renovations to the Harris Memorial Armory
Center for use as a multi-purpose facility, including training programs for hospitality students and an
event center. The job training would consist of hospitality training for the new lodging that has opened
or is planned for the area to serve the recently opened Foreign Affairs Secutity Training Center (FASTC)
facility at Fort Batfoot. The rehab and renovations include lead and asbestos abatement, removal of an .
underground fuel tank, and renovations to the site to make it suitable for the intended use. Patt of the
building would be used by Virginia State University and Vitginia Union University for job training
programs to provide skilled workets for suppott industries needed for the FASTC facility at Fort Barfoot
- namely hospitality (four new hotels are planned for the area to service usets of FASTC). The other
parts of the building would be used as rental space for banquets and receptions. Students in the job
training programs would work at these events as part of their hospitality training, to gain experience
working in the hospitality industry.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — Octobcr 11, 2023 page 14

-20-



Matching Funds:

e $3,482,500 for Construction renovations to buﬂdjng from multiple funding sources including
ARPA, DHCD, VEDP and the Town, and including $581,000 from the Commission.

Project Outputs: ‘
® Equipping areas to be used for hospitality job training and for hosting events.

Staff Comments: ' .

The Commission awatrded a $581,000 grant (#4106) in January 2023 towards the $3.4 million renovation
costs for converting the blighted Hartis Memorial Armory Building into a multi-use

facility. The building is being redeveloped by the Town of Blackstone and designated uses include space
for operation of a hospitality training program identified as a critical need for supporting the expanding
the tourism economy in the Town. The mentioned grant award was contingent on a Hospitality
Education Training Plan with details on cettifications and credentials that would be offered to be
apptoved by the Commission’s executive director prior to disbutsement of grant funds. This is still in

" development. The Town had planned for the USDA Rutal Business Development Grant to be used
toward costs for eqmppmg the facility. After applying to USDA, the Town was informed that USDA’s
involvement would require revised architectural and construction plans following Department of
Historic Resoutces requirements for historic preservation. Not only would this significantly delay the
project schedule, but Commonwealth Architects estimated it would inctease consttruction costs by
approximately $440,000. It is recognized that the equipping costs ate essential for the Town to
accomplish its goals for this facility. Staff suggests the project be Tabled to allow time for progress to be
made on the required hospitality training plan and to revise the scope of the funding request to better
define equipping needs for the training areas in the facility and related cost estimates. The Town has

. confirmed their agreement with the Staff recommendation to Table the application to be reconsidered in
January 2024,

Financial V:ab:btyAssessment

A review of key viability critetia for this project reveals that the budget as presented appears uncleat, and
is missing key items related to the direct funding request. While the applicant presents sufficient
matching funds, it appears that they may requite some additional time to cleatly demonstrate theit
capacity for cartying out the full project and to document anticipated outcomes for the educational

pottion of the project. As presented, it is staff’s assessment that this proposal is not fundable in its
curtent state.

 Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends this application be Tabled.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Vieginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 15

_.21_



Town of Lawrenceville
Tobacco Heritage Trail Trailhead Ramp (#4158)
- $232,287 Requested

Executive Summary: The Town of Lawrenceville is seeking $232,287 in gap funding for the Tobacco
Heritage Trail Trailhead Ramp Project. The purpose of this project is to extend the existing trailhead
termination, curtently at South Street, approximately 550 feet to the existing Tobacco Hetitage Trail
Park. Construction will include an ADA compliant conctete ramp and 550 linear feet of 10-foot-wide
shared use path with a gravel surface to provide better pedestrian & bicycle connectivity between the
trail, the park, and downtown areas.

Matching Funds:
e  $471,812 VDOT TA Set-Aside awatd in Sept 2019
e $117,953 Town of Lawrenceville local match commitment for VDOT award.

Pro]ect Output‘s

® 550 linear feet of trail constructed in gravel base (equlvalent of 0.104 mj_les)
e Handicap accessible ramp constructed

Staff Comments: A primaty critetia for the Commission’s consideration of investment in Toutism
infrastructure is the ability of the project to attract a significant number of national/international visitors
and related visitor spending to the region. A trail counter near this location on the Tohacco Heritage
Trails verified ~ 35 weekly visitors which would include local trail users. The ptimaty argument the
applicant uses for increasing visitation by connecting the trail to the Town owned park would be the
ability to host additional events annually (such as 5K events which cutrently have a range of 25 to 100
patticipants). For the $822,052 total project cost, staff notes that only a small section of trail would be
constructed (550 linear feet, equivalent of 0.104 miles), and a significant amount of the project budget is
for the handicap accessible ramp and associated retaining wall. In this same atea and at the existing
terminus of the trail, staff notes that the Commission has provided two grants—a $205,920 investment
(#2043) for the Turntable Patk and Outdoor Center project, which included establishing a trailhead
facility at the Old Southetn States Building; and a sepatate award of $244,873 (#3038) of which a portion
of the funding was used for the acquisition of 11+ actes at this same location. This latger property
appeats to be a better opportunity for development as a central location for hosting an expanded number
of events. While the proposed project would provide a safer route under Highway 46 for pedesttians to
access the Town owned patk and downtown business district, this alone does not provide a compelling
argument for the projects need and ability to increase visitors and visitor spending to the tegion.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project reveals that the budget appeats to be rather large related
to the length (0.104 miles) and anticipated impact of the improvement on visitor numbers (10%
increase). A 2023 update of the THT Master Plan does not recognize this project in its list of
recommended actions to be carried out over the next five years. Consideting previous investments in this
portion of the trail, staff concludes that this project provides an insufficient cost benefit for additional
proposed investment at this time.

Staff Recommendation; Staff recommends no award.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 16

—-22—



West Piedmont Planning District Commission

Regional Outdoor Recreation Economy Program (#4156)
$118,000 Requested

Executive Summary: The West Piedmont Planning District Commission (WPPDC), which serves .
Franklin, Henty, Patrick and Pittsylvania Counties, the cities of Danville and Mattinsville, and the Town
of Rocky Mount, proposes to develop a regional outdoor economy tecreation program that will
collectively market and brand the West Piedmont region’s outdoor recreation sites and activities as a
notewotthy tourism destination. This project builds on cuttent WPPDC ptogramming in agtitourism and
the “Life in SOVA” brand in partnership with local and tegional pattners such as Friends of Southwest
Vitginia. The program will provide an outdoor recreation economy master plan and economic impact
study, including asset analysis, demographics of visitors to the region’s custrent outdoor recreation sites,
evaluation of oppottunities for enhancements, Jmplovements and expansions, and creation of an asset
inventory to include locations and events offered. The asset inventory will be used to create a regional
website for marketing and promotion as well as provide interactive mapping and itinerary building. The
development of branding and a logo will accompany the marketing strategy.

Matching Funds: -
* $135,000 Appalachian Regional Commission application filed.
e §110,000 US DOC Economic Development Administration application intended.

Project Outputs:

e Creation of an outdoor recreation economy master plan and impact study for West Piedmont
PDC sewlce region, prowdmg an asset inventory and a marketing strategy with brand and logo.

Staff Comments: :

This project reflects that strategy p]anmng identified in the apphcat{on wheleby “strategic suppott eatly is
proven to'create a greater economic momentum.” The ploject is proposed in pattnership with Friends of
Southwest Vitginia (Franklin and Patrick County participate in this alliance) and is modeled after the
outdoot recreation plan created by Friends of SW for the Cumberland Plateau. Use of grant funds are
ptimatily for contractual services with $100K allocated towards master planning and marketing, and
$18K allocated for staff from Friends of SW to assist with project development. A detailed task list for
how the project will be imple'rnented including a regional steeting committee was provided. Multiple
regional marketing goals from the West Piedmont PDC SEDS suppott the project objectives. Where
initial efforts pertain to strategic planning, longer term tourism outcomes plo]ecuons were not estimated.
Staff suggests an award be contingent on the apphcant providing toutism economic impact outcome
pio}ecﬂons following completion of the economic impact study and ptiot to launching the marketing

. campalgn Staff also suggests that securing matching funds be a contingency for the award.

- Financial Wab:]nyAssessment

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a well designed plan and timeline for
implementation fot a regional tourism master planning endeavor. The project’s budget is appropriately
scaled, and the applicant has demonstrated sufficient capacity to carry out the project. Completion of this
project will hinge on approval of intended apphcatlons for matching funds. It is staff’s assessment that,
should the additional funds be approved, the project is financially viable.

Staff Recommendatzon Staff recommends approval of a $118,000 glant contingent on securmg
requited Matching funds; and contingent on toutism economic outcome pm]ectmns being
submitted and approved by TRRC staff prior to launching the marketing campaign.

TRRC — FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11, 2023 page 17

—-23-



OTHER BUSINESS

Virginia Museum of Natural History Foundation :
Virginia Museum of Natural Histoty Outdoor Education Pavilion (#3457)
Current Project Period: 9/19/2018-9/30/2023 — Six Month Extension Requested

Project Summiary: _

The VMNH Foundation is tequesting a final six-month extension for the $75,000 grant approved by the
Special Projects committee in September 2018, to be used toward cost for construction of the VMNH
Outdoor Education Pavilion. The Pavilion is an extension of the museum and will include an open-air
roof, flexible-use outdoor seating and exhibit materials interpreting the nature features of the adjacent J.
Frank Wilson Patk. The project has taken longer than anticipated due to initial funding needing to be
secured for match, followed-by sighiﬁcant delays in the stages of apptoval during the pandemic. In
October 2022, the Commission apptroved a fifth-year extension to September 30, 2023, and at that time
the project was in the final approval process with the Vitginia Department of Genetal Setvices, which
has ovetsight for construction on state owned properties. A total of $25K of grant funds have been
drawn down to support A&FE costs and the $50K balance will be used to suppott construction costs. A
construction contract has been signed and the targeted completion is in Febtuary 2024. The Foundation
is requesting a final six-month extension to allow time for construction to be completed.

Staff Recommendation: :
Staff recommends approval of a final six-month extension to Match 31, 2024,

South Boston IDA
John Randolph Hotel Redevelopment Project (#3289)
Current Project Period: 9/20/2017 — 9/30/2023 --- 7t Year Extension Requested

Project Summaty: ,

This. $600,000 grant from September 2017, to support A&E and renovations costs for redevelopment of
the John Randolph Hotel property owned by the South Boston IDA. In September 2021 the
Commission approved a sixth-yeat extension to September 30, 2023. There remains a balance of
$524,247 on the TRRC ptoject account to suppott tenovations. The grant was initially delayed when the
otiginal operator/developer pulled out of the project: The Town reached an agreement with 2 new
developet, The Rook Hotels, in Aptil 2022. They plan to convert the property into a boutique hotel with
at least 30 rooms, a restaurant and a rooftop bar. Total renovation costs ate now $14.5 million, and
financing includes a IRF grant/loan for $3.0 million which was secured in December 2022, historic and
new matket tax credits for $4.95 million, a $4.0 million ptivate loan secured by the Town of South
Boston, and private investment of $2.1 million. Replacement of the roof was started in August 2023, and
complete construction of the hotel renovation is targeted for November 2024, Whereas the lease
agreement and performance agreement provided to the Commission for apptoval provided for a $1.00
putchase option (or $350I< as the default purchase option), the Commission has required an addendum
to the lease for a Right to Reimbursement to be filed if the purchase option is executed to protect the
Commission secutity interest in the property. |

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of a seventh-year extension to September 30, 2024.

TRRC - FY24 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 11,2023 pagc 18

-24-



EDUCATION COMMITTEE

—-25-



= In-Person Meeting »

AGENDA
EDUCATION COMMITTEE

The Inn at Blackstone
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA
Wednesday, October 11, 2023
2:45 P.M.

The public may remotely participate in this meeting By accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: 742 579 325#.

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Louise Lucas, Vice Chair
Call of the Roll i The Hon. James Campos, Acting Executive Director

Approval of the 5/17/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

FY2024 Competitive Education applications Ms. Vicki Humphreys, Grants Director

VDH Talent Attraction program " Ms. Stephanie Kim, Director of Finance
Other Business Myr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Adjournment

._.2 6._.



FY24 Competitive Education
Staff Summaries & Recommendations

The Commission received 12 applications by the July 28, 2023 deadline for the FY24 Competitive
Education program, one of which was withdrawn and will not be considered at this time. The applications

ate grouped below by focus atea. The Education Committee will act on these applications at its meeting
scheduled for October 11, 2023, at 2:45 p.m. '

R;q Organization Project Title

Request Staff
Amount Recommendation

Gl Vi Comynny CVCC Advanced Manufacturing with

4176 College Educational ; $220,878 $220,878
Foundation Energy Technology Expansion

4178 Ct?ntl:al Virginia Plannmg ACA Classical & CTE Institute Welding $318,255 $318255
District Commission Program

Advanced Manufacturing Workforce Training Subtotal (2 requests): $ 539,133 $ 539,133

‘High School Equivalency Program

Req T i . Request Staff
4 Organization Project Title oot  Recommendafion
Washington County Public
School System Dba Mount Southwest Virginia RACE to :
0¥ Ropess Resional Adils GED/NEDP Progtam H0000 HA0.000
Education Program .
Wotkforce Training Progtams Subtotal (1 request): $ 140,000 $ 140,000

v . ' Request Staff
- P E i
# Wrganizarion tojectlate Amount Recommendation
Patrick & Henry Community L . : ‘
4171 College Foundation Healthcare Training Expansion $149,140 $149,140
~ - . SWCC's EquipEMT: Strengthening
4170 Southwest Visginia Emergency Medical Training through $71,206 $71,206
Community College .
Advanced Equipment
Southwest Virginia Higher e . . .
. _ Southwest Virginia Regional Simulation _
4177 Educathn Center Tasls B Rliusicgessssdh Al el ETiulih $600,000 $600,000
Foundation :
Post-Secondary Programs with a focus in STEM-H (3 requests) $ 820,340 $ 820,346
-TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 1

-27—



R;q Organization Project Title

Request Staff
Amount Recommendation

puissilie Cenimusiiy Collsge Danville Community College's Class-B

4179 Educational Foundation, Tnc, Commetcial Drivet's License Non-Credit $291,000 $233,081
7 ‘ Workforce Program
i & Edaeaﬂeﬂ—P&fhways . ‘ i WHLEERITER LN
gy ountn Empie Heavy Equipment Operatot Progt $92,705 $92.705
® Community College eavy Equipment Operator Progtam : %
Southside Virginia . P e
$i72 CommunityGollese Accelerating Truck Driver Training at $316,000 $316,000
: SVCC
Foundation .
Virginia Highlands ;
4173  Community College VHCC Diesel Technology Expansion $202,300 $202,300
Educational Foundation
. o Wytheville Community College WEST —
aize  ytesille Comtmmnif Workforce, Education, & Skills Training $277,000 $277,000
College :
Centet
Workforce Training Programs Sub-Total (6 requests): $1,929,005 $1,121,086
TOTAL (12 requests) $3,428,484 $2,620,565

Central Virginia Community College Educational Foundation, Inc.
CVCC Advanced Manufacturing with Enetgy Technology Expansion (#4176)
$220,877.86 Requested

Project Summary: CVCC is recognized as the leading workforce trainer throughout the Central Vitginia
region and is committed to providing training that meets current workforce demand, accommodating
student needs for both traditionally and non-traditionally timed instruction, and providing instruction on
state-of-the-att equipment that meets evolving workforce standards. To satisfy this commitment, CVCC
requests funds to purchase and install equipment for our Advanced Manufacturing Workforce Training
progtams that will: 1) expand program capacity to meet growing enrollment in response to increased
employet needs in high-demand fields; and 2) advance training of CVCC’s Advanced Manufacturing
students on state-of-the-art equipment that accurately simulates their future work environment so they can
complete their program job-ready and gain expetience that will transfet to the industties in the tegion that
they will setve upon completion.

TRRC - FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 2

-



Matching Funds:
® $234,463.26 private company and private foundation funding

Project Outputs;
Total students completing credentials annually is anticipated to increase by 45, from 60 to 105:
¢ Mechatronics Associates — increase by 5 annually, from 20 to 25
e Machine Tools CSC — inctease by 10 annually, from 28 to 38
® Nuclear Technology Associates, increase by 5 annually, from 3 to 8
e Industrial Maintenance CSC — increase by 23 annually, from 1 to 24
e Computer and Electronics Technology Associates — increase by 2 annually, from 8 to 10

Staff Comments:

Grant funds are requested to expand CVCC’s Mechatronics and Machine Tools Progtam suppotting
equipment purchases for advanced manufacturing workforce programs. This project supports the
Lynchburg region’s manufacturing sector including companies that are part of a nuclear enetgy hub. The
training programs will simulate the work environment and allow for an expansion in class size. An itemized
equipment list, a strong explanation of the need for the requested equipment and cost estimates were
provided. Education outcomes project at least 10% more students entrolled annually. A letter from the
Central Virginia Workforce Development Board identified a regional demand for 1,480 production workets
with 396 openings specific to metal fabrication. A sample list of five employets with active job listings
identified a current need for 376 production workers. A list of high demand occupations épeciﬁcaﬂy for the
nuclear energy hub was included and shows entry level salaries ranging from $50,900 to $80,500. Employer
letters supporting the project were from Deltra Stra, BWXT, Framatone, American Hofmann Corporation,
and AMB, Inc.

Financial Viability Assessment: : ,

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates that it is a sound investment. The project budget
is detailed, reasonable and backed up with cutrent quotes for requested equipment. Half of the necessaty
matching funds have been committed at the time of the application, and the rest is sought through an
application to a private foundation. The applicant has sufficient capacity to deliver the project to fruition,
and a marketing plan outlines development of a pipeline of students into training for these high-demand,
well-paying positions. It is staff’s conclusion that the project is viable as presented.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $220,877.86 grant award.

Central Virginia Planning District Commission
ACA Classical & CTE lnstitute Welding Program (#4178)
$318,255.00 Requested

Project Summary: Appomattox County Government, Appomattox Christian Academy (ACA), and
Central Virginia Community College (CVCC) are pattnering to create the ACA Classical & CTE Academy.
The partners are renovating, upfitting, and equipping the historic Catver-Price School in the town of
Appomattox to include educational opportunities never befote available in the county. Coming online for
the 2023-2024 academic year, Phase 1 will include welding, emergency medical technician training, and
petforming atts. The County is providing the building. ACA is renovating and upfitting the space as well as

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 3

—-29—



operating classical education programming, CVCC will expand its footprint in Appomattox to operate
career and technical education for dual-enrollment students, adult certificate candidates, and workforce
training patticipants alike. The Institute will house 22 welding booths and fabrication space that will simulate
real-world working environments. The welding program will better prepate its graduates for employment
with manufacturers and producers vital to the economy of Central Virginia.

Matching Funds:
e $15,077 approved by Appomattox County EDA
e $17,800 approved by Dominion Energy
o  $214,200 commitment by Central Vitginia Community College
e $400,663.50 contribution from Appomattox Christian Academy
e $500,000 application to Go Vitginia Region 2 |
o  $16,945 in-kind contribution for donated materials and labor

Project Outputs:

Welding enrollment is projected to increase by 39 students annually, from a baseline of 143 to 182 total
students entolled annually. An additional 40 certifications/ctredentials are pro]ected

e Welding Plus CSC — increase of 5 annually, from 7 to 11
e Welding Fundamentals CSC — increase of 25 annually, from 44 to 70
e Welding Technology Cettificate — increase of 10 annually, from 18 to 28

Staff Comments:

The Central Virginia PDC provides a strong application supporting the welding sector, one of the
Lynchburg region’s most important base industries. This request suppotts the Appomattox Christian
Academy’s ACA Classical and CTE Institute plans for establishing a 22-booth welding and fabrication
space. The location is in the historic Catver Price school in the Town of Appomattox. The plans for this
new training facility have developed from a strong partnership between Appomattox Christian Academy,
Appomattox County, and Central Virginia Community College who are committed to the siiccess of the
'CTE Institute. CVSS will operate the career and technical education programs providing expanded
opportunities for adult workforce certifications and dual enrollment to high school students. Grant funding
would be used for equipping costs for welding training space, and for an additional six welding booths.

Seven private sector employer letters were submitted, along with other letters of support from organizations
in the region.

Financial Viability Assessment: -

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates it is a well-designed, highly ach_levable endeavor
with strong support and involvement from the community. The project budget is detailed, reasonable and
backed up with current quotes for requested equipment. The project has more than the minimum requited
match funding committed at the time of the application, and additional funds needed to suppott necessary
capacity are sought through an application to Go Vitginia. Itis staff’s conclusion that the project shows
great promise and provides very good benefit for the cost.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $318,255 grant award.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 4

-30-



ﬁ;’f|u)| .: !- [\u \.! rs'r"n

Washington County Public School System Dba Mount Rogers Regional Adult
Education Program

Southwest Virginia RACE to GED/NEDP Program (#4169)
$140,000.00 Requested '

Project Summary: Commission funds are requested to provide financial assistance for high school
equivalency testing in 16 Southwest region localities for a three-year period. There ate currently two high
school equivalency paths for adults, the GED and the National External Diploma Program (NEDP), both
of which are included in the scope of this application. For those seeking a GED, TRRC funds will cover the
cost of both on-demand practice testing and the GED test. Students on the NEDP track will receive tuition
assistance. Commission funds will also cover the cost of the National Career Readiness Cettificate (INCRC)

as well as NCRC Program site license fees. Support for matketing the program is also included in the
application’s budget.

Matching Funds:

Matching funds will be requested from the three regional adult education programs served by this project
(Wise County Public Schools — Race 1 (§46,666.62), Russell County Public Schools — SW Regional Adult
Education ($46,933.32), and Washington County Public Schools — Mount Rogers Adult Education
($46,800). These contributions reflect federal funds used to pay patt time instructors who wotk with
students in the testing pipeline.

Project Outputs:
e Annual enrollment across the three adult education regions will increase by 40 (120 over the three-
year grant petiod) '
o The following credentials will be awarded each year:
- GED-110
- NEDP-2
- NCRC - 160
‘Staff Comments:

The Commission has a long history of supporting this regional partnership of thtee adult education
programs serving 16 localities in SWVA. Since 2004, ten TRRC awatds totaling over $1.3 million, have
assisted thousands of residents obtain high school equivalency diplomas. The program is an important tool
used by the regional adult education network to recruit potential students into the pipeline and through to a
successful GED ot NEPD test. The application notes that 71% of those aged 24-64 yeats without a high
school diploma are not patticipating in the labor force. Unfortunately, due to the pandemic and other
factots, participation has declined in recent years. The last Commission grant ended in May 2022 and, for
the first time in neatly two decades, financial assistance was not available. The current application seelks to
reestablish this important resource and to increase the number of students participating-in the program. For
the first time, TRRC funds have been requested for marketing support which was previously covered by
matching funds. Although Staff recognizes the need for a robust matketing plan to inform residents of the
availability of services, there are questions about the effectiveness of elements of the plan (yard signs,
bannets, posters, etc.). The plan is similar to the one presented for a similar project underway in Southetn
Vitginia. If marketing suppozt will be included in future applications, it is impoztant that the plan be

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 5

-31-



evaluated to determine its effectiveness. As a condition of this award, the grantee will be requited to track
the referral source of each participant and include this information with final reporting at the end of the
grant petiod.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability ctiteria for this project teveals a proven model by an applicant with a strong track
record of project implementation. The budget is detailed, reasonable and provides for sufficient capacity to
catty out the project. The financial viability of the project hinges on the approval of sufficient match
funding, which was not committed at the time of application. Therefore, the placement of a contingency on
approval of matching funds is recommended.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends a grant award of $140,000 contingent upon the
following: 1) verification that all matching funds are approved and available, and 2) the grantee will
track the referral source for each participant and report the information at the end of the project to
evaluate effectiveness of marketing methods.

Patrick & Henry Community College Foundation
Healthcare Training Expansion (#4171)
$149,140.00 Requested

Executive Summary: P&HCC is seeking assistance with expanding healthcare training capacity including
Nurse Aide, Clinical Medical Assistant, Medication Aide, and Phlebotomy Technician training, These
programs lead to short term credentials that quickly allow students to enter health careets in high demand in
the region. The need for expansion is twofold. First, P&HCC’s Nurse Aide instruction is at capacity with a
growing list of interested students. To expand the number of classes offered, P&HCC requites an additional
instructor. Second, The Franklin Center has a growing waitlist of students intetested in putsuing Nurse Aide
and other healthcare training and will partner with P&HCC to offer coutses on site in Franklin County. If
an additional instructor is hired, P&HCC will be able to expand training for these high-demand healthcare
offerings both in number of students served and in the service locations offered.

Matching Funds:
e $130,909 state funding provided by Patrick & Henry Community College
e  $20,000 in-kind from The Franklin Center for use of training laboratory and office space.

Project Outputs:
e Nurse Aide Certification- increase of 29 credentials annually, from 36 to 65
e Certified Clinical Medical Assistant- increase of 15 credentials, from 70 to 85
e Certified Medication Aide- increase of 21 credentials, from 0 to 21
e Certified Phlebotomy Technician- inctease of 17 credentials, from 28 to 45
TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recomrﬁendations — October 2023 page 6

-32-



Staff Comments: _

This project expands on a successful Nurse Aide program that the Commission helped to establish,
extending short-term credentials for students to enter high demand health cate careets. An additional
instructor will allow the College to address capacity limitation at P&HCC’s main campus and expansion to a
second location in Franklin County. Both locations cutrently have a wait list. Grant funds will support a
pottion of the salaty for the additional healthcare instructor in the first two years, 70% in year one and 50%
in year two. The Vitginia Board of Nursing limits the instructor to student ratio to 1:10; and the instructor is
required priot to consideration of approval of the second training location at The Franklin Center. The
applicant reported 329 nurse aid job advertisements in their setvice region; and confirmation of employet
demand was provided for LifePoint Hospitals, Martinsville Health and Rehab, Catillion Clinic, and Sovah
Health of Martinsville.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project reveals a proven model by an applicant with a sttong track
record of project implementation. A detailed budget was provided and a pro-forma analysis demonstrating
sustainability following the start-up period. Requited match is fully committed at the time of application.
The evidence of a wait list at both locations indicates that the training has significant demand, and the
curtent matrket shows ample employment opportunities for graduates. Staff has concluded that this project
is financially viable and a solid investment for the Commission.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $149,140 grant award.

Southwest Virginia Community College

SWCC's EquipEMT: St engthemng Emergency Medical ﬁﬂmtng rhxough Advanced
Equipment (#4170)
$71,206.00 Requested

- Project Summary: Southwest Virginia Community College requests funding to suppozt the purchase of
training equipment to setve its Emergency Medical Services (EMS) program. The college operates the
program at the SWCC campus as well as at Wytheville Community College. The proposed equipment will
setve the programs at both locations. The application is seeking TRRC support for 50% ($71,2006) of the
cost of multiple simulation manikins and related equipment including Atlas ALS Manikins with REALIT
360 I-Simulate (5), TruMan TraumaX systems (2), Newborn PEDI §109.PK manikin (1), 1-yeat-old
Pediatric Airway Trainers(2), and Atlas ALS Manikins (3).

Matching Funds: ‘

The Southwest Community College Educational Foundation will conttibute $37,000 to be used for
equipment purchases. The applicant will also use Perkins Federal Grant Funding (§34,2006) to directly match
TRRC funds for equipment putchases.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 7

._.33._.



Project Outputs:

® The project will result in a 20% entollment increase in three program tracks (the figures reflect
enrollment across both the main campus and the WCC campus sites).
- AAS — Emergency Medical Setvices Technology (inctease of 6)
- CSC — Advanced Emergency Medical Technician (inctease of 3)
— CSC — Basic EMT Skills (inctease of 6) '

Staff Comments:

Southwest Community College and Wytheville Community College along with Mountain Empire
Community College and Virginia Highlands Community College comptise the Southwest Vitginia
Paramedic Program (SVPP). Collectively, this is the only emetgency medical setvice program west of
Radford and serves adult learners from around the region who wish to entet these career paths. Over the
next seven yeats the need for EMTs is expected to grow by 11%. The demand fot Paramedics is expected to
gtow by 14%. The application notes 14 EMS crews in Southwest Virginia with available positions during the
next year. There is a need for 103 EMT positions, 27 Advanced EMT, and 56 paramedics.

Like other healthcare programs, the opportunity for clinical learning oppottunities is extremely limited. -
Much of the “hands on” training must be done in a simulated healthcare setting. Unlike other simulation
equipment available throughout the region which simulate a wide vatiety of medical situation, the equipment
tequested in this proposal is targeted to simulating the traumatic and emetgency events typical for those in
these career fields. These include simulations focused on airway, breathing, cardiac, vascular, and
gastrointestinal events in both adults and pediatric patients. This project will enhance the education
experience for students and will suppott a vety modest inctease in enrollment across both sites. These
numbers are often reflective of the capacity of these programs. Additional outcomes will be realized over
the useful life of the equipment as additional cohotts are able to utilize the equipment.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this indicates a viable project by an applicant with a strong track record
of project implementation. A detailed budget was provided as well as a pro-forma analysis demonstrating
sustainability of the program. Required match is fully committed at the time of application. Itis the only
program training EMTs in this section of the region and has considerable demand. It is staff’s conclusion
that this project would be a positive investment for the Commission for this impottant line of work.

Staff Recommendation: Staff tecommends approval of a $71,206 grant award.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 8

—-34-



Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center Foundation

Southwest Vitginia Regional Simulation Lab for Nursing and Allied Health (#4177)
$600,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission funds are requested to suppott the development of the Southwest Vitginia
Regional Simulation Lab located at the Southwest Vitginia Higher Education Center. The 1,200 sq. ft. lab
will support several existing healthcare programs and will provide additional clinical training space for allied
health and nursing cateer pathways. Commission funds will be used for equipment putchases ($426,000),
including high, medium and low fidelity adult and pediatric manikins, audio visual equipment, and other
items required for simulated medical facilities (hospital toom, home cate and simulated ambulance).
Commission funds will also be used for the renovation of space at the HEC ($173,730) to house the Lab.
Matching funds from a variety of sources will be used for equipment, supplies, and operating suppott.

Matching Funds:

Matching funds for the development of the lab will be contributed from the Wellspring Foundation
($400,000 — approved), Appalachian Regional Commission ($300,000 - apptroved), Smyth County
Community Foundation ($25,000 — application filed). The Southwest Vitginia Higher Education Center
($75,000) and its Foundation ($100,000) have each committed funding for operational suppott for staffing

and supplies. Funding from The A. Linwood Holton Governot’s School ($25,000) will also be used fot
operational suppott. '

Project Outputs:

e The lab is anticipated to serve approximately 450 students, across several programs, annually. These
progtams include: ‘
- A. Linwood Holton Govetnot's School - 170 students
- Emory & Henty College's "lab school" - 60 students
— RN to BSN and Family Nurse Practitioner programs (King University, Radford University,
and UVA-Wise) — 52 students
- Appalachian College of Pharmacy - Doctorate of Pharmacy - 42 students
- EMT/EMS credentials through the Southwest Vitginia Paramedic Education progtam - 100
students
—  Vitginia Commonwealth University:
" Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists (CRNA) and Doctot of Nutse Anesthesia
(DNAP) -20 students
®  (Clinical Lab Technician - 6 students

Staff Comments:

The need for expanded clinical opporttunities is a well-known issue for healthcare programs in the region.
Clinical opportunities for students, in real world healthcate settings, are extremely limited. Simulation labs,
such as the one under development at the SWCA HEC, serve an important role for programs by providing
spaces that allow students to practice clinical decision-making skills in a controlled, life-like environment.
The Commission has supported the establishment of individual simulation labs for several, if not all, of the
region’s community college and four-year educational institutions. Although these are high quality and well
used facilities, the demand for simulated clinical training opportunities continues to exceed the capacity of
these spaces. The proposed regional lab will provide additional capacity for programs actoss the region
while creating space for programs, such as those housed at the Higher Education Centet, which do not
cuttently have a dedicated lab. The application noted eleven existing otganizations and programs likely to

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 9

—-35-



use the facility. These include regional educational programs as well as healthcare organizations. The Higher
Education Center has a long track record of successfully housing educational programs at all stages of the
career pipeline, from K-12 through graduate level courses. The addition of the simulation lab, along with the
Virtual Cadaver Lab supported by TRRC last year, will allow the HEC to offer a premium multi-disciplinary
training expetience for patticipants. '

Because this facility serves existing training programs, it is not likely to result in substantial new educational
outcomes (new degrees or credentials) however it will provide essential training opportunities to the region’s
allied health and nursing pipelines. Thete is vety strong demand for healthcare providers in all positions and
at all levels. This application documented 1,390 open positions with Ballad Health (349 of those in SWVA),
52 openings with Holston Medical Group, and 178 openings with Catilion Clinic within Vitginia. Health
care fields typically pay above average wages.

Although the requested amount ($600,000) is quite large relative to other tequests received duting this
funding round, the amount is 38% of the estimated $1,600,000 total project cost. The applicant will
supplement TRRC funds with a variety of local, state, federal, and private funding sources to fully construct,
equip, operate and sustain the lab. The HEC’s educational pattners pay annual operating fees to the Center.
These fees will now include usage of the Lab. Additional users, such as area health systems, will also have
access to the Lab will allow the Lab to generate a small amount of revenue. Because the priotity will be to
first serve educational partners, it is difficult to estimate the amount of revenue from these usets.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a well-designed model by an applicant with a
strong track record of project implementation. A detailed budget was provided and was backed up with
recent vendor quotes. $900,000 of the declared match of $1,000,000 is fully committed at the time of
application. The project is cost-effective as it allows access to high-tech health cate simulation lab for
several educational and training organizations across the region. Staff has concluded that this project is
financially viable and a solid investment for the Commission, especially in a time whete there is a shottage
of nurses and other health care providers.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $600,000 grant award.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 10

—-3p6—



Danville Community College Educational Foundation, Inc.

- Danville Community College's Class-B Commercial Driver's License Non-Credit
Workforce Program (#4179)

$291,000.00 Requested

Project Summaty: In response to the college's community pattners, Danville Community College (DCC)
created a Class A Commercial Driver’s License (CDL A) duting the spring 2023 semester. Since creating
the CDL A program, DCC’s Workforce Services has received many tequests from community partnets to
create a Class B Commercial Driver’s License (CDL B) progtam to meet area needs. This proposal for
funding is in direct response to the needs exptessed by businesses and industries in the DCC service region.
DCC has located and preliminatily secured a potential site in the City of Danville to offer the CDL B
training. DCC intends to place a modulat building on this site which would provide an office for a faculty
membet, a classtoom for instruction, an onsite bathroom for the instructor and students and additional
space to house a new CDL Simulator designated for CDL B students. This modulat building would be
temperature controlled to allow for year-round CDL B training oppottunities.

Matching Funds:
* $343,000 Danville Community College - Suppott for new staff position, supplies, continuous
charges, and equipment during 2-year start-up period.
* $15,000 City of Danville — To be requested fot site development costs

Project Outputs:

e Hstablish new Class B CDL program with modular classroom and simulator
e Class B Commercial Driver’s License — 60 credentials awarded annually

Staff Comments: ;

DCC is requesting grant funds for purchase of a 24’ X 50’ mobile modulat classroom ($122,081), and a
CDL B simulator with related training setvices ($111,000), which is requited for start-up of a new Class B
CDL progtam. Matching funds will suppott other start-up costs for the program including hiring a new
instructor, site improvements, equipment, supplies and operating costs. This project expands on the Class A
CDL ptogram launched in the spring in partnership with Patrick & Henty Community College. This short-
term wotkforce credential can be completed within 3 weeks providing wotkforce opportunities for jobs with
avetrage wages ranging from $15 to $40 per hour (depending on size of company, mileage compensation and
benefits). The proposed location for the Class B CDL program is on an available propetty owned by the
City of Danville located near DCC’s main campus that meets concrete pad size and load requitements for
the program. A draft lease agreement for a 5-year term renewable annually was provided. TRRC staff
requested detailed cost-estimates be provided for both a lease and putchase option for the modular
classroom to evaluate if leasing was a more cost-effective option. An additional $29,081 of grant funds
would be needed for the purchase option at $122,081, providing longer term use of the classroom facility,
compated to $93,000 for a 3-year lease. The cost estimate from Boxx Modulat for putchasing the modular
classtoom was less than originally budgeted, which reduced the funding request to $233,081.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 11

_37_



DCC identified six privately owned businesses with identified need to fill 52 positions immediately
(Commonwealth Document Management, Danville Distributing Company, Fitst Piedmont Cotporation,
Foster Fuels, Seller Brothers construction & Excavation, Supply Resoutces/Thtive Logistics); and listed
several other private employets and public school systems in the DCC setvice atea with expressed need to
hire CDL B licensed drivers. Virginia DMV is now requiting that all new Vitginia CDL dtivets complete an
approved Virginia CDL driver education coutse, and licenses are issued based on the class and type of
commercial license. No other community colleges within a one-hour drive are currently offering the Class B
CDL certification training program. DCC plans to offet up to ten cohotts annually, serving between 60-75
participants, and estimates 60 students will complete the program and receive CDL B certifications annually.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates it is a highly achievable endeavor with strong
support and involvement from the community. The project budget is detailed, reasonable and backed up
with current quotes for requested equipment. The project has more than the minimum required match
funding committed at the time of the application. It is staff’s conclusion that the gtant would be a solid
investment for the Commission and will be an asset to employets in need of these dtivers.

Staf'f Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $233,081 grant award including costs for
purchase of the mobile modular classroom.

Mountain Empire Community College
Heavy Equipment Operator Program (#4175)
$92,705.00 Requested

Project Summary: Mountain Empire Community College (MECC) seeks $92,705 in funding to suppott
the establishment of a Heavy Equipment Operator II training program at MECC’s Center for Wotkforce
and Innovation of Appalachia. This training program is put forward to meet regional and state demand for
skilled workers in construction industries. Commission funds will be used to purchase equipment and
supplies including a Bobcat Telehandler, Safety Cones and Batrels, and a Laser Level. This equipment is
required for the NCCER HEO Level II training. The College is cutrently developing a HEO Level I
program that will provide a pipeline of students for the Level II training. The first HEO I cohort is
scheduled to begin in January 2024. HEO II will begin in July 2024.

Matching Funds:

The applicant will utilize a portion of an existing AMLER grant (§44,831) to match the TRRC request.
These funds will be used for renovations to the CWIA Instructional Space required for the program. This
amount was calculated based upon the square footage dedicated for this program. A John Deere Compact
Utility Tractor & Tiller was putrchased in August 2023. This equipment was tequited for the HEO I
Program scheduled to begin January 2024. Upon review, TRRC staff determined that the purchase ($40,940)
may serve as cash match for this application. Mountain Empire will also contribute instructional supplies
(86,934) required for Pearson Proforma & NCCER instruction/ testing.

Project Outputs:

e Twenty students will enroll in HEO II annually with 15 completing the program. These students will
also earn the following credentials: HEO I (prerequisite), NCCER Core, NCCER Equipment
Operator Level I, and VDOT Work Zone Flagger Certification.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 12

._.38_.



Staff Comments:

This request supports MECC’s ongoing effort to establish its Center for Workfotce and Innovation in
Appalachia (CWIA). This facility, a former elementary school, houses several of MECC’s training programs
including Lineman, CDL, Dental Assisting, and the newly cteated Precision Machining program. Each of
these programs have received TRRC funding in recent years. Since 2018 the Commission has provided
neatly $1.1 million to support renovations and program related equipment and othet expenses. The
establishment of the CWIA has allowed MECC to create and expand programs which, due to space
constraints, could not be accommodated at the main campus.

Both the Heavy Equipment Operator Level I and Level II programs are noncredit, short-term credentials
available through the VCCS FastForward Program. Employees with HEO certifications ate in very high
demand. The application notes that heavy equipment operators are requited on multiple types of job sites
including those performing construction, mining, and/ or excavation work. Several local employers
including Glass Machinery, McFall Excavating, Elk Knob, Inc. and Cotonado Coal, provided letters of

support documenting the need for these candidates. Compensation for Heavy Equipment Operators
averages §41,900 annually.

Financial Viability Assessment: :

A review of key viability critetia for this project indicates it is a viable endeavor that will benefit the atea’s
construction firms with skilled, cettified workers. The project budget is detailed, reasonable and backed up
with current quotes for requested equipment. The project sufficient match funding committed at the time of
the application, which will be used towards renovating space for the program’s expansion. It is stafPs
conclusion that the project shows great promise and provides a positive benefit for the cost.

Staff Recommendation: Staff tecommends approval of a $92,705 grant award.

Southside Virginia Community College Foundation
Accelerating Truck Driver Training at SVCC (#4172)
$316,000.00 Requested

Executive Summary: Southside Virginia Community College is proposing an expansion to its Truck
Driver Training program. The truck driving industry is rapidly changing and evolving in both the state and
the nation. Demand for truck drivers is at an all-time high. In response to increased workforce demand and
legislation requiring CDL test-takers to complete coutsework through a cettified training facﬂ.lty SVCC
proposes adding an additional four trucks and four trailets to its fleet and hiting an additional truck driver
training instructor. Two of the trucks and trailers (provided by SVCC match) will replace outdated
equipment in SVCC’s existing fleet, improving safety and the quality of instruction. The additional two
trucks and trailers requested through TRRC Competitive Education funding will be used to expand the fleet
and inctrease the capacity of the program. The expansion will necessitate an additional instructot, which will
be covered by SVCC match.,

Matching Funds:

o  $402,940 from Southside Vugima Community College to fund additional instructor and purchase
two replacement tractot-trailers for current fleet

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 13

—-39-



Project Outputs:

e Replacement of outdated equipment and addition of two tractor-trailers to expand fleet and access
to the training program

e Increase number of cohorts from 12 to 14, with 24 additional credentials awarded annually to bring
total program completions projected to 206 each year

Staff Comments:

Southside Vitginia Community College’s Truck Driver Training (TD'T) school is the only TDT program
that exists within SVCC’s 4,200 square mile service area. Similar programs exist in Richmond and Danville.
However, many students must drive long distances to access these programs. Furthermote, many students
within the setrvice area experience poverty and inadequate access to transpottation, making these

neighboring programs inaccessible for many individuals. SVCC has provided truck driver training since
1996.

There is high demand for qualified, certified tractor-trailer drivers in the region. The Vitginia Employment
Commission repotts that by 2030, the industry “Transportation and Material Moving Occupations” is
projected to increase by neatly 15% within the Commonwealth. The Vitginia Trucking Association
estimated that the driver shortage in Virginia is approximately 1,800. The demand for certified CDL training
programs is even greater, because of the impact of the Federal Motor Cattier Safety Administration’s
mandate in February 2022 requiring entry level CDL drivers to have formal training. SVCC has established
relationships with over 70 employers that actively hire TDT graduates, who report annual salaties between
$60,000 - $75,000 plus benefits.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability critetia for this project reveals a solid, sustainable model by an applicant with a
strong track record of project implementation. A detailed budget was provided with documentation, and
required match is fully committed at the time of application. The proposal demonstrated that the training
has significant demand, and the current market shows ample employment opportunities for graduates. Staff
has concluded that this project is financially viable and a good investment for the Commission.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $316,000 grant award.

Virginia Highlands Community College Educational Foundation
VHCC Diesel Technology Expansion (#4173)
$202,300.00 Requested

Project Summary: Vitginia Highlands Community College seeks funding to expand its diesel technology
programming. Commission funds ($202,300) will be used to purchase equipment including high-capacity lift

" systems, heavy duty forklifts, high weight capacity diesel engine stands, a live front axle with ait disc brake
assembly, and a latge tire balancing apparatus. This equipment will allow VHCC to modernize its existing
diesel technology related programs (Diesel Technology CSC, Diesel Technology AAS, and Commercial
Driver’s License) to meet cutrent standatrds. Two new programs will be created as a result of the project.
Heavy Equipment Operator (HEO) Levels I and IT will added to the College’s Fast Forward program
offerings. Matching funds will be used to putchase additional equipment including necessaty to replace
worn and obsolete equipment with modern industry standard items.

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 14

—-40-



Matching Funds: Matching funds will be provided by VHCC through VCCS Equipment Trust Funds
Allocation ($159,300) and Catl D. Perkins Funding Allocation ($43,000)

Project Outputs:

® The ptroject will result in the expansion of three programs, Diesel Technology AAS, Diesel

Technology CSC, and CDL. Two new programs, HEO I and HEO II, will be cteated. The
following credentials will be completed annually.

— Diesel Technology CSC — 12 (inctease of 4)

 — Diesel Technology AAS — 5 (increase of 3)

- HEOI-10

- HEOII-10

— CDL - 70 (increase of 20)

Staff Comments: - '

Vitginia Highlands Community College is cutrently the only community college location in the region that
offers Diesel Technology programs that lead to an academic credential (Diesel Technology CSC and Diesel
Technology AAS). Other existing programs, such as the one offered by Southwest Virginia Community
College, ate non-credit programs. VHCC has opetated these programs since 2008 at off campus locations.
The programs will move on campus once construction of the new Advanced Workforce and Technology
Center is complete. The funding requested in this application will allow the college to expand its course
offerings to include HEO I and II credentials while also enhancing the quality of the existing Diesel

Technology programs through the purchase of modern, industty standard equipment. Fach student will be
provided the opportunity to eatn multiple credentials.

The project will result in 52 additional credentials awarded each year. The majority of these can be attributed
to the new HEO programs (20) and CDL (20). The Diesel Technology Programs will both see an inctease
of approximately 6 students entolled in each of the CSC and AAS programs. According to VHCC’s internal
data, 89% of students enrolled in the CSC coutse will successfully complete and earn the credential however
a much smaller number will complete the AAS degtee. When questioned about the low completion rate,
VHCC provided information indicating that, due to the extremely high demand for diesel trained
employees, 75% of students are employed in the field before they even complete the CSC trainings. Many
students chose to enter employment and do not continue to complete an associate degree. The application
noted an anticipated demand for an additional 47 skilled wotkets pet year with average compensation of

$40,726.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this indicates a viable project by an applicant with a long histoty of fot-
credit training in diesel technology. A detailed, reasonable budget was provided with documentation of costs
for equipment.. Required match is fully committed at the time of application. Sustainability will be
dependent on consistent enrollment driving ongoing tuition tevenue and state funding. It is staffs
conclusion that this project would be a solid investment fot the Commission in terms of generating skilled
workers for this industry.

Staff Recommendation: Staff tecommends approval of a $202,300 grant award.

TRRC — Y24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — Qctober 2023 page 15

-41-



Wytheville Community College

Wytheville Community College WEST - Workforce, Education, & Skills Training Center
(#4174)

$277,000.00 Requested

Project Summaty: Commission funds are requested to assist Wytheville Community College with the
development of the WCC Workforce, Education, & Skills Training (WEST) Centet. This facility, a former
automotive dealership, located in Marion, VA was recently acquired by Smyth County, which then leased it
to the College. The WEST Center will allow WCC to open a satellite location to house Fast Forward eligible
(shott term) programs for automotive, off-road diesel, and welding. TRRC funds will be used for facility
improvements ($212,000) and to purchase Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) tools requited to receive

accreditation for the program. Additional equipment will be purchased using matching funds provided by
WCKE.

Matching Funds:
Wytheville Community College has committed $277,000 of HEETF (Higher Education Equipment Trust
Fund) funding for the project.

Project Outputs:

e The project will result in establishment of a new WCC satellite location. The application estimates
that the facility will serve 38 students, receiving a total of 230 credentials, during the first year of |
operation.

- ASE Automotive Electrical/ Electronics Program — 10 students/ 30 industry credentials
- ASE Automotive Brakes Program — 8 students/ 30 industty credentials

— Off-Road Diesel — 10 students/ 140 industty credentials

~  Welding — 10 students/ 30 industry ctedentials

Staff Comments:

This request will allow WCC to expand its workforce and occupational program offerings to the westetn
end of its setvice region. The WEST Center will initially house thtee shott term (Fast Forward and G3
eligible) training opportunities in welding, automotive, and off-road diesel. Welding is currently offered at
another of WCC’s satellite locations, the Crossroads Institute, in Galax. By locating a second progtam in
Martion will allow WCC to more effectively serve students across its entire setvice region. The College’s
automotive program, currently housed at the Wythe County Schools Technology Centet, will be telocated to
the WEST Center. The new space will allow the program to accommodate two additional students per yeat.
The off-road diesel program is believed to be the first program in Virginia to focus on off-road equipment
(UT'V’s zero-turn mowets, tractors, excavators, skid steers, etc.).

Letters of support documenting the need for graduates of these programs wete provided by Crabtree Buick
& GMC, Boone Tractor, and Smyth County Machine. The creation of the WEST Center will provide 38
potential employees for these and other regional employets the fitst year and in future years. WCC plans to
add additional programs to the WEST Center as the development of the center continues.

. TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 16

_42_



Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates high demand for an expansion of occupational
training in key job sectors, to be completed by an applicant with a strong track record of project
implementation. The budget is detailed, reasonable and provides for sufficient capacity to carty out the
project. However, estimates wete not able to be provided in time to fully confirm the costs of equipment
and renovation. As such, the placement of a contingency on apptoval of budget after confirmation of cost

estimates is recommended. Notwithstanding that, the project appeats to be sttalghtforward and financially
viable, with sustainability to be dtiven by consistent student enrollment.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends apptoval of a grant award up to $277,000, conditioned

upon the Grants Director’s approval of final documented cost estimates from vendots/ contractors
for equipment and renovations,

TRRC — FY24 Competitive Education Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 2023 page 17

—-43-



INCENTIVES AND LOANS
COMMITTEE

_44_



= In-Person Meeting =
AGENDA

INCENTIVES & LLOANS COMMITTEE

The Inn at Blackstone
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA
Thursday, October 12, 2023
9:00 A.M.

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: 742 579 325#.

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Daniel “Danny” Marshall, Chair
Call of the Roll The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the _7/20/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Extensions & Modifications M. Jordan Butler, TROF Program Manager
Berry Hill Megasite | Mr. Jordan Butler, TROF Program Manager
Other Business Mpr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Adjournment

._.45_.



Incentives & Loans Committee
October 12, 2023

The Incentives and Loans Committee is meeting on October 12, 2023 at 9:00 am to considet project
modifications of existing projects and consider a request related to the Southern Virginia Mega Site
at Berry Hill. The following summaries provide staff overview and comment on the projects
mentioned above.

1. Joint Industrial Development Authority of Wythe County
Blue Star NBR, LLC. (#3892)
Request for an Approval Extension.

Staff Overview and Comments: This is a Tobacco Region Oppottunity Fund (TROF) grant award
for $1,022,000 that was awarded in September 2021 to the Joint Industtial Development Authotity
of Wythe County (the “JIDA”) and Blue Star NBR, LLC (the “Company”). The grant was provided
in return for the Company providing 1,044 new jobs at a promised average salary of $37,211 and a
taxable capital investment of $446 million in Wythe County. The apptroval letter and draft
petformance agreement were sent to the JIDA in January 2022 and wete not returned to the
Commission for execution. The unexecuted performance agreement, which required disbursement
prior to performance, had a three-year performance period beginning September 22, 2021. It
became clear that the project would require more time to potentially get off the ground and so the -
Commission approved several modifications at its spring meeting in May of this year. Those
modifications included:

e 'TROF #3892 award approval was extended to July 20, 2023;
~® Revised petformance agreement prepated including award amended to post-
performance disbursement; and

e With a revised awatd date of May 18, 2023 permitting a revised petformance period
for 3 years from this date — May 18, 2026.

Following the Commission’s May meeting staff prepared and sent to the locality on June 15, 2023 an
updated performance agreement reflecting the change to post-petformance disbursement as well as
the revised award date and project performance period. Staff received the signed performance
agreement on September 7", well after the approval petiod ending July 20, 2023 that the
Commission had specified. Counsel has advised Commission staff that they cannot accept the
agreement due to the document not being signed by the specified approval period end date. JIDA
Staff submitted a letter October 3, 2023 (See Attachment # on Pg. # in your books) providing a
project update and requesting that “the Commission extend the date by which the agreement
approved in May must be signed to November 30, 2023.”

._.46_.



Staff rtecommends that the grant agreement signed by the company and locality, received by
the Commission on September 7th, be accepted and staff directed to execute the agreement.

2. Pittsylvania County & The City of Danville
Southern Vitginia Mega Site at Berry Hill
‘Request for Loan, Contingent Upon Successful Attraction of Major Tenant for Berry Hill

Staff Overview and Comments: In July of this year the Incentives & Loans Committee met to
consider a request from the City of Danville and Pittsylvania County (the “Localities”) related to the
need for a new and improved gas gate at the Berry Hill Mega Site. At the time the localities, as well
as the Southern Vitginia Regional Alliance, exptessed that they had a prospect consideting the site
but that increased access to natural gas was a major need. The localities noted that this is a need that
had been expressed not only by the prospect then considering the site but also by many prospects
who have considered the site in the past and they anticipate that this will continue to be a majot
need for prospects moving forward. Given that information the Committee approved an up to $25
million Community & Business Lending loan for an expanded and imptoved gas gate at Betty Hill,
contingent upon a firm commitment that a project will occur at Berry Hill along with a number of
other conditions as detailed in the final adopted motion.

Since that time the localities have expressed to staff their desite to have this potential loan approved
by the Commission as a whole. Unfortunately, the prospect considering the site when the loan was
initially discussed and approved by the Incentives & Loans Committee in July did not wotk out. On
the advice of counsel staff made the decision to bring this item before the Committee again for two
reasons:

1. The loan is now being discussed in the context of Bettry Hill landing any project rather than
the specific project that was discussed in July and

2. Staff desites to add a sunset clause of 3 yeats to the conditions of the loan such that if the
site has not received a firm commitment that a project will locate at Berry Hill and executed
a loan agreement within that period the localities would need to approach the Commission
again to have the period renewed or extended.

Staff has discussed these matters with the localities and all are in agreement that this coutse of action
will accomplish the goal of ensuring that the gas supply/gas gate will no longer be an obstacle as
Berry Hill attempts to attract the regionally transformative project it has been prepated for over
many yeats.

Staff recommends the approval of the Community & Business Lending loan as detailed
below and subject to the conditions listed below:

Up to $25,000,000 Community & Business Lending Program Loan shall be made available
to the Danville-Pittsylvania Regional Industrial Facility Authotity to expand and improve
the gas gate that is to be designed and constructed for the long-term needs of Berry Hill for

—-47-



both volume and delivery pressure along with financing costs-of-issuance. Loan amount will
be finalized after construction cost determination and shall not exceed $25 million.
‘The CBL Loan shall be subject to the following conditions:

o The Regional Industtial Facility Authority shall have 3 yeats from the date of Commission
approval of the loan to secute firm commitment that a project will occur at Betry Hill and
execute a loan agreement. After the 3 year period the localities/RIFA may petition the
Commission for an extension(s)to this petiod.

e Loan closing and disbutsement of funds requites the completion of credit review by VRA
with a positive outcomme. ‘

o Fixed interest rate with repayments commencing after consttuction completion at a term
agreeable to all parties not to exceed design life.

e Disbursement of loan funds requires a firm commitment that a Project will occur at the
proposed site.

© Loan funds will be disbursed to the DPRIFA for the benefit of a gas company.

© The gas company will repay DPRIFA from revenues detived from the gas line usage.

° Toan shall be further secured by 2 moral obligation of the City of Danville and Pittsylvania
County which may be removed aftet gas line revenue adequacy is established and confirmed
by VRA. :

e Provided the Loan closes successfully and loan funds are disbursed, up to $1.2 million of the
Loan amount shall be made available for reimbutsement to the DPRIFA for design and
engineering costs expended ptiot to the loan’s closing. Should the loan not close, these costs
shall not be reimbursable to the DPRIFA. '

o Among other loan terms as approved by the Commission’s Executive Ditector, the
Commission will consider the following;

O Interest accrues on disbursed amounts only.
O Flexible payment structure based on anticipated revenue. This is not intended to be a
forgivable loan.

Staff further recommends that the Commission ditect staff to look into federal and state
incentive programs to suppott the $25 million equipping costs for the natural gas
infrastructure, in addition to the up to $25,000,000 CBL loan.

3. Grayson County Economic Development Authority

Oak Hall Industries (#2999)

Petformance Period Extension & Request for Modification of Agreement Terms/Relief
from Clawback

Staff Overview and Comments: This is a Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund (TROF) grant for
$385,000 That was awarded to the Grayson County Economic Development Authotity (The
“EDA”) and Oak Hall Industries (The “Company”). The original petformance period was
December 2014 through December 2017. The award was disbutsed priot to performance and the
company promised to create 100 jobs at an average annual salaty of $22,880 as well as private
taxable investment of §1.2 million. At its May 2021 meeting the Commission apptoved a final

-4 8-



petformance extension through June 30, 2022 for a total performance period of 7.5 years for the
project.

Staff finds that the company has met 100% of its private taxable investment obligation and has so
earned that half of the grant.

The company has not met its obligations under the agteement related to jobs and wages. Cutrently,
the company has provided 46 jobs but the wages fall shott of those promised. When a company
does not meet the quarterly aggtegate payroll promised, the Commission reduces the qualifying
employees (jobs created) in propottion to the shortfall in quartetly aggregate payroll. When this
method is applied to the current project the result is that the company has produced 15 jobs
meaning $163,625 of the jobs and wages portion of the grant is currently unearned and required to
be returned to the Commission.

The locality and company have approached staff requesting an extension of the petformance period,
to include additional jobs, as well as relief from the clawback provision in the agreement. Both the
company and locality have submitted letters (See Attachments ## on Pgs. ## in your books)
telated to this request. Both the company and locality make note of the challenges posed by
COVID, that retaining employees has been difficult and that the clawback would present a financial
hardship for the company. Additionally, the company has noted that it is willing to solidify its

presence in the community with a five-year extension of their lease in return for forgiveness of the
$163,625 clawback amount.

Staff does not believe it is appropriate to make a recommendation in this case but notes that
the locality and company have been responsive, accessible, and open regarding the status of
the project and the challenges it has faced.

_49_



, | JOINT
3| e,
MY | AUTHORITY

Wythe County, Virginia
' ' October 2, 2023

Mr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director Via Email with attachments’
Mr. Jordan Butler, TROF Manager '

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

701 E. Franklin Street, Suite 501

Richmond, VA 23219 ’

Re: Update on Blue Star Project

Gentlemen:

It was a pleasure speaking with you both on Monday day regarding the Blue Star project in Wythe
County. | am happy to provide a brief update on the project's posture and path forward.

1.) Blue Star NBR constructed a nitrile butadiene rubber facility in Progress Park on Lot 24 in
Wythe County. It contains a cutting-edge, world-class chemical facility with all necessary
equipment to make tens of thousands of tons of NBR.

2.) The first contractual period ended on May 31, 2023, with the federal government signing
off on Phase 1 of the project as of that date. -

3.) Blue Star, VEDP, Wythe County, the Town of Wytheville, and the Joint IDA of Wythe County
all penned letters requesting support from our federal elected officials to help break loose
funding to kickstart the operation of the NBR plant as well as to support construction of
the first glove facility. That had been promised through the Development Finance Corp.

4.) A team from Wythe County, the Town of Wytheville, VEDPF, and the Joint IDA met in
Washington, DC, with our entire Congressional delegation on September 20, 2023.

5.) A team from the company and the Joint IDA met with an official from the White House

Office of Public Engagement on August 21, 2023, -

Right now, it is the hope of all partners that the anticipated and promised funding comes through
to support the next phase of this critical, vertically integrated project. For your reference, I'm
including the letter we sent to Sen. Warner, Sen. Kaine, and Rep. Griffith, as well as a story from
Cardinal News that ran several weeks ago that details the project thus far.

| do have a request of the Commission, however. At the May 2023 Commission meeting, our
previous TROF award for the Blue Star-project was amended so that payout of the grant
would be post-performance as well as altering the performance period to match up with
the current project timeline. The Commission also extended the approval period to get
the agreement signed. Regrettably and due in part the all the activity referenced above,

this contractual document was ultimately signed by the company and locality beyond the
specified date of July 20th. Therefore, | am requesting that the Commission accept the
submitted agreement and execute it as it accurately reflects the will of the signers and,

further, such a change would not alter any element of the agreement. | appreciate your

. consideration in this matter and thank you for this efficient recommendation.

'WYTHEIDA.ORG' | MADEWYTHEPRIDE.ORG

._.50_.



" Tobacco Commission Revitalization Commission

October 2, 2023
Page 2 of 2

Ultimately, the Joint IDA and our partners locally and beyond stand behind this project as we have
since it was announced to great fanfare in 2021. We appreciate the Commission’s ongoing interest
in and support for it, as well.

We look forward tq discussing this with you soon.

Sincerely yours,

David Manley

Executive Director

WYTHEIDA.ORG | MADEWYTHEPRIDE.ORG

._.51...



Attachment H
Wy, |

JOINT
2 =2 INDUSTRIAL
TS DEVELOPMENT
M | AUTHORITY
Wythe County, Virginia

August 3, 2023

The Honorable Mark R. Warner VIA FEDEX PRIORITY OVERNIGHT AND EMAIL
United States Senate

703 Hart Senate Office Building

Washington, DC 20510

The Honorable Timothy M. Kaine
United States Senate

231 Russell Senate Office Building
‘Washington, DC 20510

The Honorable H. Morgan Griffith
United States House of Representatives
2202 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re: Blue Sfar project in Wythe County

Dear Senator Warner, Senator Kaine, and Congressman Griffith:

| am writing regarding the progress of the Blue Star projedt in Wythe County and to formally
seek your assistance in helping complete the project.

On October 4, 2021, Governor Ralph Northam led the chorus of excited accolades from federal,
state, and local officials in the announcement of a $714 million, 2400+ job project in Southwest
Virginia to address the domestic manufacturing of personal protective equipment (PPE). The
project was hailed as a “game changer” and as the largest creation of jobs in over a generation.
The transformative nature of the project was not overstated, as economic projections indicated
that the economic growth would reverse the population decline felt in Wythe County from the
previous census.

For decades, the production of most PPE moved offshore, largely to China, Malaysia, and
Thailand. The COVID pandemic exposed a significant vulnerability in our supply chain which is
directly tied to 'national security and to public health. The supply chain disruptions that were felt
globally exacerbated the anxiety of an already nervous public and clinically unprepared society..
Moreover, China’s market share has expanded since the pandemic, going from 8% of domestic
glove sales to nearly 40% through dumping product, according to industry sources. Leveling this
playing field by supporting domestic manufacture of PPE (in this case nitrile gloves) supports key
national security and public health goals, but also allows our Amerlcan businesses to better
compete for sales in the worldwide marketplace.

WYTHEIDA.ORG | MADEWYTHEPRIDE.ORG

_52_



Hon. Mark R. Warner, Hon. Timothy M. Kaine, Hon. H. Morgan Griffith
August 3, 2023
Page 2 of 3

On May 31 of this year, Blue Star NBR completed the primary construction objectives of its nitrile
butadiene rubber (NBR) facility in Progress Park near Wytheville in Wythe County, which met the
contractual requirements between the company and the federal government, engaged via a
Commercial Solutions Opening (CSO). Today, on Lot 24 in Progress Park, you will find an

impressive, technologically advanced facility that can produce 90,000 metric tons of NBR when
activated. :

It is also worth noting that S|gn|f|cant site and infrastructure |mprovements were made as part of
this project by the company and by partners including extension of rail, water and wastewater
projects, and natural gas system upgrades to name a few.

Itis my assessment that the company met its commitment to build this facility as agreed.
Additional communications with US Department of Health and Hunian Services preparedness
officials further induced the project principals to expand the initial scope of production and to

establish the glove manufacturmg that Amerlcans and the whole western world so desperately
need. :

Leadership at the state and local Ievels have expected additional phases of the project to
activate as the timeline progressed and as benchmarks were met based on intent shared by
preparedness officials at HHS. With collaboration and the support of partners including the
Commonwealth of Virginia, Wythe County, and the Town of Wytheville, Blue Star NBR met its
~ first major benchmark of the HHS CSO project in a timely fashion. A brand new NBR facility

stands in Progress Park on what was one of the most desirable industrial parcels in the western
half of Virginia. :

The next step for the Blue Star project is to, first, activate the NBR facility and operate it, which
would allow for up to 90,000 metric tons of NBR to be produced. This availability of the key
ingredient is one of the most important PPE needs and is also a game changer in the
marketplace. It is transformative in terms of both our domestic health care needs and for national
security. Addressing domestic manufacturing of PPE on its own is a worthwhile goal but given
the unrest that affects global markets and the potential for another public health crisis, it is a

critical shortcoming that we owe to ourselves as a nation to address. Our recent COVID

- experience should tell us all we need to know about preparedness going forward.

Simultaneous with the operation of the NBR plant, the initial glove facility should be constructed
_and brought online to follow through on the vision of the first vertically integrated campus of its
type in the world.

The communities and people of Southwest Virginia have taken note of this economic
development news and follow-through is expected. For a region that has been economically
beaten up in recent decades, the blow resulting from not following through with the Blue Star
project would yield deep and lasting injury. As public entities, our credibility sometimes takes
shots because of the reputation of the government being unresponsive to public needs and,
further, being poor at execution. Should we (as the public sector) step away from our pressing
‘commitments to national security and public health and fail to see this project launched
successfully, we will have earned the reputation of being ineffective. Deservedly.

WYTHEIDA.ORG | MADEWYTHEPRIDE.ORG

-53-



Hon. MarkR Warner, Hon. Timothy M. Kaine, Hon. H. Morgan Griffith

August 3, 2023
Page 3 of 3

There is a path forward and a solution to the problem posed by the pause in the Blue Star
project. Each of you has an undeniable affection for our part of the Commonwealth and we have
all benefited from your collective leadership in Richmond and.in Washington. We are asking you
to help us move this project to completion.

Wythe County and the Town of Wytheville have each made significant investments into systems
serving Progress Park and serving Blue Star. Public investments in the tens of millions of dollars
are underway, committed, and planned. The people of our communities deserve to have their
investments realized. The will to support this project has been and remains strong. Should the
project not reach its potential, problematic decisions and fiscal challenges will face our local
elected officials and those they represent.

- The Commonwealth of Virginia and other partners in the public sector have also devoted
millions to this project’s success. Orphaning these efforts will have an undesirable chilling effect
and damage our economic development prospects in the long term. The people of Wythe
County and of Southwest Virginia have seen economic development bring a better quality of life
to our region and we have another opportunity to advance that ideal mstead of walking away.

| am writing to request renewed and concerted effort to fund the next phase of this project
thereby addressing critical national needs while also supporting economic growth in our
Commonwealth. Local government and economic development administrative leadership would
like to meet with you gentlemen collectively or individually to discuss next steps and

. opportunities to fund and complete this effort should your schedules allow. We are happy to
meet here, in Washington, or wherever is agreeable.

-Thank you for your steadfast representation of and fadvocacy -for the 'péople of Virginia.

Very truly yours,

David Manley
Executive Director

CC via email: Jason El Koubi, Virginia Economic Development Partnership CEO
Stephen Bear, Wythe County Administrator
Brian Freeman, Wytheville Town Manager

‘WYTHEIDA.ORG | MADEWYTHEPRIDE.ORG

—-54-



Atlachmeny- 5
CAR'INAL NEWS

'—- SERVING SOUTHWEST.AND SOUTHSIDE VIRGINIA

Glove factory set to bring 2,500 jobs to
Wythe County on hold with funding

uncer tall’l

Bl Star NBR’s CEO says a federal loan package the company was counting
on to finish building its rubber glove-manufacturing facilities fell through Now
the firm needs $230 mzllwn fo get its opemtzon up and running.

by Matt Busse

“August 31, 2023

—-55—



,CARDINAL NEWS

SERVING SOUTHWEST AND SOUTHSIDE VIRGINIA \

The Blue Star NBR complex in Wythe County is expected to bring 2,500 manufacturing jobs to
the region, but it’s unclear where the company will find the money to get the operation up and
running. Photo courtesy of Blue Star NBR. :

It was heralded as “transformational” and “a game-changer” — “the largest job creation
commitment Southwest Virginia has seen in a generation,” and part of a national goal to reshore
‘manufacturing of critical supplies after COVID-19 dlSlupted global suppiy chains.

But nearly two years after then-Gov. Ralph Northam announced in October 2021 that a
manufacturer of rubber gloves would bring 2,500 jobs to Wythe County, the project is stalled as
it remains unclear how Blue Star NBR will get the money it needs'to finish bmldmg its famhtles
and begin operations.

The company expected to use a pandémic-related federal loan package to finish the project, but
after a series of delays and, ultimately, the expiration of the associated federal agency’s loan-
making authority, that money didn’t come through, said Blue Star NBR CEO Scott Maier.

The price tag to get Blue Star up and running now stands at $230 million. .

“BEveryone’s ready to go. We're 1eady to go. We just need to ﬁgme out how can the government
unlock the funding to get it done,” Maier said.

The Blue Star project was divided into two phases.

The first was to build a factory capable of producing 90,000 tons annually of nitrile butadiene
rubber, or NBR, which is used to make rubber gloves such as those ubiquitous in doctors’ offices
and hospitals. That’s enough NBR to produce six to 12 billion gloves, depending on the type and
thickness of the glove. .

That phase was completed in May and was funded by $123 million from the U.S. Department of
Defense, which issued the contlact in partnership with the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services.

- The second phase includes building a plant to produce the rubber gloves, hiring the necessary
staff for both factories and getting them up and running,

e



,CARDINAL NEWS

SERVING SOUTHWEST.AND SOUTHSIDE VIRGINIA

By producing both the gloves and the raw material needed to make them, the Blue Star project is
designed to help safeguard the U.S. against supply chain disruption and price fluctuations.

Maier said the company anticipated paying for that second phase with a loan package ﬁom the
U.S. International Development Finance Corporation, or DFC.

The DFC is a federal agency that typically finances overseas economic development, but in May
2020 then-President Donald Trump issued an executive order authorizing the agency’s CEO to

loan money to domestic companies that produce “strategic resources needed to respond to the
COVID-19 outbreak.” :

The executive order put a two-year time limit on that loan-making autho_rity.

In October 2020 DFC chose Blue Star to receive financmg to bmld facilities to produce NBR
and nitrile gloves, Maier said. : :

In November 2020, he said, DFC instructed Blue Star to apply for funding through the

Department of Defense and told Blue Star that DFC would make up any shortfall not covered by
that funding.

But, Maier said, DFC delayed processing Blue Star’s loan request, asked for a revised budget
after Blue Star was awarded the Defense Department contract, and then, at the end of 2021, told

Blue Star that DFC’s loan-making authm ity would expire before it could finalize the ﬁnancmg
package.

DFC officials did not respond to a request for comment.

A U.S. Government Accountability Office study published in November 2021 noted that as of
mid-October of that year, DFC had received 178 applications under the Defense Production Act
loan program authorized by Trump’s executive order but had completed no loans.

The GAO said it undertook the study because “members of Congress have expressed concern
about DFC’s ability to manage DPA activities along with its international development mission.”

In a response published with the study, DFC acting CEO Dev Jagadesan wrote that the agency’s
role in financing domestic, rather than international, loans was “unprecedented” and that most of

-57-



;CARDINAL NEWS

- SERVING SOUTHWEST AND SOUTHSIDE VIRGINIA

the authority over budgeting and project eligibility actually lay with the Department of Defense
and the Department of Health and Human Services.

Now, Maier said, potential paths forward to secure the funding that Blue Star needs could
involve Congress or the Biden administration directing Health and Human Services to reallocate
money toward the project or designating money for the project in an upcoming contmumg
resolution, whlch is the federal government’s short-term funding bill.

One factor that could complicate efforts is that debt-ceiling negotiations.earlier this year to avoid
the federal government defaulting on its obligations led to officials pulling back about $27
billion in unspent fundmg that had been allocated to federal agenc:es to fight the COVID-19
pandemic.

The offices of U.S. Sen. Mark Warner, D-Virginia; U.S. Sen. Tim Kaine, D-Virginia; and U.S.
Rep. Morgan Griffith, R-Salem, said in a joint statement in response to a Cardinal News inquiry
that “upon learning of the issues with the development of the Blue Star plant,” the three elected
officials “teamed up in a bipartisan push to urge the Biden Administration and the company to
come to an agreement to get the plant on track for completion.”

“They are disappointed that an agreement was not reached. They will continue to look for ways
to work acloss the aisle to support domestic manufactunng and job growth in Southwest
Vn ginia,” the statement sald

The lawmakers will meet with local officials soon to look for solutions, Kaine spokesperson Mia
Fisher said in an email. :

In a statement to Cardinal News, Virginia Economic Development Partnership President and
CEO Jason El Koubi said, “We remain hopeful that the federal government will provide Blue
Star with the funding to.enable the operation of its state-of-the-art NBR plant and proceed with
the glove manufacturing plant as planned, and stand ready to support this tlansfmmatlonal

" project that represents 2,500 new jobs for Southwest Virginia.”

Maier said Blue Star has also been exploring private financing options, but “it is not a viable
option right now.”

“In order to either service debt or provide an equity return the NBR facility needs to sell its entire
90,000 metric ton capacity to U.S. glove manufacturers and have long-term contracts for that
capacity. Right now, there is only production up and running that requires about 17,000 metric
tons of NBR,” Maier said.

-58-



CARDINAL NEWS

SERVING SOUTHWEST AND SOUTHSIDE VIRGINIA

Maier said Blue Star has also been in touch with the U.S. Export-Import Bank — the federal
government’s credit agency that assists in financing U.S. exports and which also recently
launched a new program supporting domestic manufacturing — but he said that without a
diverse set of purchase agreements from government and industry in place, the project contains
too much risk for the bank to underwrite.

When the Blue Star project was publicly announced in October 2021, Northam praised its role in
bringing the manufacturing of important personal protective equipment, or PPE, back to the
United States from Asia. Most nitrile rubber gloves are made in China, Malaysia or Thailand.

At the time of the announcement, Blue Star was still working with DFC to finalize the financing,
Maier said.

“Everyone was confident it was going to close,” he said. “We were dealing with an agency of the
federal government. ... We got to the point where we had mapped out a closing timeline, and we
even got to the point where the DFC told us to basically send a retainer in for their attorneys. My
background’s private equity, and when you start paying the attorneys, you’re pretty much at the
finish line.”

Maier said once the operation is running, Blue Star plans to expand over five years to the point
where it has about 150 employees at the NBR plant and about 400 at each of six glove-making
plants producing billions of gloves annually, reaching the figure 0f 2,500 jobs.

Blue Star’s careers website advertises positions such as maintenance technicians who can earn
$64,000 a year, or managers who can earn $84,000. Maier said he anticipates eritry-level jobs

paying around $18 an hour with benefits. The median household income in Wythe County is

- $52,726. -

With the announcement of the 2,500 pending jobs also came the news that Virginia had
committed $8.5 million to upgrade water and sewer infrastructure at Wythe County’s Progress
Park, and the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission had approved another $1
million for additional public infrastructure for the project.

“As a community, we fylly support the project and especially its goals of reshoring PPE
manufacturing, capital investment and job creation in rural Southwest Virginia,” said David
Manley, exccutive director of the Wythe County Joint Industrial Development Authority.

~G8=



OAK HALL

CAP & GOWN

July 18, 2023

M. Jordan Butler 7

Public Relations Director & Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund Manager
Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commissmn

701 BE. Franklin St, Ste 501

Richmond VA 23219

[ am writing on behalf of Oak Hall Cap & Gown (“Oak Hall”) regarding the Grant Repayment -
Agreement set forth by the Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (the “Commission”), We
have been notified that $163,146.14 of the grant is unearned. It is my understanding that the
expectation is for Oak Hall to repay this amount over a five-year peuod

As you can see ﬁom the enclosed list, there were many endeavms Oak Hall explored in an
attempt to increase the workforce at the Independence facility. Since we opened in 2015, we-
have hired over 300 employees. Unfortunately, during this time, employment terminated for 240
of those employees for various reasons resulting in a current workforce of 60, We did not lay off
any employees from this facility (or as a company in general) since we opened in 2015, and even
became an essential business making masks for Johns Hopkins once COVID began to keep our
employees working, Throughout the years, we have worked with every employee to make him or
her successful, with terminations either being the employee’s choice, or misconduct so egiegious
that it could not be overlooked. -

Given the employment struggles that we have faced since opening the facility, we would
appreciate consideration to reduce the amount owed by Oak Hall. Even over the five-year period,
the payback amount would create a financial hardship for the company. As explained, we have
never turned someone away and have given everyone a chance at employment with our
company. We have recently. seen progress on the employment front as just within the past two
months we have added approximately 15 empioyees We would also like to solidify our presence .
in Independence with a five-year extension in consideration for forgiveness of this amount. By
signing this five-year extension to out lease, we would not only continue to contribute to the
Town of Independence’s economy through real estate and personal propeity taxes, but we will
also be able to continue providing employment to those cunently in out facility, while also
continuing to increase our workforce,

Thank you fot your consideration.

Sincerely, '

Paul Maloney
President, Oak Hall Cap & Gown

P.O. Box 10?8 + 840 Union Street « Salem, Virginia 24153
Telephone (800) 223-0429 + Fax (540) 387-4386 « oakhalli.com

-60-

“3 Brinted on Recycled Paper



Efforts to Increase the Workforee

e Oak Hall Job Fairs
o When the plant was initially opened in 2015, we scheduled an on-site job fair
o We conducted a follow-up job fair in 2018 looklng to hire 20 employees The
marketing for the event included:
Ad in Gazette (3 ads run)
v Radio spots- (between 25 — 30 spots run)
n  Indeed posting
n  Ad in the Declaration ' ,
= Flyers dispersed around several local agencies
s Notifications to employment offices in VA and NC
= Notifications on vatious Facebook pages

The results of the second job fair in 2018 were that only 13 people attended. Of those 13, ten
~ were offered positions and only seven accepted positions.

o Hiring and retenfion practices in general

Oak Hall has always been willing to train employees who would like to work for our company.
We never enacted a hiring freeze and rarely refused people seeking employment. Job postings
were regularly done on Indeed and we erected a “Now Hiring” sign next to our Oak Hall sign in
front of the building. We immediately interview and test walk-ins to see which position would
suit them best. Due to the nature of our business being sewing, we are always patient with new
employees learning the trade. We suspended our attendance policy in an effort to retain

employees. We also suspended production metrics, hoping to give new employees ample time to
‘ succeed in their new position,

-Impact from Covid

As with most companies, Covid wreaked havoc on our workforce, Oak Hall never shut down
during the pandemic as we entered into a contract with Johns Hopkins medical facilities to
produce personal protection equipment for their medical frontline since during this time there
was a shortage. We lost employees due to them fearing contraction of Covid, their ability to take
advantage of government programs (including unemployment), as well as Virginia’s Covxd
mandate on employers, which was the first and one of the strictest in the nation,

Employee Referral Program

In 2021 Oak Hall started an Employee Referral Program rewarding employees for referring
friends and relatives to be hired. A referral that was hired immediately gave the employee $100,
with $500 being given after three months, and $500 each given to both parties.

-61-



e United Way’s Ignite Program

Oak Hall explored this program, but we were unable to use these services due to them looking
for high school internships. We were apprehensive of having anyone under the age of 18 in our
manufacturing facility with our use of needles.

¢ Department of Aging and Rehabilitative Services

A tour was given to a representative in hopes that four students graduating from high school at -
the time with mild disabilities going straight into the workforce would be interested in applying.

e Various Job Fairs
o Cross Roads Institute Job Fairs
o Wytheville Community College Career Fair
o Core Health and Fitness (plant shutdown and we interviewed their employees)

s Communication with VEC in Galax and Employment Commission in Sparta,
NC

Oak Hall has been in constant contact with unemployment agencies, lettlng them know of open
positions within the factory.

—62—



RECEIVED

IRERLE Mitchell L. Smith

Grayson County Fax: (276) 773-3673
129 Davis Street
P.0. Box 217

Independence, Virginia 24348

July 20, 2023

Mt Jordan Butler

Public Relations Director & Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund Manager’
Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

701 E. Franklin St, Ste.501

Richmond, VA 23219

DearJordan, ,

I am writing this letter to the Tobacco Commission on hehalf of Oak Hall Cap & Gown.
The County of Grayson is very appreciative of the support the Commission has given to
the County and our industries throughout the years., Your support has improved the
quality of life for the citizens in our County here In Southwest Virginia.

Your support was instrumental in bringing this industry to our community and the
agreement to extend the performance agreement was extremely generous.

‘We have met with the Oak Hall management team and informed them of the unearned
portion of the $163,146.14 grant. In recent months Oak Hall has had some success with
hiring more employees. We would like to see the momentum continue and ask that the
Commission consider thelr request to reduce the claw back amount. Given the obstacles
they faced during this grant cycle and their willingness to sign an extension to lease the
building and continue employment for five years, Grayson County would support
forgiveness of the claw back If possible. If not, then would like to request that the
recently added employees be considered to reduce the amount.

In summary, Oak Hall Cap & Gown Is playing a major role In the economic revitalization
of the County of Grayson and the Town of Independence. While we recognize thelr

- financial obligation to the Commission and the county, we are elated they want to
extend the lease agreement for five years if this can be resolved.

—-p3-



Any consideration given to this request will be greatly appreciated and we thank you for
all you do for the County of Grayson and our citizens.

Thank you,

' % . ¥
]

Mitchell L. Smith
Deputy County Adminjstrator -

=Ty



SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA
COMMITTEE

—-B5-



® In-Person Meeting

AGENDA

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

The Inn at Blackstone
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA

Thursday, October 12, 2023

9:30 A.M.

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and

enter conference ID; 742 579 325#.

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
-accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva,org or Joyce Knight at (804) §94-9651.

ngcome and Call to Order

Call of the Roll

Public Comment
Approval of the 5/18/23 Minutes

FY24 Fﬁllding Applications — Meat
Processing Projects

Extensions and Modifications

Other Business

e Report on FY24 application deadline
e Active Grants by Investment Category

Adjournment

The Honorable James “Will” Morefield, Chafr

The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive
Director

(published on website)
Ms. Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director

Ms. Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director

M. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Ms. Vicki Humphreys, Grants Director

_.66._.



FY24 Southwest Virginia Program
Staff Summaries and Recommendations
October 12, 2023

The Commission received two applications by the June 1, 2023, application deadline of the FY24
Southwest Vitginia Program, which was solely focused on meat processing facilities. The Southwest
Virginia Committee will act on these applications at its meeting scheduled for October 12 at 9:30
a.m. The Southwest Vitginia Committee will consider extensions of six existing grants.

.« . " . Request
Re'q # Otganization : Project Title ot
5% | Blue RilpePlairanTiitialive. |2 oroge Flatean Hicat $2,500,000
Processing Facility
4154 Tazewell County IDA Ponderosa $979,000

TOTAL (2 requests)  $3,479,000

Tazewell County IDA
Ponderosa (#4154)
$979,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission funds are requested to construct a meat processing facility in

“Tazewell County. The Tazewell County IDA will own the facility, which will be leased to a local
opetatot (Blue Ridge Butchery). Development of the facility (site and construction) is estimated to
cost $1,958,000 with the TRRC grant providing 50% ($979,000) as allowed by this program’s
guidelines. Tazewell County will provide the temainder of the funds from a vatiety of sources. Blue
Ridge Butchety (BRB) will provide all equipment for the facility at an estimated cost of $502,225.
No suppott for equipment was included in the application. '

The 7,500 squate foot facility is designed to accommodate the processing of multiple species. Cut
Floor A will be dedicated to processing beef five days a week while Cut Floor B will used to process
potk, lamb, and chicken, each on a sepatate day. The division of the cut floots will allow USDA
regulations to be maintained. Although USDA approval of the facility cannot be provided until it is
opetational, USDA inspectors were consulted during the design process.

' Matching Funds: Tazewell County will provide 50% of the cost to develbp the facility. These
funds will be obtained from a variety of soutces including a forgivable loan from the Vitginia
Coalfield Economic Development Authority ($200,000). The application states that an application
will be submitted to the Vitginia Small Business Finance Authority for $629,000. The County will
also apply to the Agriculture and Forestry Industries Development (AFID) Fund however the

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - October 12, 2023 page 1

—-67—



amount of the incentive is unknown and will be determined through the application and approval
process. The value of the County owned propetty ($100,000) is also included in the match total.

Project Outputs: A new USDA inspected meat processing facility will be established. The
application identifies 10 local producers who have expressed interest in using the facility although,
based on regional demand data, the actual number of users will likely be much higher depending on
the operational capacity of the processor. During its first year of opetations, the facility is expected
to generate $1,736,000 in revenue. No information was provided for additional revenues per
producer, which will likely depend on each producer’s usage of the facility.

Staff Comments:

The public/ptivate partnership described in this application outlines an ambitious plan to quickly
develop additional meat processing capacity for Tazewell County and the surrounding region. By
accommodating multiple species, it will serve a vatiety of producers, many of which currently have
little to no access to processing facilities. The business plan reports that local USDA facilities have
reported a 150% increase in demand over the past 3 years. All facilities are working at max capacity
and typically turn down an average of 2 customers each day. Capacity of chicken processing is
especially limited, with only one chicken processor, which will no longer accept new customers.

Tazewell County has assisted in the development of this facility through a property and financial
commitment. Under the terms of the draft performance and lease agreements between Tazewell and
the operator, Blue Ridge Butchery will lease the facility for a 15-year petiod. Tazewell will receive
monthly rental payments of $5,600 duting the first year (§67,200 total). The rate will then increase by
2% each year. The tenant will also be responsible for all maintenance, taxes, insurances, operating
expenses, tenant improvements, etc. The performance agreement requites BRB to employ 10 new
full-time equivalent (FI'E) employees within 18 months of operation. These ate robust requirements
that illustrate Tazewell’s high expectations for the success of this business. Blue Ridge Butchery’s
commitment to meet these expectations also speaks to their personal commitment to the project.
Blue Ridge Butchery is also responsible for the procurement of the estimated $502IC of equipment
required to furnish the facility, as well as $168,201 in working capital for the fitst year of operation.
These funds will be requested from local lenders. . -

Duting the review process, TRRC Staff sought input from other relevant agticultural organizations
including VA-FAIRS and VDACS AFID staff. The overall opinion of the business plan provided in
the application was positive. The Blue Ridge Butchery principal has significant experience with meat
processing as well as marketing local foods. Similar experience is reflected across the team that has
been formed to lead the organization during the startup period. This is a group that understands the
industry and the challenges associated with operating a meat processing facility. BRB is confident
that, because the project will be adding additional processing capacity to a regibn with an enormous
amount of pent-up demand, the facility will generate adequate cash flow to meet its financial
obligations. ' '

Staff agrees with the presumption that while thete is sufficient demand to provide initial customers
for the facility and to earn revenue, it is unlikely to provide enough operating capital to cover all
expenses during the initial months of operation. The proforma included with the application shows
a deficit of operating income of $99,722 during the first year with the majority of this ($90,334)

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - October 12,2023 2 page 2

—-68-—



occurring during the first month. By the second month the deficit drops to $24,534 and continues to
decrease over the course of the year. By the fifth month operating income is $1,346 and stays mostly
positive through imonth 12. During months five thru twelve, the operating margin ranges from a
high of 6% in month six to a low of -5.5% in month ten. The margin for other months in this range
is 3.3% Although this illustrates gradual progress throughout the startup period, it does indicate that
" Blue Ridge Butchety will require additional operating suppott during the first year. Commission
staff provided the applicants with a list of potential grant sources which, if appropzriate, may be able
to reduce the initial financial strain. For example, TRRC funds could be requested by Tazewell on
behalf of Blue Ridge Butchery to support 25% of the equipment cost. The award, subject to a
petformance agreement, could help reduce the debt incurred by BRB for equipping the facility.

These concetns do not reflect a distrust of the business plan ot the overall project. They merely
reflect the operational and financial challenges encountered by other similar projects. Meat
processing is a difficult industry to enter due, in patt, to the large financial commitment. Additional
grant suppott from all reasonable federal, state (including TRRC and VDACS programs), and
potentially private sources will allow the business to begin operations in the best financial place
possible. Commission Staff sees ttemendous potential for this project and will continue to monitor
its development.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria indicates that this project involves reliable, bonafide partners with
the capacity and expertise to complete and sustain the project. The project as proposed
demonstrates good promise of viability, but based on the financial information ptesented, the costs
assignable to Blue Ridge Butchery would benefit from some modification to lower its start-up costs.
Thus, staff has provided reference to other grant sources to further suppott the project.

~ Identification and cuttent level of commitment of matching funds looks promising. The IDA and
the partner have presented a realistic understanding of the timeline, key measures and projected
outcomes of this undertaking.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff tecommends an award of $979,000 contingent on achieving full project financing.

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program - Staff Summaries & Recommendations - October 12,2023, page 3

_69_



Blue Ridge Plateau Initiative
Blue Ridge Plateau Meat Processing Facility (#4153)
$2,500,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission funds are requested to suppozrt 50% of the estimated $§5M cost to
develop a new USDA inspected meat proéessing facility in Catroll County. TRRC support is
requested for land prepamtion building design and construction, holding pen construction,
slaughter and processing equipment. The Catroll County Economic Development Authority (EDA)
will piovlde a site for the facility.

Matching Funds: Matching funds for this project are largely uncommitted. The application lists the
following soutces of match: Cartoll County EDA ($275,000 for property purchase), Blue Ridge
Plateau Initiative ($1,398,576 to be provided from unnamed private and/ ot government lenders),
AFID Facilities and Infrastructure Grants (§820,187).

Project Outputs: The application estimates that the facility will serve 1,400 producers anhua]ly.
This figure tepresents the total number of red meat producets in the surtounding 4 counties of VA
and NC that will have access to the facility. Each producer will earn $24,000 in annual sales revenue.
No additional information was provided to document the practicality of this estimate.

Staff Coinments:
The Blue Ridge Plateau Initiative has been working for many years to establish a meat processing
facility in the Carroll County region. The Commission, matched by Appalachian Regional
Commission funding, provided a $50,000 award in 2010 to support a feasibility study and initial
business plan for the facility. Since that time the project has struggled to progress beyond the
planning phase to reach a point where construction of the facility appears imminent. There does not
“appeat to be any single teason fot the delays, however turnover at Catroll County and issues related
to the selection of an appropriate site have contributed. Multiple ownetship structures have been
presented, including an original plan for the non-profit owner to lease the facility to a ptivate
operator. The curtent business plan, updated in 2023, describes an ownership arrangement where
BRPI, a non-profit, will own the facility but will delegate oversight of operations to a seven-member
Executive Board. A General Managet/ cettified butcher will lead an initial staff of two line workers
and one office suppott position. '

Since the project’s inception more than a decade ago, TRRC has suppotted its development efforts.
In January 2019, a §500,000 grant was awarded to BRPI to setve as seed money for the project in
hopes that it could be leveraged to entice other funders to assist the project. Unfortunately,
additional funding did not materialize and finally, in January 2023, the TRRC funds wete rescinded.
At that time the applicant was encouraged to continue to develop the project with a goal of applying
to this special funding round. The project, and the related business plan, has evolved over the years
and a new application reflecting the most cutrent project status seemed appropriate.

The application submitted to this prbgram’s June 1 deadline continues to show a lack of progress

- and development for the project. At the time of application, a site had not been identified. In eatly
Septembert, the applicant informed Staff that Carroll County recently purchased a patcel of land
outside of Hillsville to be provided for the facility. This is a vety promising update and is 2 good
indicator that the County is committed to assisting BRPI in successfully implementing this project.

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 ; page 4

=7 0_



Commission support for publicly or non-profit owned value-added processing facilities such as the
one described in this application is limited to no mote than 50% of capital (facility and equipment)
- costs. The $5M total project cost presented in this application was cleatly designed to justify the
maximum possible award for this special funding round ($2.5M). Upon closer examination of the
budget, there were substantial funds allocated for operating capital which cannot be included in the
~ TRRC eligible project total. Based on the cost estimates provided, it appears that the total capital
cost is $4,326,701. The amount eligible for support from TRRC is $2,163,350.

Due to the age of the cost estimates provided with the application it is not possible to determine if
the costs ate a reasonable reflection of cutrent market prices. The construction quote is from 2011
however, the application states that the amounts had been modified “after consulting with experts in
the construction field.” The modified amounts appeat to be the basis for the budget however no
documentation from third party “experts” was provided to corroborate the figures. The same
approach was applied to the quotes for equipment. These quotes are from 2018. Because current
estimates have not been provided it is not possible to calculate an accurate total project cost. The
situation is further complicated by the very recent selection of the site. The 2011 estimates do not
reflect construction at the current site. The application states that the 2011 floor plan is for reference

only. A new building desIgn, and associated cost estimates, will be required f01 the development of
the- ﬁnal site. -

The lack of accurate cost estimates is a strong indicator that an award to suppozt the construction of
the facility, which has yet to complete final design, would be extremely premature. Other than
Cartoll County’s recent property purchase, no additional funds are committed for the project. The
applicant pledges to provide matching funds, totaling approximately $1.4M, from monies obtained
from unnamed ptivate and/ ot govetnment lenders. The budget also states that an application has
been filed with the AFID Program for $820,187 based on BRPI’s estimation of financial need. After
further discussion with both BRPI representatives and AFID staff, along with TRRC Staff’s
knowledge of the AFID program, the status of the application is unclear. The budgeted $820,187
'AFID award does not appear to be a reasonable expectation considering that the AFID Facilities
Program Guidelines limit awards to a maximum of $500,000. The AFID Infrastructure program
limit is'$50,000. Although this project could qualify for these programs in the future, the award
amounts will cetrtainly be much smaller than those provided in the TRRC application.

Despite the years of effort BRPI has dedicated to this project, it continues to require significant
planning before it is at a point where implementation funding can be considered. A planning grant
application was recently submitted to USDA’s Local Food Promotion Program (LFPP). The
applicant also plans to apply for an AFID planning grant. No information for the scope of the
planning activities to be funded by these potential grants has been provided. BRPI’s decision to
request support for additional planning, rather than implementation, fusther Staff’s opinion that
Commission funds should not be committed at this time. f

Financial Viability Assessment: :

A review ‘of key viability critetia indicates that while this applicant is passionate about the project,
the proposal does not demonstrate that the capaaty and expettise currently exists to move the
project forward. Thete is not'a meat processing provider identified for the facility, nor is there
sufficient information regarding how they will obtain sufficient match to leverage the project. ‘The
budget is not appropriately scaled so that all partners are assuming equal or similar levels of risk. It is
also not suppotted by current construction ot equipment quotes. While the effort is supported by an

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia l’rogmm Staff Surmmncs & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 page 5

=11-



adequate business plan, the project is not ata stage that staff would consider viable for investment at
this time. This project requires further development to achieve viability.

Staff Recommendation: 7
Staff recommends no award at this time.

" Extensions and Modifications

‘Friends of Southwest Virginia

Building Appalachian Spring: Growing the Economy of Southwest Virginia
through Developing Outdoor Recreation Destinations (#3198)

Approved for $500,000 in September 2016 ($206,053 balance)

Request for final extension

Staff Overview & Comments: The balance of this grant is tequited to suppott development in the
Town of Haysi. This project, originally proposed as the development of a Riverwalk area has
encountered numerous challenges and revisions since this grant was approved seven years ago. These
‘changes were necessary to accommodate additional flood mitigation requitements as well as right of
way issues with private landowners. In its current form, the project is focused on improvements to
the areas around the Town owned pavilion in Haysi. These enhancements include new sidewalks and
cutbs, lighting, and landscaping. The parking lot will be paved, and additional signage will be installed.
These activities complement the recently completed Haysi to Breaks trail construction project also
supported under this grant. '

This grant was approved to support three separate and complex projects involving numetous partners
and funding sources. Based on the information provided, it appeats that at least one additional

extension will be needed to see the final project, focused on increasing access from the Town of Haysi
~ to the Russell Fork River and Breaks Intetstate Patk, to completion. The project is scheduled for
completion in eatly 2024. A nine-month extension was requested.

Staff recommends approval of a final extension through June 30, 2024.

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 page 6

-72-



 Floyd County EDA

Floyd Regional Commerce Center Phase II Development (#3191)
Approved for $420,696 in September 2017 ($406,273 balance)
Request for one-year extension

Staff Overview & Comments: The balance of this grant will be used for construction of utilities to
setve the additional building pads under development at the Cometce Centet. Phase II activities also
include the construction of an access road funded through the ARC Access Road Program. The
extension request approved by this Committee in October 2022 noted that the project was scheduled
for completion in 2024 and would requite, at minimum, one additional extension. Due to increased
construction costs since the time of the grant’s approval, additional funds ate tequited to complete
the project. The project was put out to bid in early 2023 with the lowest bid mote than $1M over
budget. The EDA has submitted an application to US-EDA to help close the funding gap. Given
these factors, it is likely that one or more additional extensions will be requited for this project.

Staff recommends approval of a one-year extension through September 30, 2024.

Floyd County EDA

Floyd Light Industrial Building and Growth Center Campus (#3558)
Approved for $497,475 in October 2019 ($28,834 balance)

Request for final extension

Staff Ovetview & Comments: This project was approved in 2019 to support the development of a
13,000 SF building suitable to house light industrial users. The project is exceptionally well matched.
To date, over $4.8M of additional funding has been repotted to TRRC. This amount includes over
$2M from US EDA. Floyd County EDA has contributed the remaining match for the project. An
extension is required to allow the grantee adequate time to close out the project including payment of
the retainage to the contractor. The US EDA has approved an extension until the end of January. The
Commission grant should be extended to align with this end date.

Staff recommends approval of a final extension through January 31, 2024.

Heart of Appalachia Tourism Authority

Coalfield Regional Tourism Destination Project (#3464)
Approved for $483,220 in September 2018 ($401, 598 27 balance)
Request for one year extension

Staff Overview & Comments: This balance of this grant is allocated for the design and site
development of the now named Three Rivers Destination Centet. The facility will serve as a visitot’s
center for the Clinch River State Park area. Design of the Center is now complete, and the construction
phase is fully funded. Much of the past year was spent completing an environmental impact process
before finally executing the contract with DHCD in June. The most cutrent project estimate was
provided approximately 20 months ago and indicates a total cost of $2.8M. Significant matching funds,
including a $1.5M POWER grant (ARC), $209K DHCD, and local in-kind support are committed for

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 © page7

-783-



the project. Due to rising costs, there is a funding deficit. Heart of Appalachia plans to address this
deficit through a phased construction effort to allow time for additional. fundraising. Lower priority
items such as landscaping fnay also be eliminated to ensure that available funds are focused on the
piimary project, a complete and functioning building. Although this project has been slow to proceed,
as is often the case when multiple funders are involved, it appeats to finally be on track. Slgmﬁcant
progress is expected during the next yeal

Staff recommends the apptoval of a one-year extension through September 30, 2024,

Southwest Regional Recreation Authority
Creating-a Sportsman’s Economy for Southwest Vitginia (#3564)

Approved for $125,000 in October 2019 ($80,676 balance)
Request for final extension

Staff Overview & Comments: This grant was approved four years ago to assist with the
development of a Rifle/Pistol Complex intended to allow SRRA to divetsify recteation oppottunities
. for visitors. Commission funds were allocated for Dixon Range for property and improvements and
equipment. Under the original scope of the project, a histotic cabin was to be restored and tenovated
to house restroom facilities and offices. The property was donated to SRRA by the previous owner
with the requitement that-the cabin be restored. Once the project was underway SRRA leadership
made the decision to dismantle the cabin and to construct a pole barn to house the restrooms, offices,
etc. TRRC Staff were not consulted about the change in project scope and initially declined the request
to reimburse Spearhead for the pole barn. After much discussion, a compromise was reached that
allowed for 50% teimbutsement of the new facility once the deliverables promised in the application
(restrooms and offices) were achieved. As a result, TRRC reimbursed less than the amount originally
budgeted for the project. Unfortunately, the property donot’s stipulation that the cabin be restored
went unfulfilled. New SRRA ieadership would like to rectify the situation and see the cabin restored
as promised. The balance of the TRRC grant will be used for reconstruction of the cabin (~$35,000)
which will now house a First Aid Station. The propetty will also be surveyed to ensure boundaries are
properly identified to prevent unauthorized access and create a safety zone. While these activities were
not included in the otiginal application, they ate teasonable additions to the project scope. Staff is
supportive of this change which will allow the conditions of the propetty donation to be achieved

" while continuing development of the site.

Staff rtecommends approval of a nine-month extension through July 31, 2024.

TRRC —FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 pdge 8

-74-



Tazewell County IDA
Cultural Arts of Southwest Vitginia Corporation (#3557)
Approved for $225,000 in October 2019 ($161,383 balance)

Staff Overview & Comments: This grant was approved to assist with the cost of constructing two
additions totaling 2,500 square feet to be added to the building to cteate space suitable for live
petformances. Tazwell County IDA is the grantee however the beneficiary is a non-profit formed
around the time of the grant’s approval, Cultural Azts of Southwest Virginia Corporation. The
building is owned by a for profit entity, Tazewell Cinema & Entettainment LLC, however the space
developed as a result of this project is controlled by the non-profit. Since the grant’s approval, only
a small amount of funding has been released. These expenses reflect demolition work as well as site
preparation required for the addition. An additional reimbursement request was submitted in eatly
,September. It has been held while SW Office staff work with the County and the non-profit
beneficiaty to determine which expenses ate allowable under the scope of the award. The extension
submitted in September desctibes problems with boundary adjustments affecting an adjacent
landownet. Most of the wotk petfofmed over the past year appeats to be additional site
development wotk needed to correct these problems. The project also tequired additional AKE
design to accommodate the new property boundaries. Costs associated with both the additional site
development, as well as the redesign, may not be covered by the grant. These expenses are a result
of the project’s lack of appropriate due diligence and are not the responsibility of the Commission.

There is no general contractor responsible for the project. All wotk petformed to date has been self-
contracted by the beneficiary, which has primarily used a single local contractor. No formal contract
_exists which details the scope of the work, associated costs, or an estimated complétion time. There
does not appeat to be a cettain path to completion. If additional time is provided for this project, it
must be accompanied by new requirements which remedy this oversight. No additional TRRC funds
should be released until the project, from this point th.tough to completion, has been competitively

‘bid and a professional contractor, with formal contract satisfactory to TRRC grant staff’s approval,
selected. :

Staff recommends approval of a one-year extension through October 31, 2024, contingent
upon the project’s solicitation and selection of a contractor through a competitive process,
suitable to the project. The grant will be frozen until the contingency has been met.

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Sumniaries & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 page 9

—-75—-



Virginia Highlands Community College Educational Foundation
Advanced Technology and Workforce Development Center (#3465)
Approved for $1,000,000 in September 2018 ($1,000,000 balance)

- Request for one-year extension

Staff Overview & Comments: This grant was awarded to assist with the construction of a new
wotkforce development building located on VHCC’s campus. A groundbreaking was held in
November 2021 and construction began soon after. Due to rising construction costs, VHHCC made
the decision to begin construction while continuing fundtaising to raise support to complete the
facility. The initial phases of construction wete compléted in February 2022 (site grading, road
construction, watet-sewer-electric infrastructure installation, and steel package purchase and erection).

In September 2022 the Commission approved a one-yeat extension with the condition that the grant
be used for “last dollar” construction expenses after all fundraising required to complete the project
is available and spent. The anticipated total cost of the project is $8.5M with $5M previously raised.
Some of these funds were used for the initial construction phases. An additional $3.5M is needed to
fund the project through to completion. Over the past year, VHCC has been extremely successful
with fundraising efforts. In addition to a $1M award from the Wellspring Foundation, an anonymous
donot has pledged up to §2M for the project. Only $5K remains to be raised.

Due to the successful fundraising efforts, VHCC has requested that the contingency placed upon the
project with last year’s extension be removed. Staff recognizes the successful fundraising efforts and
suggests a slightly altered contingency to allow, at the Grants Ditector’s approval, the use of TRRC
funding duting the final construction phase. The project must be under contract and ready to proceed
withconstruction. Documentation of the availability of all funding required to complete the project
must also be provided. '

Staff recommends a one-year extension through September 30, 2024, conditioned upon the
Grants Directot’s approval to release funds to support the final phase of construction. This
approval may be requested once the project is under contract and has documented that all

funds necessary to complete the project ate available to use concurrently with the TRRC
grant,

TRRC — FY24 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — October 12, 2023 ’ page 10

-76-



STRATEGIC PLANNING
COMMITTEE

=717-



» [n-Person Meeting »

‘ _ AGENDA
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Inn at Blackstone
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA
Thursday, October 12, 2023
10:30 A.M.

" The publlo may remotely participate in this meetmg by accessing the followmg dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and’
enter coufel ence ID: 742 579 325#. ,

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Leslie “Les” Adams, Vice Chair
Call of the Roll The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the 5/18/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment
Discussion of Revised Strategic Plan Mpr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Other Business Mpr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director

Adjournment

~78-



A Strategic Plan for the

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
2023-2025

October 2023

Tobacco Region Revitalizd@en Commission - Page 1



Table of Contents

About the Commission

Overview
Mission
Vision
Priorities

Funding & Strategic Priorities

Overview

Key Funding Priorities
Strategic Priorities
Committee Structure

Fiscal Management
Commission Foundation
Investing in the Regions
Program Outcomes and Goals

Operations

Program Design
Meeting Schedule
Loan Fund - Operational Description

Appendices

Appendix A: Organizational Chart

BB B W

16
17
18

.19

Tobacco Region Revitalia8@en Commission - Page 2



About the Commission
Overview

In 1998, the Attorneys General of 46 states signed the Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) with
the four largest tobacco companies in the United States to settle state suits and recover billions
of dollars in costs associated with treating smoking-related illnesses. Four states - Florida,
Minnesota, Mississippi, and Texas - settled their tobacco cases separately from the MSA states. A
portion of the MSA proceeds funded the creation of the Tobacco Region Revitalization

- Commission.

Chapters 31 and 31.1 of Title 3.2 of the Code of Virginia contain statutes governing various
aspects of the Commission.! Broadly, those serving the Commission may be split into two groups
- members (or commissioners) and staff.

The Commission is composed of 28 members and appoints from its membership a chairperson
and vice-chairperson. These and other details on membership are described in §3.2-3102.
Members are appointed to one or more committees. Each committee is assigned a chairperson

by the Commission chair. Some committees have a vice-chairperson or are structured to have co-
chairs.

A current organizational chart of staff may be found on page 18.

Tobacco Region
Revitalization Commission
| footprint localities

I southiern - 20 counties &3 cities
[ Southwest = 14-¢ounties & 3 cities

Shenamlual

o~
Nonhamiptor

Gloucasta
Faracs Ciry
Yoih

1 During the 2015 legislative session, section §62.1-203 of the Code of Virginia was amended to include reference to the Virginia
Tobacco Region Revolving Loan Fund (§3.2-3117). This section describes the powers of the Virginia Resources Authority.

Tobacco Region Revitaliz8fien Commission - Page 3



Mission

The Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission is created as a body corporate and a political
subdivision of the Commonwealth and as such shall have, and is vested with, all of the politic and
corporate powers as are set forth in this chapter. The Commission is established for the purposes
of determining the appropriate recipients of moneys in the Tobacco Indemnification and
Community Revitalization Fund and causing distribution of such moneys for-the purposes
provided in this chapter, including using moneys in the Fund to ... revitalize tobacco-dependent
communities.?

Section 3.2-3101, Code of Virginia3
Vision

In today's environment - where markets are largely global and employment is increasingly
knowledge-based - the Commission seeks to accelerate regional transformation, giving citizens
expansive opportunities for education and employment, and providing communities the benefits
of economic stability, diversification, and enhanced prosperity. In particular, the Commission
seeks to meet the region’s specific challenges related to a historic dependence on tobacco
production, textile and furniture manufacturing, and coal production. 4

As a result, the Commission also recognizes that investments should reflect and directly advance
local, regional and state priorities as established by elected and appointed officials,
representatives from institutions of higher education, and other community leaders. The
Commission views economic development as a partnership and will - as often as practicable -
seek input from regional stakeholders to ensure its priorities align with those of the region.

The Commission’s work is grounded in an objective and quantifiable economic base analysis. In
general, directly productive industries, and the workforce training and development which
supports them, do more to further this goal and should be favored over an increase in service
industries primarily serving local markets.

Finally, the Commission must focus on ensuring the maximum impact of its expenditures, both as
they relate to creating economic growth and as they relate to maintaining the Commission’s
fiscal sustainability as a critical source of capital to the region the Commission serves.

Priorities
The Commission must continue to adapt to meet the challenges of reduced budgets and a

changing economic landscape over the next decade and beyond, if it is to continue being a
catalyst for growth and increased prosperity across Southern and Southwest Virginia.

2The statute also contains a section referring to the Commission’s mission to indemnify tobacco farmers through direct payments. That
portion of the mission was deemed completed and is'omitted here for clarity.

3 The full section of the code can be accessed at: hitp:/law.lis.virginia.gov/vacodeftitle3.2/chapterd1/section3.2-3101/

4The most updated survey economic data (and links to regional and MSA data) are available from the Bureau of Labor Statistics,
accessible at: http://www.bls.gov/eag/eag.va.htm '

Tobacco Region Revitaliz8flen Commission - Page 4



Specifically, this means that the Commission will continue to be more efficient in the way it
conducts business, seek to create new funding avenues through the creation of an outside
nonprofit, and make the best use of staff expertise and regional marketing initiatives.

Ultimately, the Commission will transition into an organization engaged in increasing access to
capital and continuing its workforce and infrastructure missions through targeted grants
made from interest on the corpus, recovery of security interests, and other development
activities such as receipt of grants and donations.

Funding & Strategic Priorities

The Commission receives numerous applications each year and must determinehow to allocate
its limited annual budgets to best serve the needs of the Tobacco Region. This will become even
more important as the Commission enters its third decade with a diminished corpus and
reduced earnings on that corpus. While the Commission will retain the ability to fundlarge scale,
regionally transformative projects at a high level, individual grant awards will be lower than in
prior years and the requirements to acquire funding will be higher.

. The three mechanisms that inform staff recommendations and Commission decisions regarding
which projects to fund, whether by loan or grant, are: 1) our Key Funding Priorities, which
describe the sorts of project categories that will receive preference over all others, 2) our
Committee Structure and Program Outcomes and Goals metrics; and 3) our General Funding
Policies, which describe specific policies related to uses of funds and project finance rules.

Notably, the Commission’s work aligns with five out of the six strategies outlined in the
Governor’s Comprehensive Economic Development plan, “Compete to Win.” These strategies
include:

1. Refine Industry Segmentation: The Commission’s programs enhance Southern and
Southwest Virginia’s ability to generate industry growth in economic sectors that make
sense for each region’s unique geography, economic assets, cultural values, and
populations. ‘

2. Unleash a Talented Workforce: The Commission’s investments in competitive
education projects and workforce financial aid for career and technical education at
regional community colleges produce a labor force trained for employer-demanded skill
sets utilizing state of the art facilities and equipment.

3. Accelerate Site and Infrastructure Development: Throughout its history, the
Commission has committed to investing in the establishment and continued
improvement of numerous industrial parks and sites across the region.

4, Break Down Barriers: The funding provided by the Commission amplifies resources
for economic and workforce development in the regions, thereby removing obstacles to
industry attraction and talent development.

5. Drive Innovation: The Commission’s projects are often centered around partnerships
between business, academic institutions, local and regional economic development
organizations, and the regional populations to drive innovative approaches to
entrepreneurship and business development.

Tobacco Region Revitalie§en Commission - Page 5



The ongoing work of the Commission, powered by the Governor’s aggressive vision for economic
development, provide an opportunity to paly a new and more potent role in leading and
accelerating the region’s economic transformation.

Key Funding Priorities

The Commission has narrowed its focus to areas in which it can make the highest impact while
remaining a strong steward of its resources. In no particular order of preference, the
Commission’s funding priorities shall include:

; 1

Education and workforce development: As the national and global economies
increase focus on human capital, the Commission must continue to support the
region’s efforts to address economic competitiveness factors and ensure employers
can hire top-flight talent. This will remain a focus for the Commission as we believe it
presents opportunity for high return on investment and supports long-term
economic growth. '

Funding will be awarded in two main categories:

a. Competitive education grant-making, in which the Commission provides capital
to post-secondary institutions for the creation of new programs or to expand
existing, in-demand programs.

b. Workforce financial aid, in which the Commission reduces the cost of credential
or degree attainment at the region’s community colleges and higher education
centers. '

Agribusiness: Agriculture and forestry are Virginia’s first and third largest
industries, respectively. These industries play an even more central role in the
economic vitality of the Tobacco Region, making the Commission’s support of
agribusiness especially important. The purpose of the Commission’s Agribusiness
funding strategy is to expand on the region’s current strengths in agriculture and
forestry, while developing new sectors that build on existing assets. In recognition
of the many partners providing valuable financial, marketing and technical
assistance to these industries, the Commission’s Agribusiness program will focus on
coordination and collaboration with these entities to maximize their combined
impact in the region. Priority will be given to projects creating and expanding the
infrastructure and systems that offer the region’s producers new and improved
market opportunities that are sustainable and build on the region’s strengths.. .

Energy: Access to affordable, reliable, renewable, and clean energy resources.is an
increasingly important location factor for industry. Therefore, it is crucial that the
Commission expand its focus on ensuring the region’s industrial sites can offer
prospective companies ready access to sufficient energy resources and
infrastructure, and support development of new energy generation, innovation, and
storage projects in ways that further elevate the region’s attractiveness to industry.

Tobacco Region Revitali#fien Commission - Page 6



4. TROF: The purpose of the Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund (TROF) is to offer
localities in the footprint an economic development tool for winning competitive
economic development projects. The TROF Program will provide performance-based
grants and loans to localities in the footprint to assist inthe creation of new jobs and
investment, whether through new business attraction or existing business expansion.
Grants and loans, awarded at the Commission’s discretion, are evaluated in a manner
consistent with the goals of the Commission and amounts are awarded commensurate
with the project’s impact on the community and/or region in which the project is
locating. Evaluation of award amounts are consistent throughout the region and
based on the following criteria: prevailing wage rates, number of new jobs, taxable

capital investment, industry type, and the possibility of related economic multiplier
effect.

Incremental improvements to the TROF program have been made over time and these
should continue. The program should remain discretionary, reserved for projects the:
staff are persuaded are truly competitive, and which might not develop absent TROF
funds. Projects eligible for TROF funding must enjoy the support of economic
development staff in the locality and region, and the Commission’s regional
marketing team (when they have been involved). TROF will be reserved for projects
in traded sectors that promise to increase the locality’s prevailing wage and
significant preference should be given to projects that enjoy the support of sister
state agency programs like the Commonwealth Opportunity Fund, Agriculture and
Forestry Industries Development (AFID) grants, or similar programs.

5. Industrial and business infrastructure: Footprint localities (and the
Commonwealth as a whole) continue to have a shortage of available and desirable
locations in which to place industrial and business facilities. This shortage of both
building stock and infrastructure assets puts the region at a competitive
disadvantage when competing with other states to attract top employers along with
the jobs and investment they bring. The Commission will continue to make grants
and loans to support the creation and improvement of industrial sites, business
locations, shell buildings, and telecommunications infrastructure to close this gap
and ensure that localities within the Commission footprint can compete successfully
for projects. Priority will be given to projects that improve the readiness of sites
already under development within the region, as opposed to the acquisition and
development of new sites.

6. Business District Redevelopment: The rural towns in the Tobacco Region serve as
important community focal points and economic centers. Due to changing
transportation and economic patterns, these rural communities have faced acute
challenges that are often reflected in extremely low-to-medium household incomes,
lack of well-paying job opportunities, high rates of out-commuting by the workforce
and high building vacancy rates. Priority will be given to projects that would catalyze
re-development and investment in properties serving multiple commercial and/or
entrepreneurial business interests. This may include support for business
development centers, shared professional offices and/or small-scale production
space.

Tobacco Region Revitalig§Fen Commission - Page 7



7. Community Assets and Opportunities: Many rural areas in the Tobacco Region are
fortunate to have natural resources and cultural assets with the potential to develop
into tourist destinations. Generally tourism projects are a lower priority but the
Commission will consider projects more favorably when they are regional in nature
and/or required for matching substantial investment by other funders.

Strategic Priorities

Along with changes in funding priorities it is necessary to make changes to the way in which
the Commission conducts business and seek out ways to utilize existing resources more
effectively.

Committee Structure

The Commission has five standing committees, with the option to create new committees

on an ad-hoc basis for special purposes. All committees meet at the call of their respective
committee chairpersons. '

Most committees evaluate grant and loan proposals from eligible applicants, as specified

by each Request for Proposal. These committees make recommendations to the overall

Commission as to what projects should be funded and in what amounts. Some committees

are operational in nature and recommend policy or process changes to the Commission.
_The overall purpose and objectives of each committee is described below.

1. Executive - The Executive Committee is the Commission’s ruléemaking and
administrative committee. The chair and vice-chair of the Commission serve as
the chair and vice-chair of this committee.

2. Southern Virginia Committee - The Southern Virginia Committee hears proposals
from applicants for grants or loans to support economic development in Southern
Virginia. Previously allocated funds will continue to be assigned to specific
counties, but future program funds will be available to all southern counties,
cities, towns and nonprofits within the region.

3. Southwest Virginia Committee - The Southwest Virginia Committee hears
proposals from applicants for grants or loans to support economic development
in Southwest Virginia. Program funds are available to all southwest counties,
cities, towns and nonprofits within the region, without regard to any specific
tobacco-related local data, historic or current.

4, Education - The Education Committee hears proposals for grants or loans for-

competitive education funding as well as financial aid support at community
colleges and higher education centers throughout the footprint.

Tobacco Region RevitaliZBBon Commission - Page 8



5. Incentives and Loans - This committee will oversee both TROF and Community
and Business lending policy and awards.

6. Such ad-hoc committees as may be necessary to accomplish specific tasks. A
good example is the strategic planning committee tasked with the production of
this report. As programs are established to meet the new Energy funding priority
and the renewed focus on Agribusiness, separate committees, either permanent
or ad hoc, to review applications to these programs may be established, or they
may be reviewed by the Southern Virginia and Southwest committees. Decisions
on what committee will review these applications will be made by the Executive
Committee,

Fiscal Management

The Commission’s efforts toward sustainability have slowed the decline in Commission finances,
but they have not stopped it. It is imperative that the Commission take further steps to reduce
and reverse the decline in Commission assets and ensure that the Commission will remain a
viable and impactful entity for change until the communities the Commission serves are at least
as economically successful as the Commonwealth as a whole.

Sustainability: During, and upon completion of the transition to sustainability, the
Commission will only reduce its overall financial position in instances of truly game-
changing economic development opportunities, meaning facilities with many hundreds
or thousands of jobs at or above the prevailing wage and investment in excess of $250
million. Otherwise, the Commission’s focus on sustainability will require that, moving
forward, the Commission only grant from earnings on the Commission’s corpus, interest
on existing loans, and assets created by the new development team. In the next iteration
of the Commission’s strategic planning process, this fiscal transition will be evaluated,
and the Strategic Planning Committee will recommend continuing, pausing, or reversmg
this transition based on documented financial changes.

Asset management. The Commission’s grant agreements require that any grantee
deliver, to the Commission, a security interest in any real, tangible, or intellectual property
that is purchased with non-TROF grant funds. For many years these assets existed and
would occasionally be transferred to the private sector and trigger a clawback, but there
has only recently been a systematic approach to cataloguing our property and recording
our interest in that property. This means that the Commission is the partial owner of
millions of dollars of land, buildings, and high-value equipment across the footprint.
Moving forward, the Commission will complete the cataloguing of this portfolio of
equipment and real property that has already begun in the field offices and record right to
reimbursement notices against all assets over a specific value. Once properly catalogued
and right to reimbursement notices have been recorded, the Commission will also explore
potential uses of this portfolio and determine if it represents something that could be
leveraged to support future activities.

Tobacco Region RevitalizB¢ion Commission - Page 9



Fund development. (See: Commission Foundation) A transition to better fiscal
managementmeans that the Commission has the potential to grow in the years ahead and
improve its financial position. However, the Commission also does work that could be
supported by charitable contributions and grants from other entities, which would take
further pressure off of the current corpus. This entity would be a new vehicle for bringing
funding to support Commission projects.

To facilitate this move to outside funding, the Commission plans to create a non-
governmental nonprofit to oversee the acquisition and allocation of funds for the purpose
of grant making. This will require the hiring of development staff who will seek grants
from the government and charitable foundations as well as individual contributions from
donors that care about the success of Commission-supported communities.

Commission Foundation

Much of the work the Commission undertakes in its largest budget area, education, which
includes workforce development and talent attraction, is eminently eligible for funding via
other grant-makers and donors. It makes good fiscal sense for the Commission to pursue the
creation of an outside nonprofit, which should, once it has built up a portfolio of donors and
grants, be able to fund the Commission’s education and talent attraction work without requiring
significant inputs from the Commission’s corpus.

Bring in outside funds. By creating a foundation or nonprofit that resembles those
operated by the Foundation for Healthy Youth or any Virginia public university, the ,
Commission will have a vehicle to receive funds from other organizations and individuals.
This nonprofit foundation will seek both private and public sector grants as a means of
continuing to fund Commission programs, particularly in energy, education and economic
revitalization. '

Management. This outside entity will be managed by a board composed primarily of
current members and staff of the Commission in an effort to prevent any divide between
the two organizations. The Executive Committee will initially appoint the membership of
the board of the nonprofit, and those members will serve two-year terms with the
opportunity for multiple reappointments.

Initial funding and staff. The Commission will make the initial investment in this
nonprofit for the purposes of hiring a development staffer who will- work out of the
Richmond office. It will be the job of this staffer to seek grant and donation opportunities
that align with the goals of the Commission’s energy, education and economic
revitalization programs and pursue those opportunities.

Tobacco Region Revitaliz88om Commission - Page 10



Investing in the Regions

Regional Marketing and Development Efforts. The Commission will implement measures to
assess the value and productivity of its regional marketing efforts, and continue to engage
partners to support funding to expand promotion of economic development opportunities in its

geographical footprint.

Program Qutcomes and Goals

Each programmatic committee of the Commission does its work in pursuit of specific “project
outputs,” each of which supports one or more of the “targeted outcomes,” the long-term goals of
the program. Below, each committee’s work is broken out into one or more logic models that
display the specific outputs supporting each programmatic goal. It is the goal of Commission staff
to evaluate projects, both before awards are given and in follow-up, on how well they meet the
clear metrics laid out in project outputs when grants or loans are awarded. For more detail on
specific metrics, please contact Commission staff.

Inputs, Activities and Participants

Broadly, TRRC has five different programs, each with one or more investment strategies. Each
program and strategy has specific outputs, or deliverables from the project, which target specific
outcomes in the region. Below is a comprehensive representation of the Inputs, Activities and
Partlc1pant5, though some may vary by program.

Inputs

Contributions:
Core Funding
Matching Funding

(State, Federal, Local
and Private Partners)

Central Staff
Regional Staff
Software

Offices & Equipment
Commission &
Committees
Website

Partners:
Investors
Workforce
Policy Makers
Other Partners

Activities
Pre-application
assistance, workshops,
program marketing
Review and Evaluate
Proposals
Staff Recommendations
Committee
Recommendations
Commission Decisions
Grant Agreements
Process Grant Payments
(Reimbursements)

Site Visits
Troubleshoot Grantees
Progress Reports

Set Policy

Evaluate Programs

Participants

Government Entities
For-profit
Organizations
Non-profit
Organizations
Educational Institutions
Regional Partnerships

Tobacco Region RevitalizB8on Commission - Page 11



Investment Strategies, Project Outputs, and Targeted Outcomes

Investment Strategies
* Investment Strategies are the "tracks" selected by the grant applicant.
» Each investment strategy has a specific set of associated outputs and outcome(s).

Project Outputs

Outputs are the legally-binding, contractual obligations specified in the grant agreement.
Outputs may vary by program, by investment strategy, or they may be the same.

Outputs are synonymous with "deliverables."

Outputs are projected, anticipated, or estimated in the application, and updated with actuals
during and at the close of the project

For a more intuitive reference, TRRC refers to outputs as "project outputs.”

Targeted Outcomes
* Outcomes are the measures being targeted by the program.
* Qutcomes are difficult to directly target on a project basis
»  For example, it is unreasonable to put as an output in the grant agreement that a project
must decrease the unemployment rate in the locality which it is based.

+ Instead, the output is to create new jobs, which should have a positive effect on
decreasing the unemployment rate.

+  For a more intuitive reference, TRRC refers to outcomes as "targeted outcomes."

Tobacco Region Revitali#@fJen Commission - Page 12



TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND (TROF) LOGIC MODEL

&

£

Economic
Investment Strategy DE Sk paat
; S e
| Associated |
Project Outputs | Jobs created % aVeravgggaénnual |
| (weighted)
,jg 2 3 2 2 = —
| | Increase local Increase local [
i employment/ ; i
. Targeted Outcomes  EEECEEARGET capital assets, | Increase local

revenues, and | | median wage

unemployment ' : '
| economic base §

rate

SOUTHERN & SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM LOGIC MODEL

Agribusiness _
Agriculture is the dominant industry in the Commission footprint. The Commission strives to
grow and diversify agribusiness in the region through investment in the following types of
projects:
e Commercial Agriculture Product and Food Processing Facilities
Cost Share Programs
Crop and Livestock Demonstration
Local Farmers Markets
Multipurpose Agriculture Centers
Wholesale & Retail Cooperative Marketing

Tobacco Region Revitaliz§tfan Commission - Page 13



—

Investment Strategy

Crops and Livestock:

: Quantity, Yield, Dbt eatn { { Revenue Growth,
Project Outputs | Acreage, Level of ‘ SEE | Increase in Net Farm
b - | Producers
| Adoption by ‘ | | Income

Producers

3 Increase agricultural | Increase sustainable
Increase product i

Targeted Outcomes i : and livestock i | aeribusiness and
} | i | production exports

Economic Development
The Commission supports investment to increase capacity for economic development

opportunities within the region through the following types of projects:
e Physical infrastructure improvements (industrial site development, shell buildings,
water/sewer, energy generation, capacity, and infrastructure)
e Regional asset development
e Technology infrastructure and connectivity improvements

Investment Strategy ;-

. e [ o [ oo o
Project OUtpUtS utilities and 1 investment § E{“‘_"“'
technology | visitors

in i Increase iy ey Increase Increase Revenue

{ business B in g in r_eglonal growth
Targeted Outcomes ll conarice [l i tocal W e el

creation H prospect unemploy H

activity

revenues and | visitor
| economic base {§ spending

local
-ment

salary

Tobacco Region Revitali#@flen Commission - Page 14



Energy Capacity and Innovation Fund

i E & it d
Investment Strategy i:

(ST r e —— [T T U T O

)

Number
of jobs
created

: | increase in coverage and |
Project Outputs | capacity for energy

needs of industry

Capital
investment

{ Increase in [
| bonafide &
prospect
activity
| and |
Ml announce- |
i  ments

Increase in

Targeted Outcomes [P |
| creation and §

Decrease in J§ B Increase regional |

8 Increase in j ;
j Increase i § capital assets,

revenues and
economic base

local
unemploy
ment

average [
i} local salary JS

expansion

EDUCATION PROGRAM LOGIC MODEL
Through its education programs, the Commission seeks to prepare citizens for new-economy
employment opportunities through workforce development, higher education scholarship and
loan programs for the two regions and competitive grants to community colleges and other post-
secondary educational entities. These types of projects include:

e Advanced Manufacturing Workforce Training Programs

e High School Equivalency (GED) Programs

e Post-Secondary Programs, with a focus on STEM-H
e Workforce Training Programs

e Community College Financial Aid

Tobacco Region Revitaliz@§en Commission - Page 15



I Education and
Investment Strategy | Training

Programs

Participating
Students,
Trainees and
Employers

I Numberand [

| Types of Degrees [

| or Credentials |
Awarded

Project Outputs

Increase local

Targeted Outcomes skilled
I employmentin

target professions

| Increase educational §
‘ attainment, |
| credentials and

| certifications among §

Increase in skilled
workforce in the
region

population

Operations

This section describes the internal operations of the Commission. Five areas are covered:

Program Design, Meeting Schedule, Loan Fund Operational Description and Organization
Chart.

Program Design. Each program has specific outputs and outcomes that are directly tied
to the goals of each program. The duration of thesegoals can vary between programs.
e Qutputs are specific deliverables required from a project by an awarded applicant
(or grantee) to satisfy the obligations of the grant agreement.
e QOutcomes are the measures a program targets for effecting change.

A small but important distinction is that unlike outputs, outcomes cannot be targeted
directly. Program specific outputs vary because program-specific outcomes vary. Project

success is judged on delivered outputs, while program success is judged on effected
outcomes.®

5 In practice, itis often difficult to judge a program's success on effected outcomes because of other exogenous effects on that same
outcome (e.g. lowering the unemployment rate). Examining the realized outputs of a program over time is another way to judge program

success. However, this approach provides no information on the outcomes the program was intentionally and specifically designed to ~ -
effect.

Tobacco Region Revitaliz§fjon Commission - Page 16



Every applicant to a program must clearly articulate and demonstrate how the
specific project relates to the goals of the program, what outputs shall be delivered,
when such outputs are delivered, and the anticipated effect of these outputs on the
outcomes targeted by the program.

Commission staff review and score submitted applications. and prepare a report
containing background information, an evaluation of the financial viability of the
proposed projects, a recommendation on each application, and distribute the report to
the appropriate committee for review in advance of the next committee meeting.
Although staff are neither members of the Commission nor members of any committee,
they are available before, during, and after committee meetings to answer questions from
applicants or members or the public.

If an applicant is awarded a grant, a grant agreement must be signed between the
Commission as the grantor, the awarded applicant as the grantee, and the final recipient of
the grant funds. Depending on the outputs of a project, the deliverables in the grant
agreement may vary within or between programs. Grant agreements are legally enforceable
contractual obligations between the signed parties. Every grant agreement contains
clauses that provide legal remedies, including in certain cases a clawback provision,
which may be exercised in the event of any unapproved use or misuse of Commission
funds, and/or outputs specified in the signed grant agreement not being met by a
specified point in time.

The grantee responds to interim assessments (surveys) on progress made toward achieving
the obligated outputs. Interim assessments are program specific. The assessments are
intended to provide the Commission with useful quantitative data on theprogress of the
project toward completion. The Commission or Commission staff may, at any time, request
additional information from grantees.

A final assessment is done once a project is completed within the duration specified in the
grant agreement. A project is considered complete when the obligated outputs are met or
exceeded, or when the obligated outputs either have not or will not be met. In the event of
the latter, a clawback may be initiated by the Commission. Under no circumstances will a
final disbursement of funds be made to any grantee before Commission staff have
received, reviewed, and validated the final assessment from the grantee.

A project is closed once all documentation is received by the Commission and all
obligations are considered satisfied.

Meeting Schedule. The Commission meets three times each year, as described below,, with
committees meeting as needed in the interim and before each full Commission meeting:

1. The Commission’s winter meeting shall be held in January, prior to the
convening of the General Assembly.

2. The Commission’s spring meeting shall be held in May or early June.

3. The Commission’s fall meeting shall be held in September or early October.

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commissien - Page 12

_.95._.



) of
Any additional meetings may be called at the request of the chair, but the Commission has
a goal of accomplishing its annual business during its three regular meetings. Should a

major unforeseen event occur, meetings may be rescheduled at the discretion of the
Commission’s chair.

With the passage of HB444 (regarding electronic meetings by public bodies) into law during
the 2022 General Assembly session, the Commission will evaluate the incorporation of
meeting via electronic means for some functions such as called meetings outside of the
regular meeting schedule.

Revolving Loan Fund - Operational Description. The Tobacco Commission was
authorized during the 2015 session of the General Assembly to set up a revolving loan
fund in partnership with the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA).2

This loan fund is the preferred funding option for any grant applications in support of
projects that are likely to generate sufficient recurring revenue to service loans. This
fund is distinct from the Commission’s business and community lending portfolio.

When grant or loan requests are made by localities, they are routed to the relevant
committee, and evaluated by Commission staff. Commission staff recommend to the
committee that the applicant receive no award, receive a grant in some amount, or be
reviewed for a loan up to some amount. Should the relevant committee, and then the full
Commission, choose to extend a loan, the applicant will be directed to VRA for a
creditworthiness evaluation. Upon completion of that evaluation, a loan will be extended
from the revolving loan fund in an amount equal to the lesser of the applicants’
creditworthiness or their loan offer from the Commission. Upon notice from VRA that a
loan will be extended, the amount of the loan will be deducted from the relevant
committee budget and transferred to VRA. In future years, when the revolving loan fund
has adequate resources from repayments, its funds will be allocated for the use of various
committees during the budget process.

When loan requests are made directly by businesses, Commission staff, in partnership with
VRA, shall determine the eligibility of the applicant business for a loan. If the applicant is
eligible and Commission staff support the making of a loan, VRA staff shall extend a loan
directly to the relevant business, and Commission staff shall take any measures necessary to
secure pledged collateral or other security necessary to protect the taxpayers.

2 The full statute and details can be found in the Virginia Code at § 3.2-3112 et seq.
Tobacco Region Revitalization Cemmission - Fage 18!

—-96-



Appendix A:

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

Organizational Chart

Governor

28-Member Secretary of Commerce & Trade

Tobacco Commission

Executive Director

Special Assistant

ENERGY

Energy Development &
Innovation Director

GRANTS FINANCE ADMINISTRATION

Grants Program Director Director of Finance Deputy Director

Grant System

Administrator Financial Services Specialist Meeting Coordinator

(PT temp)

Public Relations Director/

Southern Regional Southwest Regional TROF Manager
Director Director

Southern Grants Assistant Southwest Grants Assistant

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 19!

-97-



FULL COMMISSION

-98—-



= [n-Person Meeting »

AGENDA
FULL COMMISSION

The Inn at Blackstone
707 Fourth Street
Blackstone, VA
Thursday, October 12, 2023
11:30 A.M.

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in pumbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: 742 579 325#. ' - '

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order- The Homnorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Call of the Roll , The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the 5/18/23 Minutes . (published on website)

Public Comment -

Brief on Governor’s “Compete to Win” The Honorable Caren Merrick, Secretary of
Economic Development Strategy Commerce and Trade

Executive Committee . The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Education Committee T he Honorable Louise Lucas, Chair
Incentives & Loans Committee - The Honorable Danny Marshall, Chair
Southern Virginia Committee M. Waker “Buddy” Shefton, Chair

| Southwest Vil;ginia Committee R Th.e Honorable James “Will” Morefield, Chair
Strategic Planning Committee ~ The Honorable Leslie “Les” Adams, Vice Chair
TROF & CBL Loan Updates . Mpr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Other Business Mpr. Stephen Versen. Deputy Director
Adjournment o

._.9'9_



FOUNDATION
FORTHE
ADVANCEMENT
OF SOUTHERN
AND
SOUTHWEST VA
(FASS-VA)

FOUNDATION GOALS

A PRIVATE, NOT-FOR-PROFIT 501(C)(3) “ARM” FORTHE TRRC:

* Purpose: to help revitalize Southern and Southwest Virginia

* Provide flexibility in raising funds for Tobacco Region initiatives

* Identify and apply for federal, state, and private funding related to economic
revitalization of the Tobacco Region, including but not limited to:

* Energy

* Agriculture ‘
+ Education

¢« Economic Development

* Increase the TRRC's capacity to become an even larger catalyst for growth in
Southern and Southwest Virginia

10/3/2023



FOUNDATION STRUCTURE

Proposed Structure:

+ Contractual relationship between Foundation and Commission with
Commission staff providing staff support for the Foundation
* Five to nine members
* Includes two TRRC staff

* No more than 49% from concurrently serving Commission members (to maintain
independence)

* Two-year terms

* Executive Committee of the Commission will initially appoint the Foundation
board; Foundation board will appoint thereafter

+ Initial funding request of $100,000 for legal and filing fees, grant writing
consultants, accounting services and other start-up costs

FOUNDATION START-UP

Legal Fees $ 25,000

GrantWriter 50,000 Identify and apply for federal and private funding opportunities
Accountant 10,000 Tax filings, audits

Other . 15,000 Other admin costs

Total Request $100,000

-101-

10/3/2023



10/3/2023

FOUNDATION NEXT STEPS

* Commission approval of name, purpose, board composition, and initial funding
and delegate authority to the Executive Committee to approve final documents
* Attorney creates
« Articles of Incorporation
« Bylaws
« IRS and SCC filings

* Executive Committee approves final documents and appoints initial members

* Obtain non-profit status (approx. six-month process)

=1 02=



Tobacco Region Agribusiness Project Fund (TRAP)

A innovative approach for agribusiness project development

Objectives :
e Develop and implement impactful agribusiness projects in the Tobacco Region benefiting
current and prospective producers with new and expanded market opportunities

e leverage Federal, state and private funding resources for agribusiness development through
unprecedented collaboration among key partners that maximizes each partners’ assistance
available to quality projects !

e Orient the agribusiness development towards a collaborative model of resource organizaﬁons
partnering to better coordinate and serve one another’s clients and to develop transformational
projects in the region. ;

Major Funding and Technical Assistance Partners (the TRAP Team)

The TRAP Program will be led by the Tobacco Commission’s Deputy Director and Grants Staff, in
collaboration with the following organizations:

e Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (VDACS) — Office of Agriculture and
Forestry Development :

e United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) — Rural Development
e Virginia Foundation for Agriculture, Innovation and Rural Sustainability (VA-FAIRS)
e Virginia Small Business Financing Authority

This core team of resource organizations will be enlarged as needed to bring in other funding and
assistance organization to assist with project development and implementation. These organizations
may include: ' :

e Virginia Cooperative Extension

e Planning District Commissibns

e \irginia State University — Small Farmer Outreach Program

o The various agricultural commodity boards (e.g. cattle board, wine board, etc.)
e Department of Housing and Community Development GO Virginia Program

e VDACS - Specialty Crop Competitive Grant Program

e Virginia Economic Development Partnership

o Appaiachian Regional Commission

e Federal Economic Development Authority

Pre-Proposals and Project Development Assistance ‘

Those interested in pursuing an award are encouraged to submit a non-binding Pre-Application form
available on the Commission’s website to obtain feedback. Projects that could benefit from technical
and developmental assistance will be invited to participate in regular project. development sessions
hosted by the TRAP team. These forums will ensure all relevant funding partners are engaged and
coordinating their assistance to the maximum benefit to the project. TRAP team guidance is advisory
and applicants will ultimately submit their formal applications for TRAP funding directly to TRRC Grant
Staff for processing. '

DRAFT DOCUMENT
=103~



Grant Types
Catalyst Grants:
e Smaller awards of up to SSD 000 focused on developing a major agribusiness pl’OJECt to a point
where it can receive the funding needed for successful implementation.
o Fund are to be used primarily on capacity development expenditures, such as for adminiétrative,
professional and technical services including grant writing and grants management, project

development and management, legal and engineering expenses, and capacity building expenses
directly related to the project.

Implementation Grants:
e Awards of any size, limited by available funding, to aid in the implementation of staff
recommended agribusiness projects.

e Funds can be used for any reasonable cost allowed by Code that are necessary for the successful
implementation of the project.

While the expectation and focus of this program is on awarding grant funds, also allowed is the
provision of supporting project financing through low- interest loans, creation of loan-loss reserve funds
or other mechanisms needed to best move a prmect forward, as long as total liability for the
Commission is clear and capped. .

Priority Funding Areas:

It is. expected that projects meeting the following criteria will receive the bulk of TRAP Team assistance
and total program funding:

e Projects that present a clear market opportunity, build on the region’s inherent assets and
" leverage existing business strengths.

e Projects that leverage substantial additional funding from the public, non-profit and private
sectors.. :

e Projects that develop or expand commodlty processing, aggregation or marketmg infrastructure
that will improve the long-term market opportunities for the region’s agribusiness producers.

Other Funding Areas:

Projects in the following categories are also eligiblé for funding. It is expected that these awards will be
smaller than those supporting the Priority Funding Areas described above and provide substantial
matching funds. '

e Development and demonstration of high-value, low-acreage crops that support crop
diversification and higher economic values of productive agricultural lands

e Cost-share programs incentivizing the adoption of proven agricultural techniques and practlces
that offer producers direct economic benefit

e Efforts that improve producer access to new or existing markets that increase revenue and
profitability.

DRAFT DOCUMENT
-104-



Eligible Applicants

Grant Applications will only be accepted from governmental entities and non-profit organizations located
in and/or providing economic revitalization programs, services, or facilities in the Tobacco Region.
Eligible applicants including the following:

¢  Governmental Entities within the Tobacco Region, including towns, cities, and counties; local or
regional industrial or economic development authorities; regional authorities, and other
governmental units. :

» Incorporated Non-profit organizations designated as tax-exempt by the IRS.

*  Projects primarily benefitting a private entity must have a public purpose and be made by an eligible
applicant. For these projects, the application must describe the public purpose and the terms of the
agreement must detail use of funds, ownership of grant-funded assets, and how the public benefits,
including new jobs or investment, will be documented.;

Matching Funds Requirement

As required by the Code of Virginia, all requests for grant funds require at least dollar-for-dollar (1:1)
matching funds. Projects will generally be required to have no more than 25% of the match requirement
from “in-kind” sources. Exceptions will be considered for smaller awards on a case by case basis.

Agribusiness Outcomes, Deliverables and Reporting

Implementation Grants will be required to put report on specific, measurable and relevant project
outcomes and deliverables for the project and for a (typically) three-year period following the end of the
TRRC grant. Staff will work with applicants to help define appropriate measures.

Grantees are required to complete an annual report during the grant period. Upon completion of the
grant period, grantees are required to submit a final grant report, including any grant deliverables, along
with a budget close-out form including all receipts, invoices, and backup documentation. The final
reimbursement payment will-be made upen verification of the final grant documents.

Project Evaluation and Award Criteria

Awards will be made on a competitive basis based on the strength of a candidate’s application.
Applicants must follow the TRAP Program Application format. Stronger applications will clearly explain:

o purpose, goals and objectives of the project;
e specific issues or barriers to success that the project will help overcome;
e importance of undertaking the project; '
e particular deliverables of the project, and;
o how grant and matching funds will be used.

In addition to the quality and completeness of an application, the following criteria will also be used
when making award decisions:

e The project’s expected impact on agribusinesses in the Tobacco Region.
e The potential for a strong return on investment for the TRRC. -
e Support and involvement of private sector agribusinesses in the project.
o Does the project create critical infrastructure offering long-term benefit to the region’s
" agriculture and forestry producers.
e The project’s likelihood of success in achieving the promlsed deliverables.

DRAFT DOCUMENT
=1 Q5=



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Rural Energy Innovation Fund (REIF)
A innovative approach for energy project development

Objectives

Develop and implement impactful energy projects in the Tobacco Region

Leveragé Federal, state, local and private funding resources for energy development through
unprecedented collaboration among key partners such as VEDP, US Dept of Energy, and Virginia
Dept of Energy, that maximizes each partners’ assistance available to quality projects

Spotlight the energy development model as a collaborative model of resource organizations
partnering to better coordinate and serve each other’s clients and to develop transformational
energy projects in the region

This core team of resource organizations will be enlarged to bring in other funding and
assistance organizations as needed to assist with project development and implementation.

Major Funding and Technical Assistance Partners (the REIF Team)

Virginia Department of Energy

United States Department of Energy — Rural Development/Innovation/Grid Reliability
United States Department of Commerce — Rural Development/Innovation/Tech Hub
Virginia Economic Development Partnership(VEDP)

Virginia Resource Authority (VRA)

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality

Department of Housing and Community Development — GO Virginia Program

Pre-Proposals and Project Development Assistance

Those interested in pursuing an award are encouraged to submit a non-binding Pre-Application form
available on the Commission’s website to obtain feedback. Projects that could benefit from technical
and developmental assistance will be invited to participate in regular project development sessions
hosted by the REIF team. These forums will ensure all relevant funding partners are engaged and
coordinating their assistance to the maximum benefit to the project. REIF team guidance is advisory and
applicants will uitimately submit their formal applications for REIF funding directly to TRRC Grant Staff
for processing.

Grant Types
Catalyst Grants:

Smaller awards of up to $50,000 focused on deve!opihg'a major energy project to a point where
it can receive the funding needed for successful implementation. :

Fund are to be used primarily on capacity development expenditures, such as for administrative,
professional and technical services, grant writing and management, project development and
management, legal and engineering expenses, and capacity building expenses directly related to

. projects with an Energy development or Innovation focus.

Code-mandated 1-to-1 match of funds enforced, however when circumstances demand, staff
may recommend awarding funds from the Project Development Support Fund in the
Commission’s Administrative Budget to aid in project development. .

DRAFT DOCUMENT
~106-



DRAFT DOCUMENT
Implementation Grants:

o Awards of any size, limited by available fundmg, to aid in the implementation of staff
recommended energy projects.

e ' Funds can be used for any reasonable cost allowed by Code that are necessary for the successful
implementation of the project.

e  Minimum 1-to-1 match of funds required, with higher levels of match expected for larger grant
requests.

* While the expectation and focus of this program is on awarding grant funds, also allowed is the
provision of supporting project financing through low-interest loans, creation of loan-loss reserve funds
or other mechanisms needed to best move a prOject forward, as long as total liability for the
Commission is clear and capped.

 Priority Funding Areas:

It is expected that projects meeting the following criteria will receive the-bulk of REIF Team assistance
and total program funding:

* Projects that present a clear market opportunity that builds on'the region’s inherent assets and
existing business strengths for Energy development and Energy Innovation
e Projects that leverage additional funding from the public, non-profit and private sector

e Projects that develop and éxpand energy infrastructure offering long-term benefits to the
region.

Eligible Applicants
Grant Applications will only be accepted from governmental entities and non-profit organizations located

in and/or providing economic revitalization programs, services, or facilities in the Tobacco Region.
Eligible applicants including the followmg

/

»  Governmental Entities within the Tobacco Region, including towns, cities, and counties;
local or regional industrial or economic development authorities; regional authorities, and
other governmental units. ‘

e Incorporated Non-profit organizations designated as tax-exempt by'the federal Internal
Revenue Service.

*  Projects primarily beneﬁttmg a private entity must have a public purpose and be made by

*an eligible applicant. For these projects, the application must describe the public purpose

and the terms of the agreement must detail use of funds, ownership of grant-funded assets,

and how the public benefits, including new jobs or investment, will be documented.;

Matchmg Funds Requirement

As requwed by the Code of Virginia, all requests for grant funds require at least dollar-for-dollar (1:1)
matching funds. Projects will generally be required to have no more than 25% of the match requirement
from “in-kind” sources. Exceptions will be considered for smaller awards on a case by case basis.

DRAFT DOCUMENT -
-107-



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Energy Outcomes, Deliverables and Reporting

Implementation Grants will be required to put forward specific, measurable and relevant project
outcomes and deliverables, typically for a three (3) year start-up or expansion period, following the end
date on the TRRC grant. Staff will work with applicants to help define appropriate measures.

Grantees are required to complete an annual grant report throughout the grant period. Upon
completion of the grant period, grantees are required to submit a final grant report, including any grant
deliverables, along with a budget close-out form including all receipts, invoices, and backup
documentation. The final reimbursement payment will be made upon verification of the final grant
documents. '

Project Evaluation and Award Criteria

Awards will be made on a competitive basis based on the strength of a candidate’s application.

Applicants must follow the REIF Program Application format. Stronger applications will clearly explain
the: :

e purpose, goals and objectives of the project;

o specific issues or barriers to success that the project will help overcome;
e importance of undertaking the project;

e particular deliverables of the project, and;

e how grant funds and local match will be uséd.

In addition to the quality and completeness of an application, the following criteria will also be used .
when making award decisions:

e The pro;ect’s expected |mpact on Energy development and Energy Innovation in the Tobacco
Region.

e The potential for a strong return on investment for the TRRC
e Support and involvement of private sector Energy development and Energy Innovation in the
"project.
e The project’s likelihood of success in achtevmg the scheduled deliverables and targeted
milestones.

DRAFT DOCUMENT
=108~



=108~

000°592°93] 000°59L°0LS 000592013 SIV1OL
2202 ABI\ Ul palndoo Buisop )
UBYM J,A09 [290] O} PASINGSIP WHA 0s| 000000'$ S pEEP 000'000'7$ SUOJEOILNWIWC0B[S] woosjaL xaury| 1202/20/80|  €16€
; plemy Buipuad - panolddy /sieaf L :
Z20Z 994 VA 0} pasingsip Ueo]
*3s0[0 0} Buinow pue Ajeoo|
yum dn Bummojjos AjuaLINg "asimiayio 3 : sjuawnoeq . fAuedwos

Jealy am ssajun £g/1/9 U0 P3sold 3 000'00S8|  000'00SS| ey Buipuag - pancuddy aalL 000°005$ SNJOUoY stenud jAuedwoo sjeaud|  FGOUHIL  EEBE
[llm UEo] Jeu) juesldde payiou Yels
“JUS}UI S,UOISSILIWOYD
3U} ypm aul| ul Jo a|gejdasde puly
Jou S20p HelS Jeuy) sabueyo Buuisap

5 z i . sjuawnoogd . . .
Ryieo0) au} yim paasbe usag jou 000'686'G$| 000'G86'SS$ ! agl 000°686°GS AyepdsoH| Auedwod sjeaud 008 [2007|  2202/5/01 BL0%
: pJemy Buipuad - panoiddy

 @ney suua] ‘zz/gl/L 1 juedldde B
AJi[eoo] 0} papiaoid 19ays Wi | Ueo
'Z2/S/0} panoidde uoissiwwog

ss9001d U] 000'0828|  000'082$ i . asL 000'082$ aumonyseyu)| Auedwoo sjenud A0B [e007|  ZZ0Z/EZ/8|  £60%

piemy Buipuad - panoiddy ol
(€2/3/0) 0 SE) SejoN| =Ioueied A|qefieAy|  Pasoiddy smeyg| uua) josfoid| ueojpaysenbay| - Jopaegioslod) ddy| 3asloid
€£¢0¢ 12q0Jo0

sueo weiboid Buipuse ssauisng Ajlunwwo)




000°65L'2$ 000°699'Z$ 000°06%'FS 66£'516'51Z$ vee’l 0z syoafoud jo # 6102 Ad
000'229'9% 000°9L5°2$ 000°90LP$ 612v8Lsres 608°L 6 sjoafoid o # 020Z Ad
000°965°L$ 000°05¥$ 000°9¥1L°L$ SZR'IVT'VLLS z62 L syoaloid jo # 1Z20Z Ad
005°'8L8°L$ 005'vv$ 000'PLL°LS 962°220'eV.LS FA: 1l € sjoafoid jo # 220T Ad
000°68% 005'trs 005'tS 000'005'LE 29 077 ‘BuyeIEW (ENBIQ SlaaBIX ajjiaueq jo Ao BAgoe - panoiddy 1202/82/L yele
j Aoy 2
005'20.8 0% 005'20/% 8L.'2SY's62S 9/¢ ‘ou| ‘spood uosAL Ayjoed [ewsnpu| [euciBay | @AGoE - panaiddy L202/2e/6 Z16€
BlUBAASHI-B]IiAUE]
ﬂcmE:oov,
000'220°LS 0% 000°Z20°}$ 8.5'v10'9vpS ¥¥0'L oTi=s anig QI iop Aunod auan | pseme Buipuad 1202/22/6 z68¢
: - pancuddy
oos‘cees 0$ 00s‘c£6$ L8Z'PS0'BTLS raad 14 syoaloid Jo # (a1ep 01) £20Z Ad
00°000'02Z $ | 00000022 00'000'000°'Z€  $ |59 vsn ABisu3 yoeyH val Aunog xejlieH aAROE - panoiddy 22I8LILO EV6E
00°000'}LL $ | 00000°L}+E 00°058'8L $ | st 0717 ‘dnaucia Auneg alppimuig anjoe - paaciddy Ze/L /80 9.6¢
00°005'2€ $ | 00005'ZE 00°000'006'8 $ |ve Jooyoag Buioey 1agleg dpig val Aunod xeyeH BAnoE - panaiddy ZZ/6L/E0 S96E
; Sjuswnaog
00°000'04S $ [00000'045 Qo'ley'seL'ze ¢ [soL 077 ABojouyoa], Xuousd| val funog xejieH piEMy mc_ﬂcmm 22/¥2/60 8.0t
; - % iy ~ panoiddy

9)ep 0} £€20¢ A4 - 610C Ad
Spiemy 4041

~110-



) ; 8L/L2/9 Jsjuad umoL : Ruoyiny
w | 00S £¢ w - pasingsig UjlesHd eull] wdd 27171 h:__\.,._ m:_UCDOn_ 10 UjlesaH eull | EmEQo_m>mD |eusnpuj 3_.500 ueueyong LL02/LIC) €6ee
ooL'‘gzh $ |000'vPL $ | pesIngsipag ol "oul ‘oid AVN Aunog AemonoN 8L0z/9/9 8ie
; o 6L/81L/9 A - d
000'82 $ |ooo'ork & - posINGsIq essiuwo) Aisyeq audw3 Auno) uipuel 8L0Z/6/01 Leve
_ _ , Auoyiny
000'0€9 ¢ | 000'0€9  $ | pesingsipagoL 077 yosised molieH Auloe] [ewsnpy| [euciBay eluenksd-alnueq | SHOESHOL z8vre ;
—
' . 6L/0E/8 deoak d =
000'¥8 ¢ |o00'ork  $ - pesIngsIq o771 dedhjod Auouyny wewdoeas [esnpul Ajuncd jlessny | 6L02/8/9 208€ |
005"/ ¢ | 000'SL $ | 02/L/¥ - pesingsig 071 ‘Memalg sisjsiS UBASS YA ‘Aunod ayiAp Jo va| uior 6L0Z/0S/ ¥75¢
000'sL $ | 000'0S 3 Bl 071 'subiseq abpry enig Auno) jjoued 5102/08/ SSE
- pasingsiqg : :
i i L2/82/6 o : Ruoyiny
000'04Z ¢ [ooo0'0iz % - posINgsIq P17 ‘43N fli984 [eLISnpU] [2UOIBSY BIUEAASTIG-BIIAUEQ 6L02/9/8 955¢
009'6¢ ¢ | 0057t $ ) uwmﬂm_m_o 071 'sisuned [810H suosyoElg 10 Umo ‘suoisyoe|g L20T/ElS ¥.9¢
005'G¥ ¢ | 008'SY $ | pesingsipag ol 077 ‘Bunexiely [eybiq sieLebay 10 Ao ‘eliaueg 1.202/82/L #el8
; . o~ Ruoyiny
000'8t ¢ | 000'8t ¢ | pesingsipaq oL ou| ‘UsAelBp Ruioe4 [BLISNPU] [BUOIBSY BIUBAASIIG-O[IAUEQ LZ0C/0E/v $6.€
. .Em_."_mi,“._ |  ponosddy & iy : N o o N i Cip B R ot | S
8q 03 JUnowy o HTE smeys pe ~ apwelold J i - |Paaciddy sjeq| #302f0id

 ueo] SuiuewRY

aunouy ueoy

€c0¢ 1290100 sueo] 4041




~112-

001620 $ (0056222 5 ‘ SIVIOL
) . LLIZ2I6
¢ | ooo'sy $ ‘N Buipunod 1o e : Ruouyny
- pasingsiq ST WL RHpHoA R HHESH AL juswdojaaa( [EMISNpU| AUNo) [[Bmaze] Li0elLely 96ce
; 8L/0LIY
- ¢ [ooo'oge ¢ 21210d100U| SUOREDIUNWLWO Auouny yuswdoeasg
- pesinasia e I sueheer omEbiaiesuns  OILIOUODT/|BUISNIPU [[IMIZEL JO UMOL L 0gkeis ooee

£20Z 1800100 SUBoT 401



aouewopad| eleQ AJUBWICHAY papu3 paiedodioou|
00°0S 00'0$ 00'0$ 1IN} pawJyuod SuIMaINSY | pOLIad 2JUBLLIOLS suonedunwWwo) (e38iq 3esung llePmazeL 0z0Z/1E/€| L10Z/T€/€| LI0Z/TE/S 00EE
BlE( 9DUBWLIOHA| Bl aJuBWIOuad papu3
- asl Suimainay Sunaylen | poliad 3UBLIIOHAH| J77 ‘Il Bulpunod JO Y3|EaH Bulll |lemaze] 0Z0Z/TE/E| LIOZ/TE/E| LI0T/LT/Y 96ZE
BJB( DUBWIONAL| BIBRQ SJUBLLIOLSd papu3 Auno) )
Suimainay Supaylen| pouad adUBWION3d U] ‘sse[9 A1ajes uedQ 3[|IASUAID €20Z/0E/S| LTIOZ/TE/E|  LT0T/8/9 S6ZE
Bl SDUBWLIONSd| BlRQ 9JueLllopad papu3
qsl Fuimainay Supsyien | pouad IuBWIOLMRd asim 6T0T/TE/TT| 9TOT/TE/TT|  LTOZ/9/E 99¢E
18w j0U pspus
00°0% 6Z°LT0'LES 62°4TOLES| 3Iuawded dwns dwn|| 3duewlopad ||nd| poliad aduew.opad U] YSN YI91BAON Auay TT0Z/1E/TT| 9T0Z/0E/6| 9T0T/L/ZT SteE
paindaxa 39w j0u papu3
00'98TTTS 06'265'SS 06'8LL'9TS uejd JuawAeday| @ouewsopad [ng| poLad SJUBULIOLMAE JT1 ‘@joueAam [330H paemp3 adulld 6T0T/0E/S| 9TOT/0E/9| 9TOZ/0E/8 YIZE
BB DUBWLIOMS| BleQ 9JueLulopad papu3
asl Buuayies Supaiaen | powad souewiopad| (a1 3valod) Ul ‘BjiasunIeIN |LY Auay TTOZ/TE/E| 9TOT/TE/E 9102/%/S LLTE
SE'EEE] S SE'EEE] S paJinbasjuawAedal| eleg adUBWIIOURY papuz 0IAISS pUE S3|ES J]OM 3n|g Aoyiny .
pOLI3d PIUBLLIOND juawdojanag
[eL3snpuj
Auno) |lemaze]
ZZ0Z/0E/6| STOZ/0E/6| STOZ/8/0T TOTE
paindaxs| eleQ IJUBLWIOHAd papu3
9E'E68'SES 00°0$ 9E'E68'SES ue|d JuawAeday Suimainay | poliad 9IUBLLIOUS - 2] 'S|IIN JSISIIIVOIN uosAel9 LTI0T/TE/TT| YTOZ/TE/TT S10Z/9/T Z00E
00°SZ9°EST 3 - $ | 00'SZ9'E9T S paJdinbaJ JuswAedal| eleq dUBWIOHRY papu3 (umog Azoyany
JuLiaylen | polad @dUBWIOLS | 8 deD [|eH ¥eD) saLasnpu| |[eH 3eQ 1uawdoaaag
21Wou0d3
Auno) uosieln
220Z/0€/8| ¥TOZ/TE/CT| STOT/ST/T 666C
Sw.9} duewIopad ]
pasiaal paienodau
10 soueuiopad
Bupoyuow
- ue|d uawAedas 19w jou papu3g
ast pajenoSan| @2uewlopad ||nd| poLiad Sduew.Iopdd 271 ‘§13N4018 NYIHIYIvddY Jl2ssny LT0Z/0E/9| ¥TOZ/0E/9 ¥10Z/1/8 T¥6Z
(Su1pAday
painiaxa jaw jou papu3 28y 03 Auedwod 193515 e S1 s1yL)
00°000°52$ 00'000SLS 00°000°00T$ uejd JuawAeday| dueulopad ||nd|ponad suewopiad Ju] ‘BuppnJL 1se0) 7 35800 8inquaum 8T0Z/1E/€| ¥I0Z/TE/E $102/5/S 7682
(19301
Bl 90UBWIONA| B1BQ ddUBWIIOHRd papu3 5u0ISsas ay1/s[210H anbinog
asl Suayies Suaylen| polad PIUBLIIOND] SAnReaL) exye) 7] ‘|oisig HaD |o3s11g TZ0Z/TE/TT| €102/1E€/2T| tT0T/ST/T 0s8e
paindaxa Jawjou papu3
00'265'2¥S 00'80F LTS 00'000°09%S ueid JuswAeday| @duewJopad |nd| poLad BDUBLLION 77 UIBIUNON 3InJas paleniy LTOZ/TE/TT| ETOZ/TE/TT| YIOT/¥T/T S¥8T
painJaxa J9W J0u papu3 1 ?
00°0$ 00°000'0ET$ 00°000°0ETS ued JuswAeday| aduewlopad ||nd| polad @auewI0Rd | ‘ASOOUYIDL P|ON UBILAWY YHON 9||iaueg 8T0Z/0E/9| €T0Z/0E/9| €10T/ET/8 ¥ZLT
Juiuieway pieday yoeqme|d junouny Z smiels T snieis snjels pouad 9p1L aloag uoneziuedig a3eq puz a1equels | pancuddy | sequinn
yoeqme|d Jaeqme]) ouBLLIOHI] ajeq FLEI(JF]

£202 1200J00 Spoliad SoUBLIIOUSH PSPNOU0D YiM SJ0Y L SARY

-113-



00°0% 00'0$ 00°0S e/u g/u| panoaddy uoisuaixg U] ‘sse[9 ssald Atuay €Z0Z/0E/9| 8TOZ/0E/9| 8T0T/ST/L 9SYE
AJuQ SuLieys anuaay UaWaIsINgSIp papu3 . )
00°0%$ 00'0% 00°0S . Buissa0ld| polad douewIoped| onenby val xeyljeH 0Z02Z/TE/TT| LI0T/TE/ZT| 8TOZ/ST/L SSPE
AJuD Buiieys anuanay pET] papua| -ou| ‘@8etadoo) uoginog apisAads {¥41MmS) E
2ouewonad [[n4| poUad 9IUBWIONDd Auoyany
sani|Ped
' |el3snpu|
|euoiday
uojBuiysem
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ -yhwg TZ0Z/0E/9| 8T0Z/0E/9| 8TOT/LT/L ZSYE
e/u e/u e/u eleQ DUBLWIONA4| BlB(Q JUBWIOMI] papu3l| ou| ‘@8esadoo) uogqinog apisAads Aoyiny
Buuayien Juaylen| pouad PIuUBLLIONRd juawdojanag
21Wouos3
Aunod YyiAws 2TOZ/0E/3| 8T0Z/0E/9| 8T0Z/LT/L TSYE
e/u B/u e/u papu3
syuawAed ueojisnl| sjuswded ueo| 1snl| poiiad 2oUBWIONA cld AvN|[AIuno) Aemonon TZ0T/1E/€| 8T0Z/TE/E 810Z/9/9 PE
[ERG=ERE] papu3 m
00°000°SZTS 00°000SZTS$ 00°000°052$| Asadnnjueq -1nejaq ue|d JuawAeday | polad DUBWIOLA ‘s39NpOo.d Jaquii] doy UIeUNoA pleniy 0T0T/TE/TT| LTOZ/TE/TT| 8T0T/LT/E 8Tre
B1BQ SJUBLIOMAL| eleQ aJuBwlopad papu3
asl Suimainay SulayIes [ poLad AdUBWIOMI JT1 ‘suonisinbdy Asjeq Azuno) pAojd TZOZ/IE/TT| LTOZ/1E/TT| 810Z/ZZ/T 90vE
ele( 9OUBWIOMAd| eleQ duewlopad papu3 .
asl Suimainay Jurayies [ poliad 3dueWIOAd uoiun HpaJd uodnal Aunod uipjueld 020T/TE/TT| LTI0T/1E/TT| 810Z/1Z/Z SOVE
B}B(] 2IUBLLIIOMDd| BIB( SOUBWIOND papu3 jo
aal Suimainay Suuiayien | poliad aoueuLIOpad 2U| SBIIAJSS UOHEBIAY YN | Aunod ‘piojpag TZ0T/TE/TT| LI0T/TE/TT| 8T0Z/62/T S6EE
aglL E1B(Q SJUBLLIOMA| BlBQ SOUBWIONDG papu3 *2U| ‘|eUOlBUIRIL| JOLRWY Auno)
Sunayien Supayien | poliad SoUBWIOMRd BlUBAJASII
TT0T/0E/6| £T0Z/OE/6| L10Z/8T/TT BEE
ele( JUBWIOMD| BleQ 2dUBULIOLSY papul J23U3D UMO] YijeaH eul] vad
agL Buimainay Suiiaylen | poliad adueLLIOMAd| DT ‘IIIA Bulpunod 4O yijeaH eul ueueyong 020T/0E/6| LTOT/0E/6| LTOT/LITT EBEE
BB 9OUBWIONA| BleQ SJUBWLIOMNAd papu3 X1E|A|OIg BIJBURY Auno)
Supauyien Suuaylen | poliad ruBWIOLRd elueAlAsiild
€20Z/0E/9| £T0Z/0E/6| LIOZ/ET/TT 9LEE
aglL BleQ 9JUBWIOMA| eleQ aduBwLIOM3d papu3 val [ned S 0/2 271 SHiiw| 30 umo] ‘[ned s
Sunayien Supayyes)| poliad a3uBWIONad
¢C0T/0E/6| LT0Z/0E/6| LTOZ/LITT SLEE
e/u e/u e/u
BlBQ 9DUBULIOLD | BIRQ SDUBWIONSd papu3 V41 elueajAsiid )
SuIMaIARY Juimalaay | polIad 9oUBWIONA 971 2gn L uosiun 3||iaueg 270Z/0E/6| LT0Z/0E/6| L10Z/SE/8 THEE
oW jou papu3 am
00°009°€LS 00°00¢'81% 00'000°Z6$ anp jusawAeday Souewlonad |[n4| pousd dduBWIOLRd ‘sa|8ojouyda] Suljeas oneaouu| - xonewoddy ozoz/ogfa| LI0T/OEf9| LT0Z/TT/B OvEE
Aujureway preday dYoeqme| Junowy Zsnies T snjeis SN3elS pouad 3y Palosd uoneziuedig ajeq pu3 2ieq ers | panosddy [ Jaquny
yoeqmed yaegme]) . adueWIOoUAd a1eq 3fold

£20Z 1890}00 SPoLiad SOUBWIOHSd POPN[OUOD UM SJOY L SAIOY

~114~



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

Financial Summary
As of August 31, 2023

TICR Fund Balance $ 227,710,954
Réstricted Endowment Balance . $ 75,976,441
Unrestricted Endowment Balance $ 46,109,311
Restricted Endowment Accum Interest $ 2,249,167
Unrestricted Endowment Accum Interest 3 1,257,732
Total Cash & Investments $ 353,303,605
Cash Disbursements - this month $ 1,045,887
Cash Disbursements - FYTD $ 3,779,808
Unobligated
Fund Balances
Education $ 4,622,077
Education-Workforce Training 3 3,367,850
Education-TAP $ 3,100,000
TROF (Deal Closing) “$ 21,617,380
Southside Economic Development $ 13,033,332
Southern Va Committee $ 21,180,451
Southwest Va Committee ) . % . 7,434,776
Rural Energy Innovation $ 12,000,000
Megasite Development $. 17,375,889
Lending Program $ 56,670,974
Administration 3 1,970,711
TICRC General Account $ 883,607
FY2024 Budget Balance $ 163,257,046
10/2/12023

=115-



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Cash Basis)
As of August 31, 2023

YTD Actual
as % of Variance Favorahle
* FY24 Budget YTD Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Other Revenue (all cost codes) $ - 3 139,280.88 139,280.88
Total Revenues $ - $ 139,280.88 $ 139,280.88
EXPENDITURES
Administration )
Salaries, Fringe Benefits, Per Diems $ 1,432,900 $ 201,791.16 14.1% $1,231,108.84
Contractual Services 237,800 39,091.64 16.4% 198,708.36
Supplies and Materials ) - 11,000 282.11 2.6% 10,717.89
Transfer Payments 1,045,887 - 0.0% 1,045,887.00
Rent, Insurance, Agency Svc Charges 213,400 22,336.21 10.5% 191,063.79
Furniture and Equipment 7,000 2,565.33 36.6% 4,434.67
Subtotal - Administration $ 2,947,987 $ 266,066.45 9.0% $2,681,920.55 |
Community Revitalization ' 25,700,000 3,513,739.80
Total Expenditures $ 28,647,987 $ 3,779,806.25
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ (28,647,987) $ (3,640,525.37)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (endowment and earnings) $ - $ -
CASH BALANCE, June 30, 2023 $ 231,351,480 $ 231,351,479.55
CASH BALANCE, August 31, 2023 $ 202,703,493 $ 227,710,954.18

~116-

10/2/2023



VIRGINIA TOBACCO
COMMISSION

STANDING COMMITTEES

- -117-



"~ VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION REVITALIZATION CONMMISSION

CONMISSION MEMBERS
rev. 8/23

COMMISSIONERS CITY AND STATE
T Chatham, Virginia

he Honorable Leslie R. “Les” Adams
Delegate, 16" District

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins Abingdon, Virginia
Ms. Gretchen B. Clark Gretna, Virginia
Ms. Amanda C. Cox Boones Mills, Virginia

The Honorable'Stephen E. “Steve” Cummings | Richmond, Virginia
Secretary of Finance

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr. Halifax, Virginia
The Honorable John S. Edwards Roanoke, Virginia
Senator, 215t District

Lee “Randy” Everette Stony Creek, Virginia
Watt R. Fosters, Jr. A Gladys, Virginia
Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley Gate City, Virginia
Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr. Kenbridge, Virginia
Mr. Jay D. Jennings Chase City, Virginia
The Honorable Terry G. Kilgore Gate City, Virginia
Delegate, 1%t District ' ‘
The Honorable Matthew J. “Matt” Lohr Richmond, Virginia

Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry
The Honorable L. Louise Lucas

Senator, 18" District Portsmouth, Virginia
The Honorable Daniel “Danny” Marshall Danville, Virginia

| Delegate, 14" District '
The Honorable Caren Merrick : : Richmond, Virginia
Secretary of Commerce and Trade
The Honorable James W. “Will” Morefield North Tazewell, Virginia
Delegate, 3" District ‘
The Honorable Joseph D. “Joe” Norrissey Richmond, Virginia
Senator, 16! District Tow
The Honorable William A. “Will'’ Pace Chatham, Virginia
Ms. Sandy J. Ratliff ' Abingdon, Virginia
The Honorable Frank M. Ruff, Jr. Clarksville, Virginia
Senator, 15 District ' '
Mr. Walter H. "Buddy” Shelton Gretna, Virginia
Mr. Gary D. Walker Charlotte Court House, Virginia

The Honorable William C. “Will” Wampler, llI Abingdon, Virginia
Delegate, 4t District ) :

Ms. Sarah L. Wilson .| Abingdon, Virginia

T .



VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION REVITALIZATION COMMISSION
Commission Committees

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Vacant, Chair

The Hon. L. Louise Lucas, Vice Chair
Ms. Gretchen Clark

Ms. Amanda Cox

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr.

Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr.

Ms. Sandy Ratliff

The Hon. Gary D. Walker

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, IlI

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr., Chair

The Hon. James “Will” Morefield, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

The Hon. Kathy Byron

Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley

The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore

The Hon. L. Louise Lucas.

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall

Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Shelton

INCENTIVES AND LOANS COMMITTEE

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall, Chair
The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Gretchen B. Clark

The Honorable Stephen Cummings

The Hon. Caren Merrick

The Hon. Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey

. The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr.

(rev.10/23)

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Shelton, Chair
The Hon. T. Jordan Miles, Ill, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr.

Mr. Watt R. Foster, Jr.

Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr.

Mr. Jay D. Jennings

*The Hon. L. Louise Lucas

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall
The Hon. Caren Merrick

The Hon. Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey
The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace
The Hon. Gary D. Walker

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

The Hon. James “Will” Morefield, Chair
Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley, Vice Chair
Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Gretchen B. Clark

Ms. Amanda Cox

The Hon. John S. Edwards

The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore

The Hon. Matthew Lohr

The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace

Ms. Sandy Ratliff _

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, Il
Ms. Sarah L. Wilson

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins, Chair

The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams, Vice Chair
Ms. Gretchen B. Clark

Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley

The Hon. Matthew Lohr

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, IlI

-119-



	20231009145002098
	20231009154910985
	20231009145002098

